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VIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY 

Honorable Jaclyn A. Brilling, Secretary 
New York State Public Service Commission 
Three Empire State Plaza 
Albany, New York 12223-1350 

Re: Case W- M- - - Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation d/b/a National 
Grid, Section 70 Petition -Transfer of the Oswego Fire School Facility 

Dear Secretary Brilling: 

Enclosed please find for filing an original and five (5) copies of the Joint Petition of 
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation d/b/a National Grid and the County of Oswego for approval 
under Section 70 of the Public Service Law to transfer the Oswego Fire School Facility. 

Six (6) copies of a Notice of Proposed Agency Action for publication in the State Register 
pursuant to the State Administrative Procedure Act are also enclosed. 

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this filing by date-stamping as received the enclosed 
duplicate copy of this letter and returning it in the enclosed, self-addressed envelope provided for 
your convenience. Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Michael J. Biehler, Esq. 

Enc. 

cc: Richard C. Mitchell, Esq., County of Oswego, wlenclosures 
Robert Visalli, DPS Staff, wlenclosures 
Susan Crossett, w/enclosures 
Janet Audunson. wlenclosures 

m: 144 Kenskglon Avenue 
Bulfalo. NY 14214 
716.831.7781 
330 Erie Boulevard West 
Syracuse. NY 13202 
31 5.428.8008 

Wl: 716.866.1908 Far 315.460.8395 
michael.biehlerOus.ngrid.m 



PROPOSED RULE MAKING 
NO HEARING(S) SCHEDULED 

Transfer of the Oswego Fire School Facility by Niagara Mohawk Power 
Corporation dlbla National Grid to the County of Oswego 

I.D. NO. PSC- 

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE State Administrative Procedure Act, 
NOTICE is hereby given of the following proposed rule: 

Proposed action: The Public Service Commission is considering whether to approve or 
reject, in whole or in part, a joint petition by Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation d/b/a 
National Grid (National Grid) and the County of Oswego for authority, pursuant to Public 
Service Law Section 70, to transfer certain real property and improvements known as the 
Oswego Fire School Facility located in the City of Oswego, Oswego County, New York. 

Statutory authority: Public Service Law, section 70 

Subject: Transfer of the Oswego Fire School Facility by National Grid. 

Purpose: To approve the transfer of the Oswego Fire School Facility from National Grid 
to the County of Oswego. 

Substance of proposed rule: The Commission is considering whether to approve or 
reject, in whole or in part, a joint petition filed by National Grid and the County of 
Oswego for authority, pursuant to Public Service Law Section 70, to transfer ownership 
interest in certain real property and improvements known as the Oswego Fire School 
Facility to the County of Oswego. The parties are requesting permission to transfer 
ownership of the Oswego Fire School Facility as the facility is presently shut down and 
no longer useful as a utility asset but it has significant value to the surrounding 
communities for continued use as a fire training school for municipal and volunteer 
firefighters. The property is to he transferred pursuant to a Purchase and Sale Agreement 
between National Grid and the County of Oswego which will allow National Grid the 
right to use the facility for a certain number of days annually to meet the periodic fire 
training needs of its workforce. 

Text of proposed rule may be obtained by fling a Document Request Form (F-96) 
located on our website http://www.dps.state.ny.us/f96dir.htm For questions, contact: 
Central Operations, Public Service Commission, Bldg. 3, Empire State Plaza, Albany, 
NY 12223-1350, (5 18) 474-2500 

Data, view or arguments may be submitted to: Jaclyn A. Brilling, Secretary, Public 
Service Commission, Bldg. 3, Empire State Plaza, Albany, NY 12223-1350, (518) 474- 
6530 



Public comment will be received until: 45 days after publication of this notice. 

Regulatory Impact Statement, Regulatory Flexibility Analysis, Rural Area Flexibility 
Analysis and Job Impact Statement 
Statements and analyses are not submitted with this notice because the proposed rule is 
within the definition contained in section 102(2)(a)(ii) of the State Administrative 
Procedure Act. 
( 0 7 - M - S A  1) 
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STATE OF NEW YORK 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

-------------------------------------------------------- 
Joint Petition of Niagara Mohawk Power 1 
Corporation d/b/a National Grid and the County) 
of Oswego for Authority to Transfer the Oswego ) 
Fire School Facility Pursuant to Section 70 of the) 
Public Service Law. 
------------------------------------------------------ ) 

Case 07-M- 

JOINT PETITION 
OF 

NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION dhla NATIONAL GRID 
AND 

THE COUNTY OF OSWEGO 
TO 

TRANSFER INTERESTS IN THE OSWEGO FIRE SCHOOL FACILITY 

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY OF RELIEF REQUESTED 

Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation #/a National Grid ("National Grid" or the 

"Company") and the County of Oswego (the "County"), collectively the Petitioners, 

hereby respectfully petition the Public Service Commission (the "Commission") for 

authority pursuant to Section 70 of theNew York State Public Service Law, N.Y. Pub. 

Serv. L. 5 70 (McKinney 2007), and Section 3 1 .I of the Commission's Rules, 16 

N.Y.C.R.R. 8 31.1 (2006), to transfer the Company's interests in the real property and 

improvements known as the Oswego Fire School Facility to the County, with the 

ratemaking treatment to be afforded such transfer to be different than the Commission's 

decision in Case 03-M-1374 involving the transfer of the Company's James A. O'Neill 

Office Building (the "O'Neill order").' The Petitioners respectfully assert that the 

transfer of the Oswego Fire School Facility, as described below, as well as the modified 

' Case 03-M-1374. Petition of Niagara Mohawk Power Corporationfor Approval ofthe Transfer of the 
James A. 0 'Neil1 Oflce Building, Located at 1304 Buckley Road, Town of Salina, Onondaga Counfy, to 
1304 Buckley Rood Associates, LLCfor the Sum off 1,400,000, Order Approving Property Transfer Upon 
Conditions (issued and effective January 29,2004). 



ratemaking set forth herein, is in the public interest and should be approved by the 

Commission. 

BACKGROUND 

1. Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation is a transportation corporation duly 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York with its principal place of 

business at 300 Erie Boulevard West, Syracuse, New York 13202. 

2. The Commission has heretofore been provided certified copies of the Company's 

certificate of incorporation, certificate of merger and consolidation, and all amendments 

thereto. 

3. The County of Oswego is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of New York having an address at 46 East Bridge Street, 

Oswego, New York 13126. 

4. The Company currently owns and holds title to a certain parcel of property which 

consists of approximately 19.95 acres of real property and improvements located at 720 

East Seneca Street, City of Oswego, County of Oswego, New York (the "Property") and 

commonly known as the Oswego Fire School Facility (the "Facility"). The structures 

that comprise the Facility are enclosed by a perimeter fence that contains approximately 

six acres, while the balance of the 19.95 acres contains approximately seven acres of 

wetlands, with two of those acres having been classified as New York State Freshwater 

Wetlands by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 

("NYSDEC"). 

THE FACILITY 

5. The land was acquired by Oswego Industries Corporation, a predecessor to the 

Company, in 1929. The site remained undeveloped prior to the initial construction of the 



Facility which occurred between 1957 and 1958 for the purpose of providing firefighting 

training for numerous employees, most of whom worked at the Company's generating 

stations. The Facility was first used for fire training activities in 1958. In subsequent 

years, the Company erected additional structures on the Property to hrther support fire 

training needs. For example, in 1973, a 620 sq. ft. halon recovery building was 

constructed. In 1982, a 960 sq. ft. smoke training building was constructed. In the mid- 

1980's, a prefabricated metal trailer was added and retrofitted for confined space training. 

From 1991 to 1992, a two-story bum building, 1800 sq. ft. in area, and a workshop, 960 

sq. ft. in area, were added to the Property. From 1994 to 1995, a 4,650 sq. ft. classroom 

was added, along with a 2,520 sq. ft. pole barn to meet site storage needs. Today, the 

Facility consists of nine primary structures with approximately 13,000 sq. ft. of gross 

building area along with numerous ancillary structures. The ancillary structures include a 

fire hose shed, control booth, fire pump house, storage shed, fire pad, underground 

electrical vault and storage tanks. Although considered integral to the overall operation 

of the Facility, the ancillary structures have minor independent significance. Other site 

improvements include paved parking lots and walkways, lighting, lawn, signage, fencing, 

bollards, underground piping for propane and water lines, propane tanks and other 

firefighting props, and a water reclamation system. 

6. Although both field operations and generating station employees utilized the 

Facility for fire training, over time the Facility's primary purpose evolved to one that 

principally supported the fire brigades established at the Company's formerly owned 

fossil-fueled generating stations (i.e., Oswego, Huntley, Dunkirk and Albany) and the 

Nine Mile Point 1 and 2 nuclear power plants. Following the Company's divestiture of 

its generating station assets which occurred between 1999 and 2001, the Facility shifted 

back to supporting the Company's field operations' firefighting training needs for New 

York and, to a lesser extent, New England, following the merger. 

7. To help maximize the Company's use of the Facility, and for a brief period of 

time, the Company also provided for-hire fire training pursuant to contracts with other 

entities, particularly so in the period following the Company's divestiture of its 



generating station assets. Customers included Constellation Energy, Entergy 

Corporation, Rochester Gas & Electric Nuclear, Vermont Yankee Nuclear, Alcan 

Aluminum, Sithe Energy, Orion Power, NRG Oswego Steam Station, Constellation 

Emergency Planning and several local fire departments. The staff of the Facility also 

worked closely with local firefighting units, including the Oswego County BOCES, 

Oswego County Fire Coordinator and local New York State fire instructors. The fees 

paid by these entities for fire training were used to offset the Company's expenses for 

operating and maintaining the Facility. 

8. In 1991, the Property was designated as a Class 2 Inactive Hazardous Waste 

Disposal Site by the NYSDEC due to the presence of polychlorinated biphenyls 

("PCBs") on the Property in quantities greater than 50 parts per million. It was later 

learned that the PCBs were brought on site when used transformer oils were utilized to 

start the fires that were an integral part of the fire training demonstrations conducted at 

the Facility between 1958 and 1977.~ The Company entered into an Order on Consent 

with the NYSDEC to conduct a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study to 

determine whether PCB-laden oil and other oils had been discharged into nearby White 

Creek and to analyze the volume and content of PCBs present in soil on the Property. 

Subsequent to the investigation, the NYSDEC mandated that certain remedial actions 

take place, with the details of such remediation being set forth in the Record of Decision 

issued in March 1995. Thereafter, the Company completed the NYSDEC-required 

remediation between November 1995 and April 1996. In all, the Company expended 

$4,063,243 in Site Investigation and Remediation ("SIR") funds to investigate and 

research the extent of contamination and to comply with the Order on Consent. In 

January 1999, the NYSDEC deleted the Property from the New York State Registry of 

Class 2 Inactive Hazardous Waste Disposal Sites. 

9. In accordance with the Order on Consent, the Company also executed and 

recorded a deed restriction against the Property by filing an original copy of same in the 

'The propane-fueled two-story bum building was subsequently added to the Property to eliminate the need 
to create oil-induced fires for training purposes. 

4 



Oswego County Clerk's Office on February 3, 1997. The Order on Consent further 

requires that the NYSDEC be notified by the Company in the event of a transfer of 

ownership of the Property. Therefore, coincident with the filing of this Joint Petition 

with the Commission, the Company will advise the NYSDEC of the anticipated transfer 

of the Property for which the Petitioners are seeking Commission approval. 

10. As of March 3 1,2007, the gross book value of the Property is $2,406,342 of 

which $2,405,036 is attributable to the structures that comprise the Facility and $1,306 is 

for land. Less depreciation reserve, the net book value of the Facility is $1,687,998 as of 

March 3 1,2007. A copy of the net book analysis is annexed hereto as "Exhibit 1". 

DILIGENT EFFORTS TO SELL THE PROPERTY 

11. Subsequent to the divestiture of the Company's generating station assets, the 

Company decided in July 2003 to market and sell the Property as part of an overall effort 

to reduce Company-wide operating and occupancy costs. To assist it in efforts to market 

and sell the Property, the Company obtained an appraisal of the Property (which 

established an approximate value for the Property at $1.81 million) with the primary 

valuation assumption being that same would be suitable for continued use as a fully 

functional and operational fire school. Throughout this initial marketing phase, the 

Facility remained routinely used for mandatory fire training by various industrial 

companies and by numerous local and regional municipal and volunteer firefighting 

departments throughout Upstate New York. 

12. As part of its overall marketing efforts, Company representatives specifically met 

with both Constellation Energy ("Constellation") and Entergy Corporation ("Entergy") in 

October 2003 to discuss the possible sale and transfer of the Property given that both 

entities utilized the Company's sewices and the Facility for fire training in the past, both 

entities had a continuing need to conduct the type of mandatory training that the Facility 

was suited for, and both entities had nuclear power plants located within ten miles of the 

Facility. However, following a series of presentations, tours and follow-up discussions, 



Entergy informed the Company in December 2003 that it was not interested in 

purchasing the Property. After the completion of additional due diligence, the Company 

received a similar notice from Constellation in July 2004. 

13. When it became evident that neither Constellation nor Entergy was interested in 

acquiring the Property, the Company announced that it would discontinue all for-hire fire 

training and that it would close the Facility in the Fall of 2004 following the completion 

of outstanding fire training obligations. This meant that numerous local and regional 

municipal and volunteer firefighting departments throughout Upstate New York would 

need to locate a new source to meet their mandatory fire training requirements. 

Concurrent with the aforesaid announcement, the Company reached out to the following 

entities to let them know that the Property was available for sale and continued use as a 

fire school: (1) Draeger Safety, Inc.; (2) Fire Coordinator for the County; (3) New York 

State Office of Fire Prevention and Control; (4) Kidde Fire Trainers, Inc.; and (5) New 

York State Academy of Fire Science. Despite the broadened notice to these additional 

players in the firefighting industry, only the New York State Academy of Fire Science 

(the "Academy") indicated a possible interest in acquiring the Property at the price being 

offered, although the County expressed a clear interest in acquiring the Facility but made 

it abundantly clear that it did not have the resources to pay anything of value for the 

Property (let alone $1.81 million). Throughout the last quarter of 2004 and early 2005, 

the Company maintained ongoing discussions with the director of the Academy 

concerning possible acquisition of the Property; however, the Academy finally withdrew 

all interest in April 2005. 

14. Given the Company's apparent inability to induce a buyer to pay the then- 

appraised value of the Property (i.e., $1.81 million) and maintain its use going forward as 

a fire training school, especially given that the Property contained significant wetlands 

and was once placed on the NYSDEC's list of Class 2 Inactive Hazardous Waste 

Disposal Sites, the Company had the Property reappraised in the Fall of 2004 to 

determine its worth as general light industrial or commercial use property, which value 

came in at a range established between $1 18,000 and $232,000. When it became evident 



that no one was willing to acquire the Property for continued use as a fire school and that 

the Company was considering the possibility of selling the Property for general light 

industrial or commercial use at a substantially reduced market price, numerous local and 

state politicians (most notably New York State Senator James Wright, who represents the 

48Ih Senate District of New York State which includes Oswego County, Jefferson County 

and a portion of St. Lawrence County) realized that an all too important public resource 

might be lost forever and began a dialogue with the Company that ultimately ended in the 

proposed transaction presented below. 

THE TRANSACTION 

15. The Petitioners entered into a conditional Purchase and Sale Agreement for the 

Property with an effective date of December 14,2006 (the "Agreement"), a copy of 

which is annexed hereto as Exhibit "2". The Agreement sets forth a purchase and sale 

price of Twenty and 0011 00 Dollars ($20.00). The Agreement also contains the 

customary and usual contingencies, including Commission approval of this Petition, and 

various terms and conditions protecting the Company and its ratepayers against undue 

risk. Such protective terms and conditions include the County's agreement to indemnify 

and hold the Company harmless from any future environmental liabilities that might arise 

in connection with the Property, at least up to the first $1 million of costs, even if said 

environmental liabilities were caused or created by past practices of the Company on the 

Property. Importantly, the Agreement provides that the Company will have continued, 

free access to the Facility to meet its foreseeable fire training needs and the Company and 

its ratepayers are protected if any portion of the Property is later sold, used, licensed, 

leased or conveyed for a non-governmental purpose. In such event, the Agreement 

reserves for the Company the optional right, but not the obligation, to re-purchase the 

Property for One and 001100 Dollar ($1.00) (the "Option"), thereby ensuring that the 

Company and its ratepayers (and not the County) will be able to capitalize on any new 

found equity in the Property following the current, proposed transfer of the Property to 

the County for nominal consideration. The Option extends for a period of twenty years 

from the date of Closing. 



16. As herein pertinent, the Petitioners feel that this proposed transaction is in the 

public interest given that the Company will be able to reduce its overall operating and 

occupancy costs (once it is relieved of the burden of real property taxes and ongoing 

maintenance on the Property, which costs are collectively estimated to be approximately 

$200,000 annually) and local and regional firefighting departments will have continued 

access to a first class fire training facility that will help to ensure public safety in the area. 

As indicated herein, the Agreement ensures that the Company will be able to meet its 

periodic and foreseeable (but now substantially reduced) fire training needs and the 

Company and its ratepayers are protected if the Property is no longer used for public 

purposes. 

17. The Company has obtained a total of four appraisals for the Property. In July 

2003, the Property was appraised at $1.81 million as a fire training school. Following the 

inability to attract any interested buyers for continued use as a fire training school, an 

appraisal of the Property was conducted in September 2004 as general light industrial or 

commercial use property that established the total market value to be in a range between 

$1 18,000 and $232,000 when compared to similar properties located in the City of 

Oswego. In September 2005, the appraiser indicated there was no change in the value of 

the Property from the time it was first appraised in September 2004 as general light 

industrial or commercial use property. In January 2007, the appraiser once again 

indicated that there was no change in the value of the Property from when it was re- 

evaluated in September 2005 

18. The transfer of the Property to the County is reasonable and beneficial to the 

Company and its ratepayers because (i) the Facility is presently shut down and it is no 

longer useful as a utility asset; (ii) the Facility has significant value to the County, the 

surrounding communities and the people of the State of New York for continued use as a 

fire training school for municipal and volunteer firefighters; and (iii) the transfer will 

result in lower costs to the Company by eliminating ongoing operation and maintenance 

( " O t M )  expenses and real property tax obligations. No other parties were interested in 



acquiring the Property for use as a fire training school and the appraised value of the 

Property for general light industrial or commercial use was substantially lower than the 

appraised value as a fire training school. In consideration of all of these factors, the 

Company determined that transferring the Property to the County was in the public 

interest. 

RELIEF REQUESTED 

19. Although the Commission had previously authorized the Company to transfer the 

Property by virtue of its book value being $3,000,000 or less, per the Joint Proposal 

Volume Three, Attachment 23, Clause 4.4.2, p.15, of the Company's Merger Rate Plan 

approved by the Commission in Case 01 -M-0075,) the Petitioners request that the 

transfer of the Property to the County be approved under Section 70 of the Public Service 

Law pursuant to a proposed accounting and ratemaking treatment that differs from the 

Commission's decision in the O'Neill ~ r d e r . ~  

20. The transfer by the Company of the Property will in no way inhibit or impact the 

conduct of the Company's business. The Company will retain easement rights for the 

continued use or expansion of all necessary or required electric andlor gas facilities on 

the Property, as well as the right to use the Facility for a dedicated number of days 

annually to meet the periodic fire training needs of its field operations workforce. 

21. The proposed accounting treatment for this transaction was initially discussed 

with the Department of Public Service Staff ("Staff') about the time the Company first 

began to explore a possible transfer to the County in 2005.' The transfer of the Property 

will result in an immediate book loss to the Company. The Company proposes to defer 

3 Case 01 -M-0075, Joint Petition of Niagara Mohawk Holdings, Inc., Niagara Mohawk Power 
Corporation, National Grid Croup plc and National Grid USA for Approval of Merger and Stock 
Acquisition, Opinion and Order Authorizing Merger and Adopting Rate Plan (issued and effective 
December 3,2001). 
1 January 29,2004 Order, at p. I 1 .  
' As early as PowerChoice, the Company had contemplated the possibility of a future nansfer of the 
Property. See p.2 o f  Appendix H in Case 94-E-0098 et.al., Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation - Rates, 
Opinion and Order Adopting Terms of Settlement Agreement (issued and effective March 20, 1998). 



and amortize the deferred book loss of $1,687,998 over the remaining term of the 

Company's Merger Rate Plan. The journal entries proposed to be recorded upon the 

transfer of the Property (the "Closing") and each year thereafter through 201 1 are as 

shown in Exhibit "3" annexed hereto. Deferred federal and state taxes will be provided 

to Staff upon the Closing and said taxes will be reversed as the deferred debit is 

amortized to expense. From the date of the Closing, the Company proposes to retain 

100% of the (i) avoided depreciation expense; (ii) avoided property tax expense; (iii) 

avoided O&M expense; and (iv) tax cash flow enhancement savings. For excess earnings 

purposes, the net loss amortization and savings will be excluded from the Earnings 

Sharing Mechanism provisions detailed in the Merger Joint Proposal. 

22. The proposed accounting differs from the Commission's decision in the O'Neill 

Order. The O'Neill Order addressed the sale of Company facilities that were no longer 

needed as the Company consolidated its operations. The Commission ordered, among 

other things, a 50150 sharing of the loss on the sale of the O'Neill building between 

ratepayers and shareholders as "a natural construction of the merger and rate plan." In 

the instant proceeding involving the proposed transfer of the Property to the County, the 

Company determined that selling the Facility at a substantially reduced price to a buyer 

who would utilize the Property for general industrial or commercial use (and not as a fire 

training school that was otherwise routinely made available to local and regional 

firefighters) was not in the best interest of the local community nor in the best interest of 

the public at large. As the transfer to the County for the sum of Twenty and 00/100 

Dollars ($20.00) is more akin to a donation, the Company proposes an accounting 

treatment that is different and distinct from the O'Neill Order so as not to impose on 

other customers the monetary burden of its decision. 

23. As required by 16 N.Y.C.R.R. Sections 31(f), (g) and (k), annexed hereto as 

Exhibit "l", is the (i) original cost of the land and improvements that comprise the 

Property; (ii) classifications of the Property according to the requirements of the 

Commission's system of accounts; and (iii) original contributions toward construction of 

the Facility. 



24. As required by 16 N.Y.C.R.R. Section 31.1@), (i) and a), also included in Exhibit 

"1 ", as noted above and annexed hereto, is the (i) statement of the estimated accrued 

depreciation of the Property and the method used in arriving at such estimate; (ii) cost of 

the Property as shown on the Company's balance sheets; and (iii) depreciation and 

amortization reserves applicable to the Property. 

25. In accordance with 16 N.Y.C.R.R. Section 31 .I(]), annexed hereto as Exhibit "4", 

is a statement of the net OLM expenses and real property taxes for the Property for each 

of the three fiscal and calendar years respectively preceding the date of this Petition. 

26. In accordance with Part 7 of the Commission's Rules and Regulations and the 

State Environmental Quality Review Act, annexed hereto as Exhibit "Y, is a Short 

Environmental Assessment Form evaluating the potential impacts associated with the 

transfer of the Property to the County. 

27. In support of this Joint Petition, the Company submits hereafter the following 

supporting schedules in accordance with the Commission's Rules and Regulations, 16 

N.Y.C.R.R. Sections 18.1 and 3 1.1(1): 

EXHIBIT A - Statement of Financial Condition 

EXHIBIT B - Income Statement and Balance Sheets 

CONCLUSION 

The Petitioners respectfully assert that this proposed transaction is in the public 

interest given that the Company will be able to reduce its overall operating and 

occupancy costs (once it is relieved of the burden to pay real property taxes and incur 

ongoing maintenance expenses on the Property, which costs are collectively estimated to 

be approximately $200,000 annually) and local and regional firefighting departments will 

have continued access to a first class fire training facility that will help to ensure public 

safety in the area. The Petitioners further assert that the Agreement ensures that the 



Company will be able to meet its periodic and foreseeable (but now substantially 

reduced) fire training n& and the Company and its ratepayers are protected if the 

Property is no longer used for public purposes. 

WHEREFORE, for the above stated reasons, the Petitioners respectfully request 

that the Commission issue an order authorizing the transfer of the Roperty pursuant to 

Section 70 of the Public Service Law in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 

Agreement. 

Respectfully submitted, 
NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION 
d/b/a NATIONAL GRID 

By: 1 
Michael A. Biehler, Esq. 
Associate Counsel 
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 
d/b/a National Grid 
144 Kensington Avenue 
Buffalo, New York 14214 
Telephone: (7 16) 83 1-778 1 
Fax: (3 15) 460-8395 
michael.biehler @us.ngrid.com 

COUNTY OF OSWEGO 

By: 

Richard C. Mitchell, Esq. 
County Attorney 
County of Oswego 
46 East Bridge Street 
Oswego, New York 13 126 
Telephone: (315) 349-8296 
F a :  (315) 349-8298 
rich@oswegocounty.com 

Dated: June 13,2007 



Company will be able to meet its periodic and foreseeable (but now substantially 

reduced) fire training needs and the Company and its ratepayers are protected if the 

Property is no longer used for public purposes. 

WHEREFORE, for the above stated reasons, the Petitioners respectfully request 

that the Commission issue an order authorizing the transfer of the Property pursuant to 

Section 70 of the Public Service Law in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 

Agreement. 

Respectfully submitted, 
NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION 
dh la  NATIONAL GRID 

By: 

Michael A. Biehler, Esq. 
Associate Counsel 
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 
d/b/a National Grid 
144 Kensington Avenue 
Buffalo, New York 14214 
Telephone: (716) 83 1-7781 
Fax: (3 15) 460-8395 
michael.biehler @us.ngrid.com 

Richard C. Mitchell, Esq. 
County Attorney 
County of Oswego 
46 East Bridge Street 
Oswego, New York 13 126 
Telephone: (3 15) 349-8296 
Fax: (3 15) 349-829 8 
rich@oswegocounty.com 

Dated: June 12,2007 



VERIFICATION 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF ERIE 1 

SUSAN M. CROSSlTIT, being duly sworn, deposes and says: I am the Vice 

President, Public Affairs - New York, for NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER 

CORPORATION d/b/a NATIONAL GRID, one of the Petitioners herein: I have read the 

foregoing Joint Petition and know the contents thereof; and the same is true to the best of 

my knowledge except as to matters therein stated to be alleged upon information and 

belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be true. 

@ 
Susan M. Crossen 

Sworn to before me this 
1% *day of June 2007 

Jo Ann C. Ca!anese 
Nota Public, State of New Yok 

Zulualified in Erie County 
My Commission Expires December 5,&/0 



VERIFICATION 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF OSWEGO ) 

RUSS W. JOHNSON, being duly swom, deposes and says: I am the CHAIRMAN OF 

THE LEGISLATURE IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF OSWEGO, one of the Petitioners 

herein; I have read the foregoing Joint Petition and know the contents thereof; and the same is 

true to the best of my knowledge except as to matters therein stated to be alleged upon 

information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be true. 

By: 
RGSS W. ~ h n s o n ,  Chairman 
Oswego ounty Legislature P 

Subscribed and swom to before me 
this /31LSC day of June 2007. 

A. SOMERS 
Public, State of New york 
No. 01s06120507 

Qualified in Oswego Caun 
b m m l s s i o n  Expires Dec. 2 0 , 2 ' g d  

ic,'state of New York 





Niagara Mohawk 
Net Book Value Calculation 

as of March 31,2007 

Original Cost In- 
as of March Service 

Account Year 31,2007 Months 
Fire Trainina Buildlna - Osweao 

58900 1959 1.305.51 

Total Location 1,488,428.35 

Fire School Storaqe BamlShoe 
59000 1996 97.682.89 129 

Fire School Classmom Buildlnq 
59000 1995 820.230.99 141 

rota1 all Locations 2,406,342.23 

Monthly 
Depreciation Accumulated Net Book Value 
Rate .0191/12 Depreciation March 31,2007 

Non Depr 1,305.51 

Annual 
Depreciation 

C:\Docurnents and Settings\aEfdgejLocal Settings\Ternporaty Internet Files\OLKlA4\Oswego Fire School NBV 





EXHJBIT 2 
PURCWSE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

Oswego Fire School Facility 
Property Transfer 

This Purchase and Sale Agmment (this "Agreement") made this 14th day of Demnber, 
2006 ("Effective Date") by and between NIAOARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION, a 
New York corporation, having a place of business at 300 Erie Boulevard West, Syracuse, New 
Yo* 13202 ("Seller") and THE COUNTY OF OSWEGO, a municipal corporation organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of New York, having an address of 46 E. Bridge Street, 
Oswego, New Yo* 13 126 ("Pt~rchaser"). 

1. REAL PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THE SALE. 

Upon and subject to the following terms, wvemnts and conditions, Seller agrees to sell 
and wnvey and Purchaser agrees to purchase the real property and improvements 
commonly known as 720 East Seneca Street, Oswego, New York, a/k/a known as tax 
parcel # 110.84-2-1.12 and consisting of approximately 20.8+1- a m  real properly, all as 
more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof, together 
with all rights, privileges, -ents and appurtenance to the Real Property, including 
without l i tat ion all right, title and interest of Seller in and to all streets, alleys, 
easements (with the exception of the easement rights retained by the Seller herein) and 
rights of way in, on, across, in front of, abutting, adjoining or pertaining to the real 
property but subject to the "Schedule of Exclusions and Reservations" set forth on 
Exhibit B attached hereto (the "Real Property"). 

2. 'ITIZE; DEED. 

2.1 Title h ~ ~ 4 o n  Period, Dwing the pesiod beginning upon the Effective Date and 
ending at 5:00 p.m. (local time at the Real Propaty) on that date which is forty-five (45) 
days after the Effective Date (hereinah referred to m the "Title 111~pedion Periodn), 
Purchaser shall have the right, at its sole cost and expense, to perform whatever title 
inquiry it deems appropriate for its purposes. At or prior to the expiration of the T i e  
Inspection Period, Purchaser shall notify Seller in writing (the "Title Notice") which 
exceptions to title, if any, will not be accepted by Purchaser. If Purchasa fails to notify 
Seller in writing of its disapproval of any exceptions to title by the expiration of the Title 
Inspection Period, Purchaser shall be deemed to have approved the condition of title to 
the Real Property as of the expiration of the Title Inspection Period. If Purchaser so 
notifies Seller in writing that Purchaser objects to any exceptions to title, Seller shall have 
twenty (20) days after receipt of the Title Notice to notify Purchaser that Seller will 
either: (a) remove such objectionable exceptions irom title on or before the Closing Date; 
or (b) that Seller is unable or unwilling to remove such exceptions to title on or before the 
Closing Date. Failure of Seller to so notify Purchaser shall be deemed to be an e l d o n  
by Seller of Subparagraph 2.1@) above. If Seller gives Purchaser notice or is deemed to 
have given notice under Subparagraph 2.1@) above, Purchaser shall have ten (10) 
business days in which to notify Seller that Purchaser will either take title to the Real 
Property subject to such exceptions, or that Purchaser will terminate this Agreement. If 
this Agreement is termbated pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this paragraph, then 
neither party shall have any W e r  rights or obligations hereunder (except with respect to 
those provisions that expressly survive the termination of this Agmmact), the Deposit 
(as such term is defined in Paragraph 3(b) below) shall be promptly returned to Purchaser 
and each party shall bear its own wsts i n c d  hereunder. If Purchaser shall fail to 
notify Seller of its election within said ten-day period, Purehaser shall be deemed to have 
elected to take title to the Real Propaty subject to such exceptions. 



Section 2.2 Pmnitted Title Exdons .  The R.opaty shall be conveyed subject to the 
following matters, which are hereinafter refared to as the "Permitted Title Exceptions": 

a) Lmal, state and fedad laws, ordinances or govemnmtal regulations, includii but 
not limited to, the provisions of local building and zoning laws, but not any 
violations thenof; 

b) Such real estate taxes andlor assessments (including any water andla sewer charges 
a special assessments, if any) for the then current fiscal year as are not yet due and 
payable on the date of delivery of the Deed (as such term is defined Paragraph 2.3 
below); 

c) All those title mattas that are accepted (or deemed accepted) by Plrrchasa pursuant 
to Subparagraph 2.1 above; 

d) The "Schedule of Exclusions and Reservations" set forth on Exhibit B attached 
hereto and incorpomted Mi 

e) Seller's Mortgage Indenam (subjca to the issuance of a 1- of indemnification to 
be delivered at the closing by the Seller pursuant to P m g q h  14 below); and 

f )  The tam "Permitted Title Exceptions" shall also inchxie any new title mettas that 
appear of m r d  prior to the Closing Date but afta any update of title following the 
Title Inspection Period (as set forth in Subparagraph 2.1 above) unless objected to in 
writing by Purchaser. 

Section 2.3 D e l i  of Deed. Said Reel PFOperty is to be conveyed via Quitclaim deed 
("Deed") running to the Purchaser; and said Deed shall convey title thereto subject to 
Permitted Title Exceptions. 

The agreed purchase price for the Real Property is Twenty and 00/100 Dollars ($20.00) 
(the "Pornbase Price"), which is subject to adjustments, credits and prorations set forth 
herein, and shall be paid aamdii to the following schedule: 

a) W i  five (5) business days &a ikll execution of this Agrermaq Five and 00/100 
Dollars ($5.00) is to be paid by Pllrchaser to Sella as a good-faith, earnest money 
deposit (the UDepoaii) to be held in escrow by Seller; and 

b) Upon delivexy of the Daad, the Ptucheser shall pay to Sella the then unpaid balance 
of the Purchase Price by wire transfer, certified check or bank cheek payable to 
Seller. 

' Z h e W e r s b e l l h o l d t h e ~ t i n * i c r o w i n ~ w i t h t h e t e m r s a n d o o n d i t i o a s  
of this Agreement Unlcss the Seller defaults & the tenns of this Agreement or unless 
Purchaser terminates this Agreement prior thereto or unless specifically set fnth herein 
otherwise, the Deposit shall b m e  non-refidable on the forty-sixth (46*) day 



-ately following the Effective Date of this Agreemat If Pwchaser fails to d e l i  
the Deposit to Seller pursuant to the tenns hereof after the expiration of any applicable 
notice and cure period, then the same shall be a material default and shall entitle the 
SeUer, at the Seller's option, to terminate this Agnanem (unless such unpaid Deposit is 
made by Plnchaser prior to any notice of tenninetion issued by Seller) and the Seller shall 
be entitled to retain any portion of the Deposit held in escrow by  sell^ at the time of the 
default (it being further agreed and understood that the Purchaser shall remain liable to 
Seller for any unpaid portion of the Deposit not yet paid but otherwise due and owing 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement). 

FROM AND Almx TEE EXPIRATION OF THE ABOVE DATES AM) IN TEE 
EVENT THE SALE OF THE REAL PROPERTY AS CONTEMPLATED 
HEREUNDER IS NOT CONSUMMATED AS A RESULT OF A DEFAULT ON 
THE PART OF PURCHASER THAT HAS NOT BEEN CURED IN ANY 
APPLICABLE NOTICE AND CURE PERIOD, THE DEPOSIT (OR THE 
PORTION OF THE DEPOSIT WHICH WAS DUE AND PAYABLE BY 
PURCHASER) SHALL BE RETAINED BY SELLER AS LIQUIDATED 
DAMAGES. TEE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT SELLER'S ACTUAL 
DAMAGES IN THE EVENT THAT THE SALE IS NOT CONSUMMATED 
WOULD BE EXTREMELY DIFFICULT OR IMPRACTICABLE TO 
DETERMINE; THEREFORE, BY SEPARATELY EXECUTING THIS 
SECTION BELOW, THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE DEPOSIT 
HAS BEEN AGREED UPON, AFTER NEGOTIATION, AS THE PARTIES' 
REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF SELLER'S DAMAGES AND AS SELLER'S 
EXCLUSIVE REMEDY AGAINST PURCHASER IN THE EVENT THE 
CLOSING DOES NOT OCCUR AS A RESULT OF A DEFAULT ON THE PART 
OF PURCHASER AND AS SELLER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY 
AGAINST PURCHASER ARISING FROM SUCH FAILURE OF THE SALE TO 
CLOSE. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, IN NO EVENT SHALL 
THIS SECTION LIMIT THE DAMAGES RECOVERABLE BY EITHER PARTY 
AGAINST THE OTHER PARTY DUE TO: (A) THE OTHER PARTY'S 
OBLIGATION TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD SUCH PARTY HARMLESS IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THIS AGREEMENT, OR (B) THIRD PARTY CLAIMS 
OR (C) PURCHASER'S OBLIGATION TO FURNISH TO SELLER, AT 
SELLER'S REQUEST AND FREE OF CHARGE, COPIES OF ANY 
ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTS (WITHOUT A CORRESPONDING RELUNCE 
CERTIFICATE) RECEIVED BY PURCHASER RELATING TO ANY 
INSPECTION OF THE REAL PROPERTY AT NO COST TO SELLER BY 
SEPARATELY EXECUTING THIS SECTION BELOW, PURCHASER AND 
SELLER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD 
THE ABOVE PROVISIONS COVERING LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. 

Nhpra Mohawk Power Corpomtion 



4. CLOSING. 

The Deed is to be delivered to Purcham at the offices of the Oswego County Clerk in the 
C i  of Oswego, New York 13126 or at such other place as the parties may agree in 
writing. Delivay of the Deed by Seller and delivery of the Purchase Price by the 
Purchaser shall occur at such location on the date which is twenty (20) business days 
after satisfaction or waiver by Seller of Seller's Appmval Conditions (as that tenn is 
defined in Paragraph 22(a) below) (hereinafter the "Closing Date"). If the Closing Date 
comes and goes and there has been no Closing then, in such event, either party may upon 
ten (lo) days advance written notice to the other party to this A-ent, declare that 
time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

5. CONDITION OF REAL PROPERTY. 

Subjed to the Pamitted Tile Exceptions (inclusive of the "Schedule of Exclusions and 
Res~m" set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto), possession of the Real Propaty is 
to be delivered to the Purchaser at the time of the delivery ofthe Deed, the Real hopaty 
to be then: 

a) in substantially the same condition in which it is now; 

b) not in violation of any building or zoning laws; and 

The Purchaser shall be entitled to an inspection of the Real Roperty within forty-eight 
(48) hours of the date scheduled for delivery of the Deed in order to determine whether 
the condition thenof complies with the terms of this Paragraph 5. 

If the Real Property does not conform with the pmvisiom h d  dw to circumstance 
beyond Seller's control, then Seller shall use d l e  &oats to make the Real Property 
conform to the provisions hereof, in which event the Seller shall give written notice 
thereof to Fbmhaw at or before the time for performance hereunder, and thereupon the 
time for performance hereof, shall be e x t d  for a period of thirty (30) days. Despite 
the foregoing obligation to use reasonable efforts to deliver the Real Property in 
conformity with the provisions haeof, Seller shall not be obligated to spend more than 
the Deposit cumulatively in order to make the Real Property conform hereto andlor to 
remove any lien or encumbrance such as a mechanic's or materialman's lien which is 
recorded against the Real Propahl after the Title Inspection Period set forth in 
Subparagraph 2.1 above. 

7. FAILURE TO MAKE REAL PROPERTY CONFORM. 

If, at the expiration of the extended time, the Seller shall have failed to make the Real 
Ropaty conform (i being tmdastmd that the Purchaser shall acoept all Permitted Tile 
Exceptions), then at P u r c W s  option, all obligations of the parties her& shall cease, 
the Deposit shall be mtumed to PuFchaser, and this Agmanent shall be null and void and 



without recourse. to the parties hereto, except with respect to those pmvisiom that 
expressly survive the termination of this Agreement 

8. PURCHASER'S ELECTION TO ACCEPT 'ITIZE. 

Purchaser shall have the election, at either the original or any octended time for 
performance, to accept the Deed and take title and possession of the Real Properly in 
such condition as Seller is able and willing to deliver. 

9. EMINENT DOMAIN OR CASUALTY. 

a) Eminent Domain. If prior to the Closing Date any portion of the Real Pmpezty is 
taken or proposed to be taken or if the access is actually or proposed to be reduced ot 
restricted by adoption of a resolution thereof by the applicable authority for any 
public or quasi-public use in condemnation pmceedii  or via right of eminent 
domain or deed in Lieu thereof. Seller shall, within ten (10) days of the receipt of 
knowledge or notice thereof, but in no event no later than the Closing Date, notify 
Purchaser of such fact in writing and provide any and all information in Seller's 
possession concerning the same. If Seller receives such notice within sixty days of 
the Closing Date, said Closing Date shall be automatically extended for twenty-one 
(21) days if Purchaser elects to so extend the same. The Purchaser shall have the 
right to termbate this Agreemeat upon written notice to the Seller given no later than 
twenty-one (21) days after receipt of Seller's notice and notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary contained herein, Purchaser will receive a refimd of the Deposit. If this 
Agreement is so terminated, neither party shall have any further rights or obligations 
hereunder, except with respect to those pmvisions that expressly survive the 
termination of this A-ent. If the Purchaser does not exercise this right to 
tamhate this Agreement, the parIies shall proceed pwsuant to the terms hereof, and 
Seller shall assign and turn over, and the P u r c b  shall be entitled to receive and 
keep, all awards, mmpemation or consideration received or to be received for the 
portion of the Real Property to be purchased hereunder, it being M e r  agreed and 
understood that the Seller shall have the right to make a separate claim and recover 
from the condemning authority such compensation as may be awarded to Seller for 
the value of its excl1~3ions and reserved easement rights and for the value of its 
fixtures andlor equipment situate thereon, along with any requisite moving andlor 
relocation cost., attributable themto, and it b e i i  *her agreed and ~mderstood that 
in no case shall Purchaser retain any amounts in excess of the Purchase Price (with 
any overage belonging to Seller). The aforesaid compensation provisions of this 
Paragraph 9(a) shall survive the delivery of the Deed. 

b) CasudW* (i) If prim to the Closing Date any pation of the Real Propaty sfleas a 
loss or is damaged due to casualty, Seller shall, within ten (10) days of the receipt of 
knowledge or notice thereof, but in no event no latex than the Closing Date, notify 
Purchaser of such fact in writing and provide any and an non-privileged information 
in Seller's possession concerning the same If Sella receives such notice within thirty 
(30) days of the Closing Date, said Closing Date shall be automatically extended for 
twenty-one (21) days if Purchaser elects to so extend the same. In the event of a 
"major" (as heninafter defined) loss or damage to the Real Propex@, the Purchaser 
shall have the right to terminate this A-ent upon written notice to the Seller 
given no later than twenty-one (21) days after receipt of Seller's notice and 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained hereii Purchaser will receive a 



refund of the Deposit. If this Agreement is so terminated, neither party shall have 
any fintha rights or obligations hereunder, except with respect to those provisiom 
that expressly survive the termination of this Agreement. 

(ii I f  the loss or damage is not "major", or if the Pwchaw does not exercise this right to 
terminate this Agreement, then this Agmmmt shall ranain in full force and effect, 
provided that Seller shall, at Seller's option, either (1) perform any necessary repairs, 
or (2) assign to Putchaser all of Seller's right, title and inter& in and to any 
insurance proceeds Seller has received with respect to any casualty insurance policies 
relating to the Real Propeaty (with an adjustment on the Closing Statement for any 
deductible amount related thaeto), it being firrtha agreed and understood that the 
Seller shall have the right to make a separate claim and m v e r  from the insurer such 
wmpensation as may be awarded to Seller for the value of its fu~tum andlor 
equipment situate thereon, along with any requisite moving andlor relocation costs 
attributable thereto, and it being further agreed and understood that in no case shall 
Purchaser retain any amounts in excess of the Purchase Price (with any overage 
belonging to Seller). The aforesaid wmpensation provisions of this Paragraph 9@) 
shall survive the delivery of the Deed. In the event that Seller elects to perform 
repairs upon the Real Property, Seller shall use reasonable efforts to wmplete such 
repairs promptly and the date of Closing shall be extended a reasonable time in order 
to allow for the completion of such repairs. Upon Closing, full risk of loss with 
respect to the Real Property shall pass to Purchaser. 

(i) For pmpos*r ofthis subsection, "Major" loss or damage refas to damage to the 
Real Property due to a casualty such that the cost of repairing or restoring the 
impmvements on the Real Property to substantially the same condition which existed 
prior to the event of damage would be, in the opinion of an architect selected by 
Seller and m n a b l y  approved by Purchaser, equal to or greater than $250,000.00. 
If Purchaser does not give written notice to Seller of Purchaser's reasons for 
disapproving an d t e c t  within five (5) business days after receipt of Seller's notice 
of the proposed architect, Purchaser shall be deemed to have appmed the architect 
selected by Seller. 

10. APPORTIONMENTS. 

Water and sewa charges, if any, assessmaaS (special or othawise), and real estate taxes 
for the then cweot year sball be apportioned as of the Closing Date and the net amount 
thereof shall be added to or subtracted from, as the case may be, the Purchase Price 
payable by the Purchaser at the time of delivery of the Deed. 

If the amount of said charges, assessments, or taxes is not known at the time of the 
delivery of the Deed, they shall be apportioned on the basii of the chargs, assessmmts, 
or taxes assessed for the preceding year, with a reapportionment as soon as the new 
charge, assessment, or tax rate and valuation can be ascertained; and, if the charges, 
assessments, or taxes which are to be apportioned shall thereafter be reduced by 
abatement, the amount of such abatement, less the reasonable cost of obtaining the same, 
shall be apportioned between the parties hereto, provided that neither party shall be 
obligated to institute or prosecute pmceedings for an abatement unless hereii otherwise 
agreed. As a condition p d e n t  to the Closing, the Purchaser shall have established a 
new account for utility services that are delivered (or to be delivered) to the Real Property 



by the Seller and the parties shall have established a location and method for due and 
proper metering of said utilities to the Real Property, said location and method to be 
reasonably acceptable to Purchaser and in 111 compliance with the Seller's tariff for such 
services. The provisions of this Paragraph 10 shall survive the delivery of the Deed. 

11. INSURANCE. 

' Tk  Real Property shall, until delivery of the Deed to Purchaser, be kept insured by Seller 
in the same manner similar property owned by the Seller is insured !?om time to time. 

12. DEFAULT; DAMAGES. 

(a) The Purchaser shall be in default hereunder if the Seller sends a notice of default to 
Purchaser (which notice shall specify in detail the nature of the alleged default) and 
Purchaser then fails to cure any such alleged default within five (5) business days of 
its receipt of such written notice (provided, however, if such alleged default is not 
reasonably capable of being cured within said five (5) day period, such failure to cure 
shall not constitute an event of default so long as Seller undertakes affirmative acts to 
cure such default within said five (5) day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes 
the same to completion; it being tinther agreed that the mere inability to pay an 
amount owed hereunder due to financid troubles shall not give the Purchaser the 
right to extend the cure period). In the event of such default and Purchaser's failure 
to cure within the applicable cure period, the Seller shall have the right to terminate 
this Agreement and the Deposit shall be held by Seller as liquidated damages as 
provided in Paragraph 3 and this Agrment shall be d l  and void and without 
recourse to the parties hereto, except for any provisions of this Agreement which by 
their terms shall survive said termination 

@) In the event the sale of the Real Propaty as amkmplated herermder is not 
colrrummated due to SeUer's default hereunder, and the P~nchasa has sent written 
notice of such alleged default to Seller (which notice shall specify in detail the nature 
of the alleged default) and the Seller thereafter fails to cure any such alleged default 
within five (5) business days of its receipt of such written notice (provided, however, 
if such failure is not reasonably capable of being cured within said five (5) day 
period, such failure shall not constitute an event of default so long as Seller 
undertakes afknative acts to cure such failure within said five (5) day period and 
thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completiog it beiig further agreed that 
the mere inability to pay an amount owed hereunder due to fmancial troubles shall 
not give the Seller the right to extend the cure period); THEN, IN SUCH EVENT, 
THE PURCHASER SHALL HAVE TAE RIGHT TO CHOOSE ONE OF 
ONLY TWO (2) LIQUIDATED REMEDIES: (A) TERMINATE THIS 
AGREEMENT AND RECEIVE A RETURN OF THE DEPOSIT, AND THIS 
AGREEMENT SHALL THEN BE NULL AND VOID AND WITFIOUT 
RECOURSE TO THE PARTIES HERETO, EXCEPT FOR ANY 
PROVISIONS OF TRIS AGREEMENT WHICH BY THEIR TERMS SHALL 
SURVIVE SAID TERMINATION OR (B) ELECT, AS TO ITS SOLE 
REMEDY, THE RIGRT TO BRlNG AN ACTION AGAINST SELLER FOR 
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. IT BEING EXPRESSLY AGREED AND 
UNDERSTOOD BY THE PARTIES HERETO THAT (i) THE FAILURE OF 
SELLER TO SATISFY OR WAIVE "SELLER APPROVAL CONDITIONS" 
(AS LATER DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 22(a) BELOW), EACH OF WHICH 
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ARE AND HEREBY BECOME A CONDITION PRECEDENT TO SELLER'S 
OBLIGATION TO CLOSE HEREUNDER SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AN 
EVENT OF DEFAULT WHICH WOULD ALLOW THE PURCHASER TO 
BRING AN ACTION FOR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE HEREUNDER AND 
(iii IN BRINGING SUCH AN ACTION. THE PURCHASER HEREBY 
AGREES THAT SELLER SHALL NOT THEREAlTER BE LIABLE TO 
PURCHASER IN ANY WAY FOR ANY ACTUAL OR ALLEGED DAMAGES 
OF PURCHASER WHICH ARE INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR 
INDIRECT IN NATURE AND THE PURCHASER HEREBY EXPRESSLY 
WAIVES ANY SUCH OTHER CLAIM(S) WON THE COMMENCEMENT 
OF SUCH AN ACTION FOR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

Despite Seller's default hereunder, Seller shall be entitled to retain any statancnts, 
reports, documents, schedules, exhiiits or other written infbmation o b W  from 
Purchaser in connection with this Agreanent or the tramaction contanplated herein 
freeofcharge. 

BY SEPARATELY EXECUTING THIS SECTION 12, PURCHASER AND 
SELLER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD 
THE ABOVE PROVISIONS COVERING DEFALLT AND W M R  OF 
REMEDIES. 

13. ACCEPTANCE OF DEED. 

7be aoaptana of a Deed by the Rochaser shall be deaned to be a 111 -ce and 
discharge of evay agreement and obligation haein contained or expressed, except such 
as are, by the terms hereof, to be performed after the delivery of said Deed, and such as 
are otherwise expressly statad to survive the delivery of the Deed. Seller shall pmvide 
the Purchaser's attorney with a copy of the proposed deed at least fifteen (15) business 
days prior to Closing. 

14. USE OF PURCHASE MONEY TO CLEAR TITLE. 

To enable the Seller to make conveyance as herein provided, the Seller shall be obligated 
to use the purchase money or any portion thereof to clear the title to the Real Property of 
any or all emumbrmce or ioter*l*i which are not Permitted Tile Exceptions. At closing, 
FWckm agrees that Seller shall provide Purchaser with a letter of indemnification 
pmviding that the Seller shall prarne and deliver to Purchaser for recording a release 
f b n  the lien of Seller's Mortgage Indenture, with such release being pmvided to 
Purchaser within sixty (60) days immediately after the Closing Date. 

15. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT. 



This instnmKnt is to be constmd as a New York oontract and it sets forth the entire 
agreement betwem the parties, supersedes any prior ageemens between the parties, is 
biding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective legal 
representatives, successors and assigns, and may be canceled, mcdified or amended only 
by a written instrument executed by both the Seller and the Purchaser. The captions and 
marginal notea are used only as a matter of convenience and are not to be considered a 
part of this Agreement or to be used in determining the intent of the parties to it. The 
parties also acknowledge that they had an opportunity to consult legal counsel prior to the 
execution hereof and that the n o d  rule of construction (which would pmvide that any 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party) shall not be employed in the 
interpmtion of this Agreement or any exhibits. 

It is understood and agreed by the parties that if the Real Roperty shall not be in 
conformity with the titIe provisions of this and if title to the Real Property is 
insurable for the benefit of Pt~rcheser by a title insurance company in a fee o m ' s  
policy of title insurance at normal rates, then said policy may be purchased by Purchaser 
at its sole cost and expense. 

17. BENEFITS AND OBLIGATIONS; NO THIRD PARTY BENEmCIAlUES. 

No party o t b  timn the patties hereto or their respective successors and assigns shall have 
any right or benefit herein, including without l i o n ,  the right to insist upon or 
enforce against either SeUer or P u r c b  the performance of all or any of their respective 
obligations hereunder, and no such third party shall be deemed to have received any 
benefit as a result of any provisions of this Aptemem 

18. SELLW'S OBLIGATIONS PRIOR TO CLOSING. 

Exapt in the ordinary m e  of its business, Seller covarants and agrees that, without 
the prior written consent of Purchaser (whose consent shall not be umeaso~bly withheld, 
delayed or conditioned), Seller shall not take any affirmative action which might further 
encumber the title to the Real Property in any manner following the Title Inspection 
Period set forth in Subpengraph 2.1 above. 

19. NOTICE. 

Any notice quired or permitted to be given hemmda shall be in writing and delivered 
by hand with a receipt therefore given by the recipient or mailed postage prepaid by 
r e g i d  or certified mail, return receipt reqvcsted, addressed to the parties as follows: 

If to the Sell= N i M d r e w k P o w e r ~ o n  
300 Erie Boulevard West 
Syracuse, New York 13202 
Attention: Pat Reap 
Principal Analyst 

Niagara Mohawk Power Corpomtion 



144 Kensington Avenue 
Buffalo, NY 14214 
Attention: Michael Bidrler, Associate Counsel 

If to I'udlaser: County of Oswego 
46 E. Bridge Street 
Oswego, New York 13126 
Attention: Stephen P. Lyman 
County Administrator 

with a copy to Pllrchaser's attorney: 

Richard C. Mitchell, Esq. 
county Attorney 
County of Oswego 
46 E. Bridge Street 
Oswego, New York 13126 

Any such notice shall be deemed properly saved and delivered for all purposes 
hereunder at the time such notice is delivered, if hand-deliver&, or at the time i n d i d  
as stamped by any post ofice regularly maintained by the United States Postal Authority, 
if mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested and regular mail or upon a parties' 
receipt if delivered by reputable overnight mail service which obtains a signed receipt for 
delivery. 

20. LIABKZTY OF SHAREHOLDER, TRUSTEE OR BENEFICIARY. 

If a party hereto is a copomtion, no shareholder, officer or employee, or if a party hereto 
is a tmst, no tmtcc. or bediciary of the !rust, shall be personally liable for any 
obligation, expms or implied hereunder. If SeUer and Purchaser disclose in its execution 
of this Agreement that it is acting in a representative or fiduciary capacity, only the 
principal or estate represented shall be bowxi. If more than one person is named herein 
as Purchaser or Seller respectively, their obligations hereunder shall be joint and several. 

21. ACCESS AND INSPECIION. 

The Pllrchaser and its agents, ind- contractors and invitees shall have the right 
until the foq-fifth (45th) day following the Effective Date of this Agmnmt, at 
Purch.4~ expense, to enter upon the Real Property for the purpose of inspecting the 
Real Property, and conducting any surveys, borings, permlation tests, soil tests, 
measunments, emhmmhl studies, mginemhg studies and any other tests and actions 
which the F'mhaw reasonably desires to determine the suitability of the Real Property 
for purchase (including its title review which shall be conducted and governed, in part, by 
the terms and conditions imposed under Paragraph 2.1 abovexthe "Inspection Period"). 
If Purchaser desires to update the existing abstract of title or to obtaii title insurance or an 
instrument survey of the Real Property, such acts shall be at Purchaser's sole cost and 
expense. If Purchaser desires to do any inspection or testing at the Real Property, 
Purchaser shall do so only after noti@ng Seller in writing of its proposed intentions 



(describing the intended activity with reasonable specificity) and subject to any teams and 
conditions imposed by Seller in its sole discretion, including, without limitation, the 
prompt restoration of the Real Property to substantially the same condition it was in prior 
to any such inspections or tests, at Purchaser's sole cost and expense. Purchaser 
acknowledges and understands that the Seller reserves the rigtrt but not the obligation to 
inspect and supervise any activities of Purchaser or its agents on the Real Property. 
Before entering upon the Real Property, Purchaser shall furnish to Seller evidence of 
general liability insurance coverage in such amounts and insuring against such risks as 
Seller may reasonably quire. Purchaser understands and agrees that any on-site 
inspections of the Real Propaty shall occur at reasonable times agreed upon by Seller 
and Purchaser after reasonable prior notice to Seller and shall be conducted so as not to 
interfere unreasonably with the use of the Real Property by Seller. Purchaser shall be 
solely responsible for all costs and expenses associated with its due diligence hemder, 
including any costs associated with obtaining any permits, licenses or similar approvals 
deemed nexssary or desirable for the work contemplated. Purchaser shall observe and 
comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, ordinances and regulations 
in the conduct of its activities hereunder. Purchaser shall finther not cause waste or 
damage to the Real Property. Upon the request of Seller, Pmhaser shall furnish to Seller 
copies of any engineering studies, surveys, tats, and other reports received by Purchaser 
relating to the Real Property (collectively the "Reports") within a reasonable period of 
time following such request, which obligation shall survive the delivery of the Deed or 
any termination of this Agreement). Purchaser agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and 
hold Seller harmless fmm and against any lien or claim for liabilities, lases, costs, 
expenses (including rtasonable attorneys' fees), damages or injuries arising from or in 
connection with any of the activities conducted by Pmdulser or its agents in this 
Paragraph 21. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Purchaser's 
obligation to protect, indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless as aforesaid shall 
survive the delivery of the Deed or any termination of this Agreement. 

In the event that Purchaser, in its sole discretion, is not satisfied with the results of its 
kpxtion for any reason or no reason at all &en the Purchaser may at its option 
tamhate the Agreunent upon written notice to Seller within the Inspection Period. If 
Purchaser so notifies Seller on or before the expiration of the Inspection Period, the 
Deposit will be refunded and rehnned to Rnchsser. If If so notifie Seller after 
the expiration of the Inspection Period, the Seller shall be entitled to retain the Deposit 
Provided Seller's notice to terminate is made within the Inspection Period, this 
Agreement shall be null and void and without recourse to the parties hereto except for 
any provisions of this Agreement which by their terms shall survive termination. 

22. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER; SELLER APPROVAL 
CONDITIONS. 

To induce F'udmer to enter into this Agr&ment, Seller hereby makes the following 
material npresentations and warranties, all of which are trw and correct as of the date of 
this Agreement, shall be true and correct as of the date of the delivery of the Deed, and 
shall survive the delivery ofthe Deed: 

a) Subject to "Seller Approval Conditions" (as defined below), Seller has the MI power, 
right and authority to enter into this Agreanent. ''Seller Approval Conditions" shall 
mean and include: (i) Seller's receipt and acceptance of all requisite governmental andlor 



regulatory approvals on terms and conditiorrs which are acceptable to Seller in its sole 
discretion as are required for the sale of the Real Properly, including, but not limited to, 
the regulatory treatment of the proceeds from the sale of the Real Properly that is 
acceptable to the Seller (such approvals to include, but not be l i i  to, NYS Public 
Service Law Section 70 approval h m  the New York State Public Service Commission) 
("External Approval(s)") and (ii) senior managanent approval of this Agreement andfor 
approval of this proposed transaction by the Seller's board of d i i o r s ,  if deemed 
necasary or desirable by Seller ("Internal Approval"). Seller shall use reasonable good 
faith efforts to obtain Internal Approval on or before the end of the Title Inspection 
Period a d ,  if so approved, shall t h d e r  seek to obtain all requisite External 
Approval(s). If Seller is not able to obtain either Intanal Appmval and/or all requisite 
External Appmval(s) on terms and conditions which are acceptable to Seller in its sole 
discretion; then, in such event, all obligations of the parties hereto shall cease, the 
Deposit shall be rebaed to Purchaser, and this Agmment shall be null and void and 
without recourse to the parties hereto, except with respect to those provisions that 
expressly survive the termhation of this Agreement 

b) Subject to Subpmgraph 22(a) above, this Ageenmt, and the documents to be executed 
and delivered by Seller in connection with the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement, are and will be valid, biding and e n f m b l e  upon 
Seller in accordance with their respective terms and conditions. 

C) Seller is not a f d g n  corporaton, =go padnuship, foreign trust or f d g n  estate (as 
those terms an defined in the M d  Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and Income 
Tax Regulations) for purposes of United States income taxation 

d) SeUer has not filed any petition, nor has the Seller been the party against whom a petition 
has been filed in relation to any bankruptcy, insolvency, request for reorganization, 
assignment for benefit of creditors, for the appointment of a receiver or hustee, or for the 
arrangement of debt, nor to the best of Seller's knowledge is any such action threatened 
or contemplated 

23. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER 

To hduce Seller to enter into this Agreement, Purcheser M y  makes the following 
material representatom and wanantie, all of which are hue and corred as of the date of 
this A m  shall be hue and coned as of the date of the delivery of the Deed, and 
shall survive the delivery of the Deed: 

a) Pmhaser has the Ml power, right and authority to enter into this Agreement 

b) This Agrrewnt and the documents to be executed and delivered by Pmhwr in 
camecfion with the ccmummation of the tmmactions contemplated by this 
Agreement are and will be valid, b d i  and enforceable upon PuFchasa in 
accordance with their respective terms and conditions. 

c) Pmhwr has not filed any petition, nor has the PllrcbaPer been the party against 
whom a petition has been filed in relation to any bankruptcy, insolvency, request for 
reorganization, assignment for benefit of creditors, for the appointment of a receiver 
or trustee, or for the arrangement of debt, nor to the best of Purchaser's knowledge is 
any such action threatened or contemplated. 



24. DEPOSIT. 

The Deposit made h d  shall be held by the Seller in escrow in a non-interest 
bearing account, pursuant to the tamJ set forth henin. 

25. BROKER 

Seller and Purchaser represent each to the other that they have not engaged any broker, 
entered into a listing agreement or other contract or otherwise retained a broker in 
connection with the Real Property. Each party shall indemnify, defend and hold the other 
hmnless h m  and against any loss, cost or damage suffered or i n d  by the other as a 
result of a breach of the foregoing representation. The representations and obligations 
under this Paragraph shall survive the delivery of the Deed or, if the sale of the Real 
Property does not occur, the termination of this Agreement. 

S i m I y  with the delivery of the Deed, Seller shall deliver to Pudmer the 
following documents to be prepared by Sella: 

a) Such documents as the Rychaser may reasonably request to evidence due 
authorization to deliver the Deed or any other document required by this Agreement, 

b) An affidavit satisfying the requkments of Sedion 1445 of the Internal Revenue 
Code and regulations issued themmder, stating lmda paralty of pejury Seller's 
address and United States taxpayer identification number and that Seller is not a 
foreign person; 

c) Internal Revenue Smice Form W-8 or Form W-9 as applicable. 

27. CLOSING COSTS. 

The Pmchaser shall be responsible for the payment at closing of the following costs 
associated with the trsnsfer of the Real Prom the transfer taxes and recording fees of 
documents necessary to clear the title to the Real Property (it being understood that the 
Purchaser shall accept all Pamitted Title Exceptions). The Purchaser shall further be 
responsible for the payment at closing of the following costs associated with the transfer 
of the Real Property: costs for recording of the Deed and other documents necessary to 
transfer title to Purchaser. 

28. ENVIRONMENTAL CONDlTION AND DISCLOSURE 

a) Purchass acknowledges that the Real Prom was the site of a =lease, or threat of 
release, of "tl.Prd011~ Materialsw (as such term is defined below). Pllrrhsser 
a c k n o w l ~  that Seller has provided Purchaser with a copy of oertain 
environmental repxts listed in Exhibit C (the "Envinmmental Reports"). Seller 
makes no representations, either express or implied, as to the truth or accuracy of the 
Environmental Reports or any such other documents or information, all of which are 



being provided by Seller for the sole use and benefit of Pllrchsser and may not be 
relied upon or provided to any third party without the prior written consent of Seller. 
For purposes of this Agnement, the term "Hazardous Materialsn shall mean and 
inchde any oils, petroleum products, manufadwed gas wsstes and any other toxic or 
hamdous wastes, materials and substances which are defined, determined or 
identified as such in any applicable "Environmental Lawsn (as such term is defined 
below), or in any judicial or administrative interpretation of Environmental Laws. 
"Environmental Laws" shall mean any and aU federal, state and local statutes, laws, 
regulations, ordinances, rules, judgments, orders, decrees or other governmental 
requirements or restrictions relating to the emhnment or to emissions, discharges or 
releases of pollutants, cmtamhmts, petroleum or petroleum products, chemicals or 
industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or wastes into the environment, including, 
without limitation, ambient air, surface water, ground water or land, or otherwise 
relating to the manufaam, processing, distribution, use, treatment, stwage, disposal, 
transport or handling of pollutants, contaminants, petroleum or petroleum products, 
chemicals or industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or wastes or the cleanup or 
other remediation thereof. The tenn "Seller-Created Environmental Conditions" 
shall mean any past, present, and Future Releases (as that tenn is defined in 
Paragraph #30(aKii) below) or threats of release of Hazardous Materials at, on or 
from the Real Property that islare directly and solely attributable to the ads or 
omissions to act of Seller but shall not include any past, present, and Future Releases 
or threats of release that islare c a d  by or is attriiuhble to, in whole or in part, the 
acts or omissions to act of any other person or entity that is not the Seller (with all 
such other non-Sellercreated releases or threats of rekase being haemafter 
identified as the "Environmd Conditions").. 

b) PURCHASER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS TO SELLER THAT 
PURCHASER WILL CONDUCT, PRIOR TO CLOSING, SUCH 
INVESTIGATIONS OF THE REAL PROPERTY. INCLUDING. BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, THE PHYSICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL COND~TIONS 
THEREOF, AS PURCHASER DEEMS NECESSARY OR DESIRABLE TO 
SATISFY ITSELF AS TO THE CONDITION OF THE REAL PROPERTY AND 
THE EXISTENCE OR NONEXISTENCE OR CURATIVE ACTION TO BE 
TAKEN WITH RESPECT TO ANY HAZARDOUS MATERIALS OR TOXIC 
SUBSTANCES ON OR DISCHARGED FROM THE REAL PROPERTY. AND 
WILL RELY SOLELY UPON SAME AND NOT UPON ANY INFORMATTON 
PROVIDED BY OR ON BEHALF OF SELLER OR ITS AGENTS OR 
EMPLOYEES WITH RESPECT THERETO, OTHER THAN SUCH 
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF SELLER AS ARE 
EXPRESSLY SET ~ R T H  IN THIS AGREEMENT. UPON CLOSING, 
PURCHASER SHALL ASSUME THE RISK THAT ADVERSE MATTERS, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO. CONSTRU(XI0N DEFECTS AND 
ADVERSE PHYSICAL AND E N V J R O ~ A L  CONDITIONS, MAY NOT 
HAVE BEEN REVEALED BY PURCHASER'S INVESTIGATIONS, AND, 
EXCEPT FOR LIABILITY FOR A BREACH OF ANY REPRESENTATION OR 
WARRANTY OF SELLER TO THE EXTENT EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS 
AGREEMENT, PURCHASER, UPON CLOSING, SHALL BE DEEMED TO 
HAVE WAIVED, RELINQUISHED AND RELEASFD SELLER (AND SELLER'S 
OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS) 
FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, CAUSES OF 
ACTION (TNCLUDING CAUSES OF ACTION IN TORT), LOSSES, DAMAGES, 



LIABILITIES, COSTS AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS' FEES) OF ANY AND EVERY KIND OR CHARACTER, KNOWN 
OR UNKNOWN, WHICH PURCHASER MAY ASSERT AND/OR MIGHT HAVE 
ASSERTED OR ALLEGED AGAINST SELLER (AND SELLER'S OFFICERS, 
DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS) AT ANY TIME 
BY REASON OF OR ARISING OUT OF ANY LATENT OR PATENT 
CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS OR PHYSICAL CONDlTIONS, VIOLATTONS OF 
ANY APPLICABLE LAWS AND ANY AND ALL OTHER ACTS, OMISSIONS, 
EVENTS, CIRCUMSTANCES OR MATTERS REGARDING THE REAL 
PROPERTY (hemM?er collectively ref& to as a "Waiver, Release and 
Discharge"). The aforesaid Waiver, Release, and Discharge shall also include a 
Waiver, Release and Discharge for any Environmental Conditions at, on or from the 
Real Property, as well as (at least up to the "Seller Environmental Threshold", as that 
t m  is defined in Paragraph #30(a)(iii) below), any Seller-Created Environmental 
Conditions that are at, on or near the Real Property. 

29. ASIS DISCLAIMERS. 

EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT. lT IS 
UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT SEUER IS NOT MAKING AND I-iAS NOT 
AT ANY TIME MADE ANY WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY 
KIND OR CHARA- EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE REAL 
PROPERTY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY W- OR 
REPRESENTATIONS AS TO HABITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT EXPRESSLY PROVIDED OTHERWISE lN THIS 
AGREEMENT, PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT UPON 
CLOSING !ZLLER SHALL SELL AND CONVEY TO PURCHASER AND 
PURCHASER SHALL ACCEPT THE REAL PROPERTY "AS IS. WHERE IS. WITH 
ALL FAULTS OF WHATEVER NATURE. WHETHER KNOWN OR UNKNOWN 
AND SUBJECT TO THE PERMITTED TITLE EXCEPTIONS." PURCHASER HAS 
NOT RELIED AND WILL NOT RELY ON, AND SELLER IS NOT LIABLE FOR OR 
BOUND BY, ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED W-S, GUARANTTES, 
STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS OR INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE 
REAL PROPERTY OR RELATING THERETO MADE OR FURNISHED BY 
SELLER, TO WHOMEVER MADE OR GIVEN, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, 
ORALLY OR IN WRITING. UNLESS SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS 
AGREEMENT. PURCHASER ALSO ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE PURCHASE 
PRICE REFLECTS AND TAKES INTO ACCOUNT THAT THE REAL PROPERTY 
IS BEING SOLD "w AND IS SUBJECT TO THE PERMITTED TITLE 
EXCEPTIONS. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL SURVIVE 
CLOSING OR ANY TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

30. POST-CLOSING ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSTBILITES: RELEASE AND 
COVENANT NOT TO SUE. 

a) Af& the Closing and de- of the Deed by Seller, Purchaser haeby ass- full 
and complete respomibility for any and all liabilities, including costs, expenses 
(including reawnable a t t o w '  and consultants' fees), fines, penalties, damages to 



real or persod properly or natural resource damages, d a t i o n ,  soil and 
gmdwater research and characterization costs, and response action costs relating to 
or with respect to: 

(i) The E h v b m m d  Conditions of the Real Ropaty; and 

(ii) Any releases or threat of release of Hezardous Materials occurring at or 
h m  the Real Property after the Closing ("Futun? Releases"); 

(iii) The Seller-Created Emironmental Conditions, but only until Purchaser 
shall have expended One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) to research and 
respond to same (keb f tm the "Seller Environmental h h o l b ' ) ,  at 
which point (and no sooner) the parties' h e  responsibilities for costs. 
expenses and liabilities over and above the Seller Environmental 
Threshold for Seller-Created Environmental Conditions shall be 
determined under prevailing law. 

b) PlnchaPa de&a& and acknowledgca that thae may be existing Environmsntal 
Conditions andlor SellaCreated Envimmed Conditions on the Real Pmperty not 
otherwise disclosed in the Environmental Reports and that, in acquiring the Real 
Property, Purchaser knowingly, willingly, and fitely assumes the liability and risk of 
same as set forth in this Purchase and Sale Agreement. 

c) As addiiirmal anrridcdon keunder, and and an inkgd part of the Waiver, Release 
and D i  set forth in this Purchase and Sale Agreement, F'dmer agrees to 
execute and deliver to Seller at Closing a "Covenant Not to Sue" substantially in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

d) The provisions of this Paragraph 30 shall survive the Closing and delivay of the 
Deed. 

A PARTY SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE MADE OR ACCEPTED AN OFFER 
TO ENTER INTO ANY TRANSACTION BECAUSE IT HAS SENT AN UNSIGNED 
DRAFT OF THIS AGREEMENT TO THE OTHER PARTY. THIS DOCUMENT 
S H W  NOT BIND EITHER PARTY UNLESS IT HAS BEEN EXECUTED AND 
DELIVERED BY BOTH PARTIES EXECUTED ON THE DAY AM) YEAR FIRST 
WRITEN ABOVE. 

AAer the Closing, Pllrchasa hereby agrees to protect, d c f d ,  hold harmless and 
indemnifv Seller and its affiliates and subsidiaries and its/their r e s d v e  successors or 
assigns, &areholdem, directors, officers, employees, managers, mkbers and att- 
6um and against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, settlements, penalties, 
fines, costs, interest and reasonable expemcs (iludiig without l i ta t ion  any 
reasonable professional fees and expenses, including legal fees, response costs, 
compliance or permit fees, claims by third parties for personal injury, property damage, 



diminution of properly value, or lost income) suffered or incurd by, or asserted 
against, Seller, arising out of, or resulting from, in whole or in part ("Claims") from the 
following: 

a) Emrinnnncntal cmditim, Fubae Releases, arid SeUer-Cmted Envircnmedal 
Conditions (at least up to the Seller Environmaaal Threshold) that occ~lr or arise 
on, at, or from the Real Propertr, 

b) Any and all activities or operations conducted on the Real F'qmly after the Closin& 

c) Any release or thnat of release of Hazardous Materials occur@ at, on, or fimm 
the Real Pmperty after the Closing, 

d) Any violation or noncompliance with any local, state, or federal law, statute, 
regulation, rule, &, or decree: 

(i) arising out of or resulting from any Envkonmed Conditions, Future 
Releases, and Sena-Cnated Envkommtal Conditions (at least up to the 
Seller i 3 h m e m a l  Threshold) existing on or migrating from the Real 
Property after the Closing, or 

(ii) any activities or operations oonducted on the Real Property after the 
Closing, or 

e) Any claims made by the New York State Deprbm& of 
Collsavation W e r  "NYSDEC*), the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (hereinafter "EPA"), or any third parties arising out of or 
resulting from: 

(i) the Envinmmental Conditions, Fu&ure Releases, and Sdldreated  
Envirommhl C d m  (at least up to the Wler En- 
Threshold) on, at, or from the Real Property a h  the Closing, or 

(ii) any and all activities or operations conducted on the Real Property after 
the Closing; or 

(i) any release a threat of release of Hazadou9 Materials mcamhg at, on or 
from the Real Property aAer the Closing; 

f) Any additional work required or otherwise suggested by NYSDEC or EPA m the 
Real Property or any other f M ,  state or local (public or private) agencies or 
individual with relevant jurisdiction over the Real Property afta the Closing. 

g) The Pmdmw, as a muuicipal county govammt arid as ad(Gtiaael comidaation 
haanda, agrees to enact all appropriate and requisite legislative and bud- 
mandates within its budgetary process to mure that its obligation to indemnify, 
defend and hold the Seller harmless, as set forth herein, has been duly authorized 
on an annual basis (if nmsary) in the event the Purchaser is ever called upon to 
honor its aforesaid obligations. 

b) The pmvisiotls of this Parsgraph 32 shall survive Closing and delivay of the Deed. 



33. OPTION TO PURCHASE 

As additional consideration hereunder, the  purchase^ ackwwkdges and agrees that the 
Seller shall be entitled to reserve for itself in the Deed the right but not the obligation to 
repurchase the Real Property for One Dollar ($1.00) if there comes a time when any 
portion of the Real Property is sold, used, licensed, leased or conveyed for a non- 
governmental purpose (the "Option"), said Option to begin on the date of Closing and 
extend for a period of twenty (20) years thereafter. The reserved Option shall be 
prepand by counsel for the Seller prior to Closing and shall be in form and content that is 
consistent with New Real Propaty Law Section 291-e, and shall be reasonably 
acceptable to counsel for Purchaser, whose consent shall nat be unreasonably denied, 
withheld or conditioned 

34. GRANT OF FIRE TRAINING RIGHTS 

As additional conrideration hercunda, the Purchaser ackmwledges and agrees that the 
Seller shall be atitled to reserve fa itself in the Deed the right but not the obligation to 
utilize the Real Propeaty for stnrctural fire training purposes on a going forward basis at 
no m t  to Seller for a pcriod of time not to exceed twenty (20) days per calendar year, 
said reservation of &training rights to be prepared by counsel for the Seller prior to 
Closing and shall be in form and content that is reasonably acceptable to counsel for 
Purchaser, whose consent shall not be unreasonably denied, withheld or conditioned. 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONULY LEFT BLANK. 



EXECUTED ON THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST WRllTEN ABOVE. 

NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION 

BY M. C!+ 
~ a d e  S I A ~ ~ , L  m~ Cf~%5'e& 
Title-, &$+. - f~b  ! :c A% kL- 



Exhibit A - Real Properly DesaiptiQn 

Exhibit B - Schedule of Exclusions and Reservations 

Exhibit C - Envi runmd Reports 

Exhibit D - Covenant Not to Sue 



[The Plnchaw shall attach its New Survey of the Real Property or at least a cross-LtcM copy 
ofthe Tax Map for Parcel #I 10.84-2-1.121 

Robert M. Burleigh Licensed Land Surveyor 

10 Canalview Mall Telephone (315) 593-2231 
Suite D Fax (315) 593-2236 
Fulton, New York 13069 rnaps4u@alltel.net 

November 22,2006 

PROPOSED DEED DESCRIPTION 

ALL THAT OR PARCEL OF LAND, situate in the City of Oswego, County of Oswego, 
State of New York and being part of Subdivision 2 in Lot 87 in the 18'~. Township of 
Scriba's Patent in said City, being more particularly described as follows: Commencing 
at a point situate in the centerline of East Seneca Street at its intersection with the 
centerline of Mitchell Street; thence, westerly along the centerline of East Seneca 
Street, a distance of 542.1' to a point; thence, S 07O 17' 21" W, a distance of 39.71' to 
a point in the south streetline of East Seneca Street and the Point of Beginning of the ' 

premises conveyed herein; thence, S 07O 17' 21" W, a distance of 902.43' to a point; 
thence, S 63O 30' 0 0  W, a distance of 907.60' to a point; thence, N 26O 30' 00" W, a 
distance of 750.00' to a point in the south streetline of East Seneca Street; thence, 
N 63O 30' 00" E along the south streetline of East Seneca Street, a distance of 
1,409.48' to the point and place of beginning containing 19.95 acres of land. 



EXHIBIT B 

Schedule of Exelnslom and Reservations 

Seller expressly excludes, m e s  and ex- from any conoeyame haaada title to the 
following: 

(1) The Real PFoperty is to be conveyed "AS IS. WHERE IS. WITH ALL FAULTS OF 
WHATEVER NATURE. WHETHER KNOWN OR UNKNOWN AND SUBJECT TO THE 
PERhClTTED TITLE EXCEPTIONS" on the date of Closing subject to (i) any state of facts that 
an inspection or accurate survey of the Real Property would disclose and (ii) subject to and with 
the benefit of all matters of ~ublic record filed against the Real P r o m .  a lon~  with all real . -. 
property and interests in mi property conveyedby, or otherwise expropriatmierwifrom, the Seller 
subsequent to the date Seller purchased the Real Property, including each exclusion, reservation 
and ex-ception identified here& and made a part h&f. 

- 

(2) All of Sella's (i) pasooal pmpaty, struchms, fhtum, facilities, and equipment, and 
(ii) all rights and eawmnb held by the Seller (whether reserved herein or by grant or reservation 
in other documents of d), any of which relate to Seller's business, including the transmission 
and distribution of high and low voltage electric energy and gas and for the transmission of 
intelligence and commtmications (by any means). 

Reserved Easement 

The exclusive perpe(ual right and andent  to constm3, fcmwmt, irrstall, repair, 
replace, maintain, add to, operate, inspect and patrol, for the transmission and distribution of high 
and low voltage e l b c  energy and gas and for the transmission of intelligence and 
anmrunications (by any means), lines of bwied and aboveground wires and cables and l i  of 
towas or poles or both with wires and cables s w  upon and h m  the same, and associated 
above and below-ground substations, switching facilities and equipment, and all necessary ducts, 
above or below-ground conduits and piping, valves, markers, housings, umnectors, pedestals, 
closures, lateral service lines, raceways, manholes, hand holes, riser poles, foundations, anchors, 
antennae, guys, braces, fittings, supporting structures, equipment and all other appurtenances 
related thereto (any of which may be erected andlor constructed at the same or different times) 
(all of which are coIlectively referred to as the "Facilities"), including without l i ta t ion  a bwied 
ground wire and such footbridges, causeways and ways of access, if any, as may be reasonably 
necessary for the convenient construction, reconstruction, installation, repair, replacement, 
maintenance. enhancements. o~eration. insoection and oatrolling of the Facilities over. under. 
through, ac&s and upon that &on i f  the Real F'rop&ty desibed below as the ~ a s k e n t  &a 
(hereider the "Easement Arean), including an area up to twenty (20) feet from the edge of the - .  . 
highways, public rights-of-way and roads abutting or dg through the Real Property. 

A l s o , t h e ~ r i g h t a n d e a s e m m t f r o m t h e t o t i m e , ~ f i n t h a p a y m a a  
thsefore, to clear and keep c l d  by physical, chemical or other means, said Easement A m  of 
any and all frees, vegetation, underbrush and above and below-ground shuctures, improvements 
or otha obstndons, and trim and remove other trees and vegetation adjacent to the Easement 
Area that, in the opinion of Seller, may interfere with the construction, operation and maint- 
of the Facilities (the first clearing may be for less than the full width and may be widened from 



time to time to the full width); to pave, excavate andfor change the grade of the Easemeat Arca as 
is reasonable, necessary and proper in mexiion with the exercise of the foregoing rights and 
easements; to renew, replace, add to and otherwise change the Facilities and each and every part 
thereof and aU appmtmanm thereto and the location thereof within said JXasement Area; and to 
pass along said &ement Area to and fi.om the adjoining lands and to pass over the Real F'roperty 
to and from said Easement Area as reasonably required. 

By its acceptance of the Deed for the Real Property, the t h e w  covenants and agnes 
that no act will be permitted within said Essement Area which is inconsistent with the ribts and 
easements hereby reserved; that no building or stmhma will be erected above or belo\;-ground 
wahin the Easement Area other than the Facilities; and that the present grade or gro~md level of 
said Easement Area will not be changed by F ' d m e r  by excavation or filling. The Purchaser 
finther covenants and agrees with the Seller that the rights and easements reserved herein may not 
be changed or modified in whole or in part without the express written consent of the Seller, 
which wnsent the Seller may deny in its sole discretion. 

n G me m a i o n  of the that the ngms  an^ m...\.j r-euto &he Sell6 
shall be assignable in whole and in part and that they shall be divisible among two or mom 
ownas. as to em, riehts created or reserved hereunder. so that each assipme or o m  shall have 
the fdrrights anh $vileges herein reserved, to be ow& and enjoyed b; either in common or 
severally. Insofar as permitted by law, the provisions hereof are intended to bind and inure to the . . 
benefit bf the success& and ass& in title to the parties hereto. 

DacriDtfon of the EMcaent Area 

The "Easement Area" for FaciIities which are used for the distribution of high and low voltage 
eledric energy and and for the themission end distribdon of hlligencc and 
communications shall be that portion of the Red Property which is no less than fifteen (1 5) feet 
measured parallel to each side of the centerline (as determined by Seller) of each such Facility 
located or to be located on the Real Property. 

Theuhemmt AM'' for existhg electric energy hnnsmission or sub-tmasmission F d i e s  (as 
defined below), inclmive of any of intelligence and communications Facilities associated 
therewith, shall be that uortion of the Real Prover@ which is no less than 150 feet measwed 
parallel to each side of ihe centerline (as det&ed by Seller) of each such Facility located on 
the Real Property as of the date of Closing. The existing transmission and sub-transmission 
Facilities of the Seller as of the executiondate hereof & as follows: 

None. 



mporb to be supplied by Seller's Counsel] 



EXHIBIT D 

Cove~nt  Not To Sue 

(1" dmfi to be supplied by Seller's Co.naeI] 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT. REAFFIRMATION. AND COVENANT NOT TO SUE 

This ACKNOWLEDGMENT, REAFFIRMATION, AM)-COVENANT NOT TO 
SUE ("Covenant"), dated as of the day of ,2007 [Closing Date], is 
granted by the COUNTY OF OSWEGO, a municipal corporation organized and existing under 
the laws of the State of New York, having an address of 46 E. Bridge Street, Oswego, New Yo& 
13 126 @ereMer "Releasor") and delivered to NiAGARA MOHAWK POWER 
CORPORATION, with an office at 300 Erie Boulevard West, Syracuse, New York 13202 
("Niagara Mohawk"). 

WHEREAS, Niagara Mohawk and the Releasor entered mto a certain Purchase and Sale 
A~,gmsmt+ate&as of December lA,206 (the "OtS i2gmxm:';~f r ~ t o ~ ~ e  - - - --. 

d e w  in this Agreement shall have the meanings a s c n i  to them in the P&S Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, N i  Mohawk sold to the Rekasor, and the Releasor purchased fbm 
Niagara Mohawk, the Real Property pursuant to the P&S Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Covenant by Rekasor represents 
additional consideration for the sak and purchase of the Real Property and is a condition 
precedent to said Closing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, m consideraton of the covenants and ageements set forth m the 
P&S Agreement, and such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of 
which is hereby acknowledged by Releasor, the Releasor does hereby agree as follows: 

1. Releasor, for itself and its citizens, taxpayers, employees, and each of its duly 
elected and appointed ufficcials, and itdtheir predecessors, successors, assigns, heirs, executors, 
and administrators, does hereby acknowledge and reaf3kn its Waiver, Release and Discharge, as 
well as its obligation to d e b 4  indemnify and hold Niiara Mohawk harmless, all as expressly 
set forth in the P&S Agreement. As an integral part of the foregoing, the Releasor does hereby 
covenant not to sue or assert, directly or indirectly, or tbrough any other person or entity any 
such claim or allegation that has otherwise been waived, released or discharged by the express 
terms of the P&S Agreement. The aforesaid Waiver, Release and Discharge represent a final 
resolution of all such potential claims, and no judicial relief can be sought by the Releasor 
therefion 

2. Releasor represents and warrants that the individual executing this Covenaut has 
been f d y  authorized to grant this Covenant, which Covenant shall have a full and binding effect 
upon its governing body. 

3. Tbis Covenant, and its corresponding Waiver, Release and Discharge, caunot be 
lessened, changed or modifled, unless same is in writing and signed by Niiara Mohawk. In the 



event that any provision of the P&S Agremmt concerniag the Releasor's Waiver, Release and 
Discharge andlor this Covenant is held to be unenforceable or invalid by any court or regulatory 
authority of competent juidktbn, the validity and therefore Niagara Mohawk's ability to 
enforce the remaining provisions shan not be affected and the Releasor hereby directs any such 
wurt or regulatory authority to interpret the remaining provisions of the P&S Agreement andlor 
this Covenant in a manner that will accomplish the stated goal and intent of same. 

IN WITNESS WEIE.REOF, the Releasor has csused this Covumnt to be duly executed 
and delivered to Niagara Mohawk as of the date &st mitten above by its duly authorized 
representative. 

By: 
(signature) 

Name: 
W e d l  

Title: 

Date: 





EXHIBIT 3 

Oswego Fire School Facility - Property Transfer 
Proposed Accounting Treatment 
Journal Entries 

The Company proposes to defer and amortize the deferred book cost of $1,687,997.52. 

dr - cr 
Accumulated Depreciation 718,z4.71 
Loss 1,687,997.52 
Cash - 

plant' 2,406,342.23 

Deferred Debit 
Loss 

The following journal entries are proposed to be recorded upon the transfer of the 
Property to the County and each year thereafter through December 3 1,201 1 to reverse 
the loss and establish the deferral as an expense over the remainder of the Company's 
Merger Rate Plan: 

dr - cr FY 
Amortization of Deferred Debit 355,367.90 07/08 

Deferred ~ e b i e  355,367.90 

Amortization of Deferred Debit 355,367.90 08/09 
Deferred Debit 355,367.90 

Amortization of Deferred Debit 355,367.90 09/10 
Deferred Debit 355,367.90 

Amortization of Deferred Debit 355,367.90 1011 1 
Deferred Debit 355,367.90 

Amortization of Deferred Debit 266,525.92 11/12 
Deferred Debit 266,525.92 

' Represents record of transfer of Property. Amounts will be updated to the actual date of transfer. 
Amounts will be updated to the actual date of transfer. 





EXHIBIT 4 

Oswego Fire School Facility - Property Transfer 
Three-Year Revenue and Expense Summary 

ACTIVITY FY 03/04 FY 04/05 FY 05/06 

OLM ~ x ~ e n s e s '  $191,700 $148,400 $1 76,200 

Note: Company's Fiscal Year ("FY") ends on 3/31. 

CY 2004 CY 2005 CY 2006 

Property Taxes $32,003 $33,069 $ 3 1,279 

' OBM Expenses as shown are net of revenue proceeds. The last training classes performed under contract 
for others occurred in October 2004. As such, there were no revenues associated with the Facility in FY 
05/06. 





EXHIBIT 5 

617.20 
Appendix C OSweg0 Fire School Facility 

State Environmental Quality Review Property Transfer 
SHORT ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT FORM 

For UNLISTED ACTIONS Only 

PART I - PROJECT INFORM4TION (To be completed by Applicant or Project Sponsor) 
1. APPLICANTISPONSOR 1 2. PROJECT NAME I 

Municlpaltiy Oswego hnty Owego 
4. PRECISE LOCATION ( S W  address and mad lntenedlons, prominent landmarks, etc, w pmvlde map) 

National Grid USA 

720 East Seneca Street 
Oswego, NY 13216 
(map attached) 

Oswego Fire School Property Transfer 

5. PROPOSED ACTION IS: 
New Expansion ModMcation/aIteRUOn 

8. DESCRIBE PROJECT BRIEFLY: 

3. PROJECT LOCATION: 

I Transfer approximately 20 acres of property, including the fire mining facilities, fmm National Grid USA (Niagara Mohawk Power 
Corporation) to Oswego County. No facility modifications are included as part of this project. I 

7. AMOUNT OF LAND AFFECTED: 
lnltialty 20 acres Ultimately 20 acres 

8. WlLL PROPOSED ACTION COMPLY VvllH MISTING ZONING OR OTHER EXISTING LAND USE RESTRICTIONS? 
yes No If No, describe brlefly 

A deed restriction is filed with Oswego County that identifies previous contamination at this site. 

9, W T  IS PRESENT LAND USE IN VICINITY OF PROJECT? 
Resldentlal Industrial Commercial AgrlcuHure C] ParklFmsVOpen Space Other I 

The fire school is a commercial facility that waa used for training of fire-fighting personnel, both private and municipal. The 
property is located adjacent to an existing landfill and other commercial facilities are located in the immediate a m .  

11. DOES ANY ASPECT OF THE ACTION HAVE A CURRENTLY VALID PERMIT OR APPROVAL? 
Yes NO 11 yes, list agency(s) name and pennwappovals: 

Notification to NYSDEC required 60 days in advance of transfer. 

12. AS A RESULT OF PROPOSED ACTION WLL EXISTING PERMRIAPPROVAL REQUIRE MODIFICATION? 
• Yes i7J NO 

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION P VI ED ABOM IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWEDGE 
Ap+McanVsponswname: Re&.* -//: /BOA- ~ k d &  k G 3 (  - Date: 3/20/.7 

If the action is in the Coastal Area, and you are a state a ency, complete the 
Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding with t a is assessment 

OVER 
1 



PART I1 - IMPACT ASSESSMENT (To be completed by Lead Agency) 
A. DOES ACT.ON EXCEED ANY TYPE I THRESHOLD IN 8 hYCRR. PART 617 47 ,f yes, coordinate the review process and use the FULL EAF. n Y ~ S  El No 

U - -  u - 
8. WILL ACTION RECEIVE COORDINATED REVIEW AS PROVIDED FOR UNLISTED ACTIONS IN 6 NYCRR. PART 617.67 if No, a negatlvs 

declaration may be superseded by another invowed agency. 
R y e s  NO 

C. COULD ACTION RESULT IN ANY ADVERSE EFFECTS ASSOCIATED WTH THE FOLLOWING: (Anwen may be handwmn, illegible) 
C1. Exisling air qualltf, surface or gmundwater quality wquantlty, noise levels, exktlng traffic panem. solid waste production wdisposal. 

potential for emsion, drainage or flooding problems? Explain briefly: 

I No. This project only includes a property transfer and makes no changes to the property. Future use would be subject to 
operation-specific permits or reviews, but would be consistent wi th past operation of the facility. I 

C2. Aesthetic, agriwtlural, archaeological, historic, or other natural or cultural resources; or mmuni iy  or neighborhood character? Explain briefly: 

No. This property transfer makes no changes to the property. The facility was an operating fire training facility. 

C3. Vegetation or fauna, fish, shelmsh or wiMlife spedes, slgnmcant habllats, or threatened or endangered species? Explain brleny: 

No. This property hansfer makes no changes to the property. N o  expansion or modification of the property is intended wi th 
this transfer. 

C4. A mmmunWs existing plans w poals as omclally adopted, a a change in use w inbnsky of use or land w other natural naounxnr? W s i n  briefty: 

No. This property previously operated as a fire training facility. N o  changes are intended or addressed under this property 
transfer. 

C5. G~WJI, subsequent development, or related acih4lles llkaly to be induced by the proposed action? Explain brlefiy: 

No. This is solely a property transfer. Operation o f  the fire training facility is not addressed under this project. 

C6. Long t en ,  shwlterm, cumulative, or other effects not identified in Cl-C57 Explain briefly: 

None identified. 

C7. Mher hpds (including changes in use of either quan(lty or type of energy)? Explain briefly: 

No. The property hansfer has no  such impact. 

D. WILL THE PROJECT HAVE AN IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENTAL CHARACTERISTICS THAT CAUSED M E  ESTABLISHMENT OF A CRrrlCAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL AREA (CEA)7 

Yes No If Yes, explain bhfly: 

I E. IS THERE. OR IS THERE LIKELY TO BE, CONTROVERSY RELATED TO POTENTIAL ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS? 
Yes No If Yes, explain brkfly: I 

I 
PART Ill -DETERMINATION OF SIGNIFICANCE IT0 be cornDleted bv Aaencv) 

INSTRUCTIONS:  or each adverse effect ~ e n t i i  above, dete&iniwhiiher it 1s substantial, large, lmpoltant or ottw~wisa s~gnficant ~ s c h  
effect should be assesssd In connecllon wlth its (a) selling (I e urban or rural), (b) probability of occurring (c) durabon. (dl irreverslbilihl; (e) 
aeooraohic scow: and if1 maanitude. If necessab. add ariachmenls or refeienie su~oort i ia  materials. Ensure that exDlanations contain 
i u ~ i i e n t  detall io Dhow that a i lkevant  adverse imi ic ts  have been identified and adeq"ately Adressed. If question 0 of Part ii was checked 
yes the determlnation of slgnlfiwnce must evaluate the potenttal impact of the proposea action on the environmental charactenstiu of the CEA. 

Check this boxifyou have Mentifled oneor mom potentially large wsignificantadverse impacts which MAY occur. Then pmcaed directly tothe FUL 
EAF and/or prepare a posnive declaration. . . 

Check this boxifyou have determined, based onlheinfonatlon and analysis above and anysupporb'ngdocumentation, thatthe proposed action WlL 
NOT resull in any significant adverse envfmnmental impacts AN0 provlde, on attachments as necessary, the reasons supporting thls determlnation I 

I Name of Lead Agency Date I 
I Prlnt or Type Name of Responsible Mlicar In Lead Agemy ~ l n e  of Responsible 0fRcer I 
I Signature of Responsibb OfRcer In Lead Agency Signature of Preprer (If dlflerent from msponslbb officer) I 



LOCATION MAP - 720 East Seneca Street, City of Oswego. The facility is located on 
the south side of East Seneca Street. 
-.. 

SURVEY MAP - Survey map prepared by Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation dated 
August 6, 1975 entitled "Oswego NY Fire Training Facilities, Property Map" 





FINANCIAL CONDmON OF 
NUCAR* MOHAWK POWER CORPORATlON 

DECEMBPR 3 1 , 2 O M ( ~ ~ H a u r d )  

Exhibit A 
Shkt I of 17 

Prefmd Stock with a par value of one hundnd dollars (5100 each), 3,400,000 shares 

Pnfernd Stock with a par value of twenty five dollars ($25 each), 19,600,000 s h m s  

Pnfmnss S m k  with apmvaluc o f w n l y  five dollars(S25 cachb 8,000,000 shares 

Common Stock with $I parvaluc,25O,WO,OW shares 

18.1@) 8 (c) BY BYCOM-BY BY C- 

Aulhorizcd $ $ 
C a s  Date of and Issued OulWnding Par Value S 

~ N u E k r  L?rdH- sW& -sixus- Shsrcs YUk AwiYa acmivm 
Prefcrnd 

09-29-48 3.40% 200,000 57,536 I00 20.030.000 30,000 Note A 
12733 (amended 3.60% 350.000 137,139 100 35,497,000 497,000 Note B 

09-2049) 3.90.h 240,000 94,967 IW 14,554,000 554,000 Note C 
16720 05-04-54 4.1056 210,000 52.830 I00 Zl,000,WO 
18346 05-13-57 5.25% 200,000 35.128 100 20,000,000 
18737 02-17-58 4.85% 150,000 34,115 IW 25,000,000 
24455 08-02-67 6.1 OH 250,000 100 25,0W,OOO 
26290 08-01-72 7.72% 400,OCQ 100 40,) 54,800 154,800 
26438 0612.73 7.45% 330,000 100 33,000,000 

09-24.74 
26770 (amended 10.60% 60,000 100 6,0W,000 

10-22-74) 
26864 08-07-75 11.75% 300,000 100 30,000,000 
270M 09-14-76 9.75% 1,200.000 25 30,000,000 
27252 01-17.78 8.375% 1,600,000 25 40,000,000 
27660 02-19.80 9.75% 1,020,000 25 25.500,WO 
27769 03-26.81 12.25% 700,000 25 17,500,000 
27769 03-2681 12.50% 620,000 25 I5,500,000 
27923 04-22-81 12.75% 250.000 100 25,000,000 
28149 04-21-82 15.00% 800,000 25 20.W0,OOO 
28202 01-12.83 (a) 1,200,000 25 30,000,000 
28454 
28455 0629.83 10.75% 1,600,000 25 40,000,000 
25650 10.13% 250,000 100 25,000,000 
28651 12-21-83 10.13% 1,000,000 25 25,000,000 
28784 
28785 05-30-84 (b) 2,000,000 25 50.0W.000 
28834 01-30-85 12.75% 1,000,000 25 25,000,000 
28835 
28836 01-30-85 (c) 2,000.000 25 50.000.000 
28837 
28894 12-17-86 8.75% 3,000,000 25 75,000,000 
29273 07-15-87 8.70% I,m.000 25 25,000,000 
89-M-079 07-1 1-91 7.85% 914,005 25 22,850,125 
93-M-0981 05-16-94 9.50% 6,WO.OOO 25 I50.000,WO 
99-M-0884 09-22-99 (d) 3,0W,OOO 25 I50,000,000 

Rcfewnce: 

27318 05-09.78 7.75% 1,360,000 25 34,000,000 

(a) Adjustable rate, Scrics A 
(b) Adjustable raE. Series B 
(c) AdjuSfabIe raw. Series C 
(d) Fixed adjustable rate. Scries D, with a $50 liquidation preferera 
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FINANCULCONDITION OF 
NUCARA MORAWK POWER CORPORATION 

DECEMBER 31,2005 (continued) 

& Order 
Ja!L 
09-29-48 

12733 (amended 
09-20-49) 

I5593 12-18-51 
16083 02-10-53 
18134 Ol-0747 
18714 03-25-58 
21886 IO-IC-61 
23554 03-19-65 
23754 10-19-65 
23957 03-29-66 
24401 08-02-67 
24984 01-21-69 
25021 02-18-69 
25748 08-18-70 
25977 01-26-71 
26373 03-06-73 
26511 11-20-73 
26628 05-24-74 

(12-10-74 
26770 (amended 

06-1 1-75) 
08-07-85 

26864 (amended 
10-28-75) 

27011 08-10-76 

27802 08-29-80 
27924 0618-81 
27999 07-01-81 
28000 07-01-81 
28 150 06-23-82 
28151 07-14-82 

(amended 
01-26-83) 

28262 08-1 1-82 
28294 09-22-82 
28318 11.04-82 
28449 05-18-83 
28460 05-18-83 
28461 08-17-83 
28462 11-22-83 
28652 03-28-84 
28653 1063-84 
18737 05-02-84 
28786 08-15-84 
28878 09-05-84 
28787 10-03-84 
28943 01-03-85 
28985 02-20-85 
28986 05-29-85 
29034 06-13-85 
29140 09-19-85 
29079 08-14-85 
29558-29562 08-19-87 

750.000 (C) 

2~50.000 (c) 

I Par value + 
No-Clw A 

No 
NO 
No 
NO 
NO 
No 
NO 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 
8 

lwcd 

+&%- 
1.928.627 
7,473,172 

2,082,864.3 
1,000,000 
1.000,000 
1,414,368 

9,936 
700,000 

27,360,680 
41,750 

1,400,000 
39,372 
14,628 
8,250 

2,886,468 
2,000.000 
3,000,000 
3,500,000 
3,300,000 
3,000,000 

500,000 
900,000 

3,000,000 
275,886 (b) 
224.1 14 (a) 
491,000 @) 
259.000 (a) 

4,000,000 
796,970 b) 
703,030 {a) 

47,595 
3,500,000 :;2:;:p 
1258,454 

991,546(a) 
3,500,000 
4,000,000 
2,335,340(8) 
2,164,660 (b) 

200,000 
5,000,000 
3,000,000 (a) 
3,000,000 (b) 

5.000poo 
1,000,000 

S 
Val? 
eeelved 

Note D 
Note E 
Note E 
Nore F 

22,643,000 
26,939,000 

Note G 
Note H 

31,343,900 
Note 1 
Note 1 

31,722,600 
Note K 
Note L 
Note M 

37215268 
35,160,000 
43,905.000 
44,100,000 
29,964,000 
30,585,WO 
6258,477 

11,172,879 
31r9S0,000 
3,790,894 
3,041,167 
7,357,523 
3,763.377 

51,580,000 
12.1 59,874 
10,815,587 

735,363 
48,265.000 
11,124,249 
14,919,718 
12,272,886 
11,523,270 
44,730,000 
54.460.000 
27,659,391 
26,154,127 

2.462.61 8 
57,500,000 
39,474,671 
40.899.688 
76,000,000 
17,122,526 

1 f 38,566 (b) 20,802,153 
2,141,802 (a) 39.074.848 

445.329 Note N 
4,494.000 99,991,500 

20,546.264 Note 0 
22,399,248 Note P 
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FINANCIAL CONDlTlON OF 
NIACARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION 

DECEMBER 31,2005 (nmlinoed) 

li.l(b)&(c) COMPANY c x m i d  

A. Shares were exchanged for like amount and series of Cenld New York Power Corporation stock. 

B. Shares were exchanged for like amount and series of Buffalo Niagara Electric Corporation slack, 

C. Shares were exchanged for like amount and series of New York Power and Light Corporation stock. 

D. Shares were issued to Niagara Hudson Power Corporalion in exchange for the following no par common stock: 
1,586,358 shares of Central New York Power Corporation 
1,400,000 shares of New YorkPowcr and Light Corporation 
3,000,000 shares of Buffalo Niagara Electric Corporation 

E. Shares were issued to Niagara Hudson Powu Corporation in exchange for 9,580,989 shares af  Niagara Mohawk Power 
Corporation $10 stated value common stock. 

F. Shares issued to meet the conversion privilege of its Class A stock. 

G. Shares issued upon conversion of $45,066,400 principal amount of ConveRible Debentuns (cash amounting to $184,403.76 
paid in lieu of 5,056.94 Bactional shares). 

H. Shares were exchanged for 3312 shares of C m v i a  Electric Company mmmon stock (subsequently merged into the 
Company). 

I. Shares were issued in place of 13,680,340 common shares (2 for 1 split). 

1. S h a m  were issued upon acquisition of  12,500 s h m s  of capital stock of the Paul Smith's Electric L i t  and Power and Railmad 
Company (subsequently merged into the Company). 

K. Shares were issued upon acquisition of 2,316 shares of capital stock of the Adams Electric Light Company (subsequently 
merged into the Company). 

L. Shares w a e  issued upon acquisition of 1,488 shares of capital stock of the Canton Electric Light and Power Company 
(subsequently merged into the Company). 

M. Shares wen issued upon acquisition of 50 shares of capital stock of the Elliconville Elechic Lighl Company (subsequently 
merged into h e  Company). 

N. Shares wen issued upon acquisition of 200 shares of capital stock of N.M. Suburban Gas, which in lum acquired Syracuse 
Suburban Gas Company, including subsequent common st& issuancs in acmrdana with the acquisition agreement. 

0. Under the Master Resbucturing Agreement, IPPs mceivd these shares of the Company's mmmon stock in exchange to 
terminate, restate a amcnd purchase power agreements. 

P. Under the Masla Resnuctusing Agreement, lPPs received the cash pmceeds from h e  public sale of the C a p m y ' s  common 
Rock in exchange to tmninste, restate or mend pvmha~e pow" qmmcnts .  
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18.l(d) .TERMS OF PREFERENCE: 

Preferred Stock - . 
This series is designated as Preferred Stock, 3.40% Series, and provides for a dividend rate of 3.40% per mum. Upon 

voluntarv dissolution, the holders are entitled to $103.50 oer share olus an mount  eaual to dividends accrued and unoaid on each 
share, &ether or noteamed or declared. This series is &eemahl;in whole or in pdn at the option of the Company i t  $103.50 pm 
share plus an amount equal to dividends accrued and unpaid on each share, whether or not earned or declared. 

3.60% SERIES - S I N  oar value 

This series is desimated as Preferred Stock. 3.60% Series. and provides for adividend rate of 3.60% ocr mum. Uwn 
voluntary dissolution, the holders are entitled to $104 85 per share i l w  & amount equal to dividends -ed i d  unpaid on each 
share whether or not earned or dccland. This series is redamable in whole or in pan at the option ofthc Company at $104.85 per . . 
share plus an amount equal to dividends accrued and unpaid on each share, whether or not e k e d  or declared. 

This series is designated as Preferred St* 3.90% Series, and provides for a dividend rate of 3.90% per mum. Upon 
voluntary dissolution, the holders are entitled to $106 per share plus an amount equal to dividends accrued and unpaid on each share, 
whether or not eamed or declared. This series is redeemable in whole or in oart at the ootion of the Comoanv at $106 oer share oius . . 
an amount equal to dividends accrued and unpaid on each share, whether ornoteamed or declared. 

SERIES - $100 o m  

This series is designated as Preferred Stock, 4.10% Series, and provides for a dividend rate of 4.10% per mum. Upon 
voluntarv dissoiution. the holders are cntitled to an amount eaual to $102 per share plus accrued dividends. This series is redermable 
in wholeor in part at the option of the Company at $102 per share plus a c k d  dividends. 

$J5% SERIES - $100 oar value 

This series is designated as Preferred Stock, 4.85% Series, and provides for a dividcnd rate 014.85% per mum. Upon 
voluntary dissolution, the holders are entitled to an amount equal to $102 per share plus accrued dividends. This serics is redeemable 
in whol;or in part at the option of the Company at $102 per share plus a&ed dividends. 

9.25%SERIES - S I N  oar value 

This series is designated as Prefcmd Stock, 5.25% Series, and provides for a dividend rate of 5.25% p a  mum Upon 
voluntary dissolution, the holdm are entitled to an amount equal lo 3102 per share plus a m c d  dividends. This series is rcdccmable 
in wholc or in part at the option of the Company at $102 per share plus a&ed dividends, 

6.10% SERIES - $100 our value 

This series is desienated as Preferred Stock 6.10% Series. and omvides for a dividend rate of 6.10% oer mum. Uwn 
voluntary dissolution, the hzders are entitled to an amount equal t o ' $ l ~ l ' ~ e r  share plus accrued dividends. ~ h b  series is nd&nablc 
in whole or in pan at the option ofthe Company at $101 per share plus accrued dividends. 

7.45% SERIES - $100 oarvahlc 

This series is designated as Preferred Stock, 7.45% Series. and provides a dividend rate of 7.45% per m u m .  Upon 
volunrary dissolution, the holders are entitled to the redemption price at the time applicable, plus dividends k d  and k p a ~ d  on 
each share. whether or not earned or declared. This series is redamable in whole or in part at the option of the Company at h e  
rcdcm~tiononcc of $101.69 per share throuph June 30, 1998. at $101.45 per share h m a h  and throuah June 30.1999. at $101.21 
per shire ihireafter and throu& ~ u n e  30.2060, at s 10097 per share thc&~er and through June 30,2001, at 1100.73 p a  share 
thcreaRer and through June 30,2002, at $100.49 p a  share thereafter and through June 30,2003, at $100 25 per share thmaftcr and 
through June 30,2004, and at $100.00 per share thereafter, in each case plus an amount equal to dividends &rued  and unpaid on each 
share, whether or not earned or declared. As a mandatory sinking fund the Company will call for redemption and retire on each 
June 30, 1977 through June 30,2008, 18,000 s h m ,  and on June 30,2009 lhc balance of the shares outstanding, in each case at a 
redemption price of $100 per share, plus an amount equal to the dividends accrued and unpaid, whether or not earned or declared. 

This series is designated as Prefemd Stock, 7.72% Series, and provides for a dividend rate of 7.72% per mum. Upon 
voluntary dissolution, the holders are entitled to an mount  equal to $102.36 per &an  plus accrue3 dividends. This series is 
redeemable in whole or in part at the option of the Company at $102.36 per share plus a m c d  dividends. 
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DECEMBER 31,2005 (continued) 

,L&stable Rate Series A - $25 oar value 

The saics is designated as Refared Stock, Series A and pmvides a dividend rate of  not less than 6.50% per m u m  or 
greater than 13.50% p a  m u m .  The annual dividend w r  share was 10.00% of par value for the initill dividend period ended 
March 3 1, 1983 and ;s wmputed r 1.60% below the applicable rate in effect fo; cach subscqumt penod. The &liable rate for any 
dividend period will be the highest o f ( l )  the Trcasury Bill Rate (2) the ten year wnstant maturity rate and (3) the twenty \ear constant 
mawiry rate for such dividcnd pcriod. The mount of dividendppcr share payable for each dividend period ;hall be computed by 
dividing the dividcnd rate for such dividend pmod by lour and applying such rue against the par valuc. The dividend rate with 
respect to each dividend wriod will be calculated as oromotlv as practicable bv the ~omoanv.~wnfirmed in writhe bv indeoendmt . . .  . . ,. - ,  . 
acwuntanls and published in a newspaper ofgeneral circulation in Ncw York City prior to the new dividend period. Upon voluntary 
dasolution, the holders areentitled to receive $25 00 per share plus a w e d  dividends 

W b l e  Rate Series B - $25 oar value 

This series is designaIed as F ' r e f d  Stock, Series B and provides a dividend rate of not less than 7.50% per m u m  or 
greater than 16.50% per annum. The dividend rate for the initial dividend period ending December 31, 1984 was 13.375%per m u m .  
For each quarterly period themiter, dividend will be .625% above the applicable rate. The applicable rate for each dividend period, 
determined in advance of such period, will be the highest ofthe per m u m  three-month U.S. Treasury bill rate, L e  U.S. Treasury fen 
year wnstant maturity rate and the U.S. Treasury twenty year constant maturity ratc. The mount of dividends per share payable for 
each dividend period shall be wmputed by dividing the dividend rate for such dividend pcriod by four and applying such rate against 
the par value per share. The dividend rate with respect to each dividend period will be calculated as promptly as practical by the 
Company, confinned in writing by independent accountants and published in a newspaper of general circulation in New York City 
prior to the new dividend period. Upon voluntary dissolution, lhe holders are entitled to receive $25.00 per share plus a m e d  
dividends. This series is redeemable in whole or in part at the option of the Company at $25.00 per share, plus accrued dividends. As 
a sinking fund, h e  Company will call for the redemption and retire on September 30, 1993 and each September 30, thereafter to and 
including September 30,2023,50,000 shares andon August IS, 2024,450,000 shares, in each case at $25.00 per share plus accrued 
dividends. 

L&slabIe Rate Series C - $25 oar value 

This series is designated as Prefmed Stock, Series C and provides an annual dividcnd rate of 12.12% for the initial dividend 
period ending June 30, 1985 and at .40K above the Applicable Rate i n e l k t  for each subscqumt period. The dividend rate for any 
dividcnd period shall in no went be lcss than 7%per annum or grcatcr than 15.5Ph per annum. The avplicable r a c  for each dividcnd 
period, determined in advance of such period. will be the highart of theorithmetic average of the hvo must recent weekly pn m u m  
Treasury Bill Rate, h e  Ten Year Cons!ant Maturity Rate and the Twenty Year Constant Maturity Rate. The amount of dividends per 
sharc plyahlc for cach dividend pcriod shall be wmputcd b) dividing the dividcnd ratc for such div~dcnd period by Tow and applying 
such rue againsl the par value. The dividend rate with resvecl to each dividend period will be calculated as uromptly as practicable by 
thc  om^&. confirmed in writine bv indeoendent a c w ~ t a n t s  and oublished in a newsoaver of eeneral ciriulati&;n N=W ~ o r k  ~ i &  . ,. - .  . . . - 
prior to lhe new dividmd period. Upon voluntluy dissolution, the holders are entitled lo receive $25.00 per share plus accrued 
dividends. This series is redeemable in whole or in parl at the option of the Company at $25.00 per share, plus accrued dividends. 

W Adiustable Rate Series D - $25 oar value 

This series is desimted as R e f a d  Stock Series D and provides a auarterlv dividend at an annual rate of 6.905% for 
the initial period ending ~ccsmbcr  31,2004. After ~ c a m b c r  31.2004:dividends on the Series D Prcfemd Stock are payable 
quarterly, at an annual rate of 1.625% plw the highest ofthe following rates which will be determined in advance of each quarter: the 
~reasu& Bill Rate. the Ten Year consiant ~ a t u r i f t  Rate or the ~ h i r t v ~ e a r  Constant Maturiw Rate. The annual dividend i e  will not 
be lcss kan 7.655% or pcatcr than 13.655%. l h h o u n t  of divideids per share payable foieach dividcnd pcriod shall be computed 
by dividing the dividend penod by four and amlying such rate against the par valuc. The amount ofdiv~dends paid will he adjusted if .. . - 
t i e  Interns Revenue code is minded to change the dividends received deduction. This series D Preferred stock is redeemable all or 
in part at any time on or after December 3 1 , 2 6 4  at the option of the Company, at $50 per share plus a c d  dividends 

ALL SERIES 

Acauals of dividmds shall not bear interest Not convertible or exchangeable f a  other sccwities of the m r p o d o n .  Upon 
involuntary dissolution. the holders are entitled to the par value w r  shun plus an amount equal to dividends accrued and unpaid on 
each share, whether or not earned or dcctared. 

30 voting rights except upon default in payment of dividends in an aggrcgate amount equivalent to four full quarterly 
dlvidmdi on all shares of prckmd stock ouemding. Upon such a defeult and until all dividends on all sham ofprcferrsd stock at 
time of default shall haw b a n  onid or declared or set apart for o m e n t ,  the holders of the orefemd stock voting seuaratelv as a class - .  
and regardless of series, shall be entitled to elect a majo"ty o f t h e ~ o a r d o f  ~ i rec ton .  

No p m p t i v e  rightP to subscribe for, purchase or receive any pert of theunissued stmk of the Company or any stock of the 
Company to be issued by reason of any increase in the authorized capital stock of the Company. 
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Until dividends declared or set apart for payment for all series of p r e f d  stock, no dividend to be paid or set apati for 
payment on the preference and wmmon stock. 

Upon dissolution, voluntmy or involuntary, holders of preferred stock of each series then outstandma entitled to mxive the 
sums pn share fixed for the respecu~e series before any dismbuuon to holders of the preference and wmmon~tock. If assets 
dismbutable upon dissolution, voluntary or mvolunlary, arc insufficienl to permit paymml to holders o r p r e f d  stock in full, then 
assets lo be disulbuted ratably among the holders of respective series of preferred stock in proportion to sums which would be payable 
if assets were sufficient. 

Legal rights of the Company lo purchase or otherwise acquire shares of preferrod stock not limited. 

So lone as anv s h a m  ofthe o r e f e d  st& of anv series are outstandme. the C o m o m  is not m i n e d  to do mtain thines 
without the conskt o f& holders of ieferred stock ~hich'arc set out in subdivisl'dns (E), 6) arid (G) oiparagraph(5) of  pa^ D o i ~  
the Anicle N of the Certificate ofConsolidation and Cmillcatlon of Amendment both daled and filed January 5 .  1950. 

Ln late 1997, the Company's preferred shareholders gave the Company approval to increase the amount of unsecured debt thc 
Company may issue by SS billion. Previously, the Company war able to isnue $700 million under the remidions of its mended - 
No preference stock is currently outsfanding. 

A m a l s  of dividends shall not bear intaert  Not convertible or exchangeable for other s&ties of (he Company. Upon 
involuntary dissolution, the holders an entitled to the par value per share plus an amount equal to dividends a m e d  and unpaid on 
each share, whether or not e m e d  or d e c l d  

No votine riehts excevl uwn default in aavment of dividends in an aemeate amount eauivalcnt to six full auartedv -- - 
dividends on all shk;of p r c f ~ &  stock outslar;dihg. Upon such a defaull and until all dividends on all sham ofp i fnen& stock 
a time of &fault shall have been paid or declared or s n  apart for payment, the holdcrs of the pnfmnce stock, voting separately as a 
class and regardless of series, shdl be entitled to elect two membersof the Board of ~irectors: 

. 

No preemptive rights to subscribe for, purchase a n a i v e  any pad of the unissued stock of the Company or any stock of the 
Company to be issued by reason of any increase in the authorized capital stock of the Company. 

Dividend payable on last day of March, June, September and b b c r  in each yea. Until dividends declared or set apart 
for payment for all series of preference stock, no dividend to be paid or set apart for payment on the wmmon stock. 

Uoon dissolution. voluntarv or involuntarv. holders of preference stock ofeach series then outstandia entitled to reccivc the 
sums per shine fixed for the respecti;e series bcfo&any disvibuiion to holders ofthe common stock. If assets disbibutable upon 
dissolution, voluntary or involuntary, are insufficient to permit payments lo holders ofprcfnmct stock in full, then =sets to be 
distributed ratably among the holderr of respective series of prcfemce stock in proponion to sums which would be payable if assets 
were sufficient. 

Legal rights of Company to purchase or otherwise acquire shares of preference stock not limited. 

So long as any shares of UIC preferem stock of my series are outstanding. the Company is not pamined to do certain 
thinas without the wnsent of the holders of the preference stock which are set out in subdivisions (DJ and (E) of paragraph (7) of 
part% of the Article N of the certificate of consolidation and Certification of ~mendment both &t& and filed Janu-q~5, 1950. 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION OF 
NUGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATlON 

DECEMBER 31,2005 (continued) 

18.l(c) NON-PAR ST- 
NONE 

18.1(OC(h) WELKUBJANDING BY THECOMPANY: 
(A) Fin1 Mongagc Bonds issued by Niagara Mohawk Power Cnpomon and secured by moRgage nfemd lo under 7(a) below: 

Face Value 
of Bonds 
Authorized 
and Issued 

S40,OW.OW 
40,000,000 
IS,OOO,WO 
25,000,000 
40,000,WO 
25,000.000 
30,000,000 
50.000,000 
50,000,000 
50,000,000 
40,000,000 
40,000,OW 
45,000,000 
40,000,000 
60.000.000 
75,000,WO 
65,000,000 
80,000,000 
80,000,000 
80,000,000 

125,000,000 
50,000,W0 
50,000,W0 
75,000,000 
5O,OM),OW 
50,000.000 

l00,000,0W 
55,000,000 
50,000,000 
25,000.000 
25,000,000 
25,000,OW 
50,000.000 
30,000,000 
75,000,000 

75,000,000 

I00,000,000 

100,W0,000 

50,000,WO 
50.000.OW 
20,000,000 
I3.000.000 
n,ooo,ooo 

l00,000,0W 

Case 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION OF 
NUCARA M0RAWKPOWP.R CORPORATION 

DECEMBER 31.1005 (matloued) 

ll.I(fj&(h) ED BY THE C ( I M M I S S I O N 0  BY THE CO- 

of B o n l  
C s x  Date of Autho"zd 
Nldmk A n ! u w L  

Amount Date d 
gg&ldbg lrsvl 

(4) 0611 6186 

Interest Date of 
JULK Mmci!Y 

10.00 06/01/16 

6.625 10/01/13 
Various 10/01/13 
Various 0710 1/29 
8.04 06/01/04 
8.50 07/01/23 
7.375 08/01/03 
6.875 04/01/03 
7.875 04/01/24 
6.625 0710 1/05 
5.875 09/01/02 
6.875 03/01/01 
7.75 05/15/06 
5.15 11/01/25 

. . 
92-M-0152 165;000;000 (4) 07/23/92 
92-M-0152 220.000,OOO (1) 08/26/92 
93-M-0110 03/31/93 85,000,M)O (1) 04107193 
93-M-0110 210,000,000 (4) 04/07/93 
91-M-0110 03/31/93 110.000,OOO (1) 07/07/93 
93-Ma246 08/05/93 230,0W,OOO ( 1 )  09/15193 
93-M-0246 210,000,000 (1) 03/04/94 
93-M-0981 05/16/94 275,000,000 275.W0.000 05/23/95 
98-M-1236 09/17/98 75.000.000 75.000.WO 09117198 

(El) First Mongagc Bonds issued by C d  New Yark Power Corpnation: 
11642 11/15/44 48,000,000 (1) 10/01/44 

(C) First Mongagc Bonds b s d b y  Buffalo Niagm Uatric CorporsfiOn: 
11748 IUIII45 56,929,000 (1) 11/01/45 

(D) First Mortgage B o d s  i s s d  by New York Power and Light Copration: 
11618 04/10/45 50,000,000 (1) 03/01/45 

(E) First Mongagc Bonds issued by Pad SmiUl's Elecmc Light and Power and Railmad Company: 
14515 03/20/50 I,lOO.OOO (1) 0410l150 

m,tcn? 

(P) Umocurcd Convcnible Debentures issucd by Niagara Mohawk Paver Corpmion: 
18134 01107157 46,224.2M) R) mR1157 

(0) Promisw notes iwucd by Niagm Mohawk Paver Corporation: 
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RNANClAL C0M)ITION O F  
NIACARA MORAWK POWER CORPORATION 

DECEMBER 31,2005 (mmtlnucd) 

F m  Value 
ofBondr 

Case Dale of Author id  Amount Dale of In te rn  Date of 
J.&&- L3ae.k iwai& 

28020 08/19/81 17,000,000 (4) 09/23/81 10.0 0911 5/89 
28981 
28982 06/26/85 I00.000.000 IOo,000.000 09/05/85 various 07/01/15 
28983 

29043 
29357 09/10/116 50.000,WO 50,000.OW 12/18/86 Various 12/01/26 
29352 -~ ~~- 

29353 12/17/86 100,000,WO (1) Various Various Various 
29415 
29474 
29475 04/08/87 l 0 0 , ~ , 0 0 0  (1) Various Various Various 
29678 -. . . - 
88M-256 
88M-257 05/03/89 1 0 0 , ~ , 0 0 0  (4) Various Various Various 

(H) New York State Energy Re-h And Dcvelapment Auhxity (NYSERDA) UnsecuredPmmirsory Note: 

28015 10/14/81 9,600,000 (1) Various Various 07/14/82 

0) NYSERDA Tax Exempt Revenue Notes: 

28465 
28466 06/29/83 16,000,000 (1) Various Various Vm'ous 
28467 
29416 12/17/86 25,760,wO 25,760.MX1 03/26/87 Various 03/01/27 
294 17 .~ ~ 

29512 
29513 04/08/87 93200.000 93,200,000 07/16/87 Various 07fllR7 
88-Ma78 
88-Ma79 09/28/88 69,800,000 69,800,000 12/28/88 Various 12/01/23 

Revolving Credit and Term LOM Agmmcnt: (oommcnial paper notes) 

27753 07/09/80 SO,W0,000 (1) 

Revolving Credit Agreement - Onve$o Facilities Tmt: 

27493 09/21/83 100,000,aoO (4) 

Liability for Nuclear Fuel Dispopal Costr: 

28525 03/20/84 139,061,770 (5) 

Unsceurcd Pmmissafy Notcs: 

28465 OSROM 2O.WO.000 (1) 
28465 05130184 30,000.000 (1) 

Swiss F m  Bonds issued by Niagara Mohawk Power C o p m i o n :  

28980 08/14/85 50.000,ooO (1) 

Obligation Under CapiW Leases - Nancumnt: 

4,166,638 

Rsvolving Credit and Loan Agmment: 

various 

Various 

various 

various 

various 

various 
vanous 

Various 

various 

various 

various 
various 

NUG Canmct Tcminafion Liability 

0 



FMANCUL CONDITION OF 
NIACARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION 

DECEMBER 31,tWS (ronllnued) 

l 8 . 1 ( o & D  BY 7WE -BY THE C- 

Faee Value 
Of Bonds 

Casc Dstc of Authorized Amaunt Date of 
J w b ~  LMu- and OuOutstandin~ lssur 

Interest hrfc of 
I&% Jifmrk 

(R) Senior Debt Facility: 

12733 tZ13195 IOO,WO,WO (4) Various Various 05/31/05 

(S) Senior Nnes & DiscomlNofss: 

@) Transmission Asset Purchacc Agmmcnis 
OI-E001 1OMO1 (4) 11107rn1 

NllaolUll Grid Money Pool 
OI-Md075 1M3/01 840,WOJIOO 6%,000,M)O Ol116m2 

6.50% 07/01/1999 
7.00% IOIOlRWO 
7125% M/OIRWI 
7.25% I O I O I ~ O O Z  
7 375% 07/01/2003 
7 625% 10/01/2005 
7.75% 10/01n008 
8.50% 07m1no10 
8.875% 05/15/2007 
5.375% 10/01/2004 

9.50% 11/07/2006 

various various 

(V) Niagata Mohawk Holdings, Inc. 
02-M-0341 0611 OD2 500,OW$OO 5WPW,WO 11/08/02 5.80% 11/08/12 
02-M-0341 06/10/02 350,000,000 350,000,000 06/27N3 3.83% 06/30/10 
02-M-0341 06/10/02 350,WO,000 350,000.W 0711 1/03 3.72% 07/31/09 
02-M-0341 11/03/03 44,000,000 44.000.000 Various Various Vsriow 

(1) Repaid on d a ~  of malurify 

(2) C o n 4  into 1,414,368 shares of w m  stock at $31.75 per shan (cash paid in lieu of 5,056.94 franionsl sham) 345,066,400 
R e d a d  f n  cash an IW01/59 -616.100 shares 
Redeemed for cash on 09/19/60 - 541,700 shams 
Conversion privilege - 02/01/57 - 09/19/60 

(3) Partidly redeemed thmugh sinking fund rquimnenla andlorothcr options under the mortgage agmmcnu PMial or hl l  repayment prior to m&fy 

(4) Pmial or full rspsymeat prior lo maturity 

(5) Reclassified to Deferred Credits 

(6) Amcndcd, mtsted md rcfinarscd 
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The original Mortgage Tnut Indentun ofCenfral New York Powcr Corporation (name changed to Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation) dated 
October 1,1937.and supplemental indenfloss dated as of the following dates: December 1, 1938, April 15, 1939, July 1,1940, January 1,1942. 
Onober I, 19M.Junc 1, 1945,Augun 17, 1948, Decmber31.1949, Janusry 1,1950,Ocfokr 1, 1950,Ocmber 19, 1950,Dc~mber 1, 1951, 
February 1,1953. Febnvry 20, 1953, October 1. 1953, Augun 1, 1954. April 25,1956, May 1,1956, September 1,1957, Junc 1,1958, 
March IS. 1960, April 1,1%0, November 1,1961, December 1,1964. OEtaber 1,1966, July IS, 1967, Augwt 1,1967, Augwl I, 1968, 
Dccember 1, 1969, Feb~ary  1, 1971, Febrwy 1. I972,August 1. 1972, December 1,1973, Octobcr 1,1974, Manh 1, 1975. August 1,1975. 
March 15, 1977,Augud I. 1977, Dccemkr I, 1977,March 1,1978.Decrmkr I, 1978,Srptcmber 1.1979,Ostober 1,1979,June IS, 1980, 
September 1,1980,March 1,1981,August 1, 1981, March 1.1982,April 1,1982,June 1,1982,August 1, 1982,November 1,1982, 
March 1,1983, May 1. 1983, J w  15, 1983, Mmh 1, 1984, May 1.1984, July 1,1984, Ocmber I. 1984, l anwy  31.1985, February 1,1985, 
Febrwy 15, 1985,Novcmbcr 1.1985,June I, 1986,August I, 1986,October 1.1986,November 1,1986, July I, 1987,May 1, 1988, 
February 1,1989, April 1.1989, October 1.1989, June 1. IWO, November 1,1990, March 1,1991 and Octobn 1, 1991, April 1,1992, 
June 1, 1992.July 1,1992,Augwt I, 1992,April 1.1993,lvly 1.1993, September 1, 1993,March 1, 1994, July 1,1994,M.a~ 1,1995. 
March 20,1996 and November 1.1998 wen given by Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (Ccntml New York Powcr Corporation prior to 
January 5.1950) fo the Marine Midland T ~ s l  Company of New York (Nw HSBC Bank USA) as Tnutcc. The m m l  of lhe iindcbtednes 
authorized to be seewed Ulmby is unlimited. The amountafindebtedncss lcNally i n c u d  by Niagara M o h k  Power Corporation was 
$6,46I,ISS,OM) (for Nisgara Mohawk Power Corporation and iu  prior companies, lhe w u n t  of indcbtcdmss acNally incumd was 
$6,6l8,084,000) and ihc amount pnsmtly outstanding is $51 1,305,000. This mongagc covers all major pmpeRies ofNiagsra Mohawk Powcr 
corporation. 
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18.l(i) --: 
Associated Companies -National Orid USA Service Company -Money Paol 
Assoc~aled Companlcr - Ntagara Mohawk Holdlngs. Inc 
Assoclalrd Compantcs - Nlagara Mohawk Holdlngq. Inc (5 8% Note due November 1.2012) 
Assorlalcd Cornpanten - Nlagara Mohawk Holdtngs. Inc (3 83% Nale due June 30,2010) 
Associated Companies -Niagara Mohawk Holdings, Inc. (3.72% Note dueNovember 1,2012) 

I8.l(i) OTHER: 

OUler current and accrued liabilities 

18.l(k) 
A. - TERM D m :  

Interest on Mortgage Bonds @ 5.15% 
I n m a  on Mortgage Bonds @ 6.518% 
Intern on Mortgage Bonds @ 6-518% 
Interea on Mortgage Bonds @ 91114% 
lntcre~t on Mangage Bonds 0 Floting 
Interest on Mortgage Bonds @ 7.314% 
lntcred on NYSERDA Nates @ Various 
Interest MI Senior Notes @ 7.518% 
Interest on Senior Notes @ 7 4 4 %  
Interest on Senior Notes @ 8-718% 

Total Interest on long-term dcM 

Associated CompanicrNational Orid USA Service Company-Money Parl 
Associated Compmics-Niagara Mohawk Holdings, Inc. 
Niagara Mohawk Holding\ Inc. (I)  @ 5.8% 
Niagara Mohawk Holdings, lnc. (I) @ 3.83% 
Niagara Mohawk Holdings, Inc. (I) @ 3.72% 

Total Intmst on Debt to Associated Com~anics 

Financing Costs in Support of Debt 
lnterea an Nuclear Fuel Dispoad Carts 
Intern on NYF'A IS0 MOW 
Interen on Customer Deposits 
Interest on Oas Contingency Rescm Adjustment 
Carrying Charges 
Interca on NYSERDA 
Miscellaneous Items 

Total Other Interest Expense 

18.1(1) -01 TOD- 
P n h m d  Stock 

3.40% Series (53.40pernhare) S 680,000 
3.60% Series ($3.64 @share) 1,260,000 
3.90% Series ($3.90 per share) 936,W3 
4.10% Series ($4.10 per share) 861,000 
4.85% Series(S4.85pcr share) 1,212.501 
5.25% Series ($5.25 per share) I,OSO,WI 
6.10% Series (66.10 pershare) 1,525,000 
7.45% Series ($7.45 per ohm) 1.184.550 
7.72% Sc"s ($7.72 per share) 3,088,000 
7.8556 Series ($7.85 per share) 269,060 
Adjustable Rate Series A 1,950,001 
Adjustable. Rate Series B 2.976.563 
Adjustable Rate Series C 3,500.000 
Adjustable Rate Series D J0.357.500 

$30,850,179 

Common Stock (dividends paid to Niagan Mohawk Holdin- Inc.) 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION O F  
NlACARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORAllON 

DECEMBER 31.2WS (continued) 

Prefemd Stock: 
3.40% Series ($3.40 per sham) 
3.60% Series ($3.60 per share) 
3.90.h Serics ($3.90 per share) 
4.10% Scries ($4.10 per share) 
4.85% Series ($4.85 pershare) 
5.25% Series ($5.25 per sham) 
6.10% Series ($6.10 per share) 
7.45% Series ($7.45 per share) 
7.72% Series ($7.72 per share) 
Adjustable Rate Series A 
Adiustable Rate Series B 
~dlustable Rate Series C 
Adjustable Rate Series D 

Common Stack (dividends paid to Niagan, Mohawk Holdings, Inc.) 

P p 3 
Refemd Smk: 

3.40% Series (33.40 per share) S 201,175 
3.60.h Series ($3.60 pcr s h m )  496.184 
3.90% Series(S3.90 per share) 380,591 
4.10% Series ($4.10 pcr share) 220,678 
4.85% Series ($4.85 per share) 174,373 
5.25%Series ($5.25 pershare) 184.921 
Adjustable Rate Series D 2.ZW.2 

Common Stock (dividends paid to NiagaraMohawk Holdings, Inc.) 

1.ZOWTO DECEMBER31.2004 
Refemd Stock: 

3.40% Series ($3.40 pcr share) $ 195,623 
3.60% Series(S3.60 per share) 493,701 
3.90% Series ($3.90 per s h m )  370,372 
410% Series ($4.10 per share) 216,604 
4.85% Series ($4.85 per share) 179,104 
5.25%Scries($5.25 per nhm) 170.372 
Adjustable Rate Series D 

Common Stock (dividends paid lo Niagara Mohawk Holdings, Ine.) 

9 
Prefcmd Stock: 

3.40% Series ($3.40 pcr share) 195,623 
3.60% Series ($3.60 per share) 493.701 
3.90% Series ($3.90 per share) 370,372 
4.1095 Series ($4.10 pcr share) 216,604 
4.85% Scrics(yl.85 per share) 179,104 
5.25% Scrics(55.25 per share) 

Common Stack (dividends paid to Niagara Mohawk Holdingr. Ine.) 

b a g - T n a  C o a t n m  for (be Fnrrb.sr o f  E M &  Pevcr: The Company hm several typcn o f l o n p v n  ronwnn for h e  purchase of c l s m c  
power The Company's eomnulmrnls under Ocse long-term mntncts, as of Dsccmber 3 1.2WS are summnzed in Oc table below The Company d ~ d  not 
cnvr imo mv new amsemcnrs in 2005 or 2004 bar a dctalld d~ncusolon of h e  financnal nvso acmmentr that h e  Com~snv has entered into to hcdee the . , 
costs o f p v r c . ~  c k c i t y  (which are not inclvdcd in t k  table below). &e ~ o t e  L - lxhva&G and ~ c d g i n g  ~ctivities. 

" 
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FlNANCUL CONDITION OP 
NUCARA MOHAWK WWERCORWRAT~ON 

DECEMRER 31.285(canllnmd) 

If the Company needs any additional energy to m e t  its load i t  can purchase the elstricify fmm o h  IPPs, other utilities, other energy merchants 
or through the NYISO at market prices. Substantially all ofthcsc conmas q u i r e  power to be dcliwnd kfm the Company is obligated to make payment 

(In thousnnds of dollan) 

Gas Sspply, Stonge and Plpelhc Commltmcn(s: I n  canmetion with its regulated gas business, Niagara Mohawk has long-term commirmcnts with a 
variety of suppliers and pipelines to purchase gas commodity, pmvide gas storage capability and oarupon gas wmmodity on interstate gas pipelims. 

Year Ended Deccmkr 3 1. 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

Thercaftn 

The table bclmvxts fotth Nit* Mohawk's estimated commitments at Dcecmbcr 31,2005, for the n m  6 w  years, and thereafter. 

Estimated Payments 
$455224 
445,078 
418,082 
373,854 
261.139 

2,293,787 

With respst to firm gm wpply commimnts, UK amatmu a n  bsxd upon valumcs specified in the conmcts giving consideration for the minimum take 
provisions. Commodity prices sra based on New York M m t i l c  Exchange quotes and reservation charges, when applicable. Stwage and piplinc Fapacity 
wmmitmcnls' m u n U  arc bas& upon volumes spsificd in the contracts, and represent demand chargcs pn'ccd at current filed tariffs. At December 31, 
2005, Niagara Mohawk's firm gas supply commitments havc varying expiration dates, the latest of which is November 2006. The gas smragc and 
tmsponation commitments have varying expiration dates wit the latcn k i n g  October 2012. 

CooaadWy RemmrUhtbar: As pm of tho Company's ongolng monclllal8on of commodny carts and revenues, the Company ~dcnulied several 
adjuomnts for the penod fmm October 1,2001 through Apnl30.2003 and ~nclvded lhcm in fillngt wllh the PSC Spcc!Acally, the Co-y r e q 4  
recover) of $36 nullton a f e o m d ~ r y  coats aooortated wth the undcr-rsonc~l~at~onof New York Power Authority (NYPA) hydropaucr revenues in 18 
cammodll) adjunmenl clause, and p m p o d  to refund $24 null#on arsoclated unth other revenues lhat w m  not nncluded in the wmmod~fy a d j m o l  
rceonr~liattan Fallowfng the filing. the PSC Smffcompletcd a wmprchcnr~vc add31 of thecompany '3 commodNy corn and revenues fmm October I. 2001 
through December 31.2003. and the Slaffand the Compan) a p e d  Ulal a refund of 12 8 mlll8on should k pmu~dcd lo cuslomn through that penod The 
PSC approved the refund on December 20,2004 

E n v l m a n u h l  Coatlngencla: The n o d  ongoingoprations and historic activities ofthe Company arc subject to variow federal, mta  and local 
envimnmcntat laws and regulations. Like many otha industrial wmpanics. UK Company's Ummissian and dishbution business uses or generates sam 
hazardous and potentially harardous wasm and by-products. Under federal and smte Superfund laws, potential liability for the historic contaminstion o f  
property may be imposed on responsible panies jointly and werally, without faull, even if the activities were lawful when they o c c u d .  

Tk Envimnmcnlal R o w i o n  Agency (EPA), Dcpamncnl o f  Environmental Conservation @EL as well as private entities havc alleged that the Compdny 
is a potentially responsible pMy under state or federal law for the nmediation of an aggngatc of appmximatcly I00 sites, including 52 which arc Company 
owmd. The Company's most significant liabilities relate to manufso~red gac plant (MGP) facilities f o m r l y  owned or operated by the Company's pnvious 
owners. The Company is cumntly investigating and remedisting. as necessary, the MGP sites and certain o h r  pmprties under sgrecmcnts with h EPA 
and DEC. 

TheCompany bcliews that obli@ons impused on the Compny becawc of lhe e n v i m m t a l  laws will nM have a mawrial impact on its results of 
opcratioru or its financial condition. The Company's Merger Rate Plan provides for the continued application o f  deferral m u n t i n g  for variations in 
spending fmm mounts pmvided in rsles related to there environmcmsl obligations. As a result, the Company has recorded a regulatory asset representing 
the investigation, remediadon and monitoring obligations i t  expects to m v e r  hom rstepayers. 

The Comp~ny rs punutngclams aga~nnother pomUally responslblc panics l o m v e r  !nvesttgauon and remdgauon cnsu 11 belleves mUKobl,pattonrof 
h e  p m w  Thc Company m o l  p d l n  the success of such clalnu, hourvcr As of Dcccmbcr 31.2005 and Dcecmbcr 31.2004, tho Conqmy had 
sccrucd I~ab~lzUen rrlaled to lu enr~ronmcntal obltgattons of5412 mllllon and $308 mllmn, respeclwely Thc dcc- in the a c c d  l~abtlsl~cs was 
pnmanly due lo payments made for carts uhlch were prerlously aecrved The hlgh end of the range of poVnl#al l ~ s b ~ l ~ t ~ r s  at December 31.2005 is 
estimated at $539 million. 

N w k r  Conihgeacla: As ofDecember 31,2WS and 2004, UK Comppny has a liability of $149 mil l im and $145 million, respectively, in other mn- 
cvmntliabilitics for the disposal of nuclear fuel inadiated priw to 1983. I n  lanusry 1983, ihc Nuclear Wme Policy Act of 1982 (the Nuclear Waste Act) 
established a cost o f  SO01 per kwh of net generation for current dilpasal o f  nuclcar fuel and pmvides for a dnermination of* Company's liability to the 
US. Depanment of Energy ( W E )  for the disposal o f  nuclear fuel irradiated prior to 1983. The Nuclear Waste Act also pmvidcs three payment options for 
liquidating such liability and the Company has elected to dclsy payment, with intens6 until the year i n  which Constellation Energy Gmup Inc, who 
purchased the Company's nuclear sets,  initially p l m  lo ship irradiated fuel to an appmvd DOE disposal facility. R o g r w  in developing the DOE facility 
ham been slaw and it is anticipated that the DOE facility will not be ready to accept deliveries until at least 2010. 



Exhibit A 
S h c a l S o f 1 7  

FINANCIAL CONDITION O F  
NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION 

DECEMBER 31,1005 (motlt~oed) 

Legal Malten: 

Si8tlon Scrvlce Cblrga: The Company p m i w l y  ow& thrrc power plmm (the Plants), which it sold to three affiliaes of NRG E m w ,  Inc. in 1999: 
Huntley Power L.L.C., Dunkirk Power L.L.C. and Oswcgo Harbor. L.L.C. (callectivcly, the NRG Affiliates). 7hs Company is involved in x v e d  
omcadinzs with the NRG Affiliates to mover bills for station service rendered to the Plants. (Niapara Mohawk Power Corn. v. Huntlev Power L.L.C.. , " 
~ u n k i r k  &wer L.L.C. and Oswcgo Harbor, L.L.C.) 

The mosl sipificant mion  in this matter is a proceeding before thc Fcderal Energy Regulatory Commission WRC) involving the Campmy's complaint 
against thcNRG Affiliates for their failure to pay nation service charges which the Company a s s d  mdcr its staleapproved retail tdffs .  A slate 
collection aaion and other pmceadinp havc all k e n  stsycd pending the outcome of the FERC pmcccding. A8 of k m b c r  31,2005, the NRG Affiliates 
owed the Com~anv M8.1 million for slation service. On November 1 9 . 2 W  snd Aaril22.2005. the FERC i w c d  orders denvine the Comaanv's eomalaint r . .  

and found t h a i t h ; ~ ~ ~  ~ffiliales do not havc to pay slate-approved A i l  rates for sation service. The company has appealcb t& orders 16 th; u s c d u n  of 
Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit Tho CouR has canwlidated this appcal with the two mil bypesscsswdiscussed below. Although subject to 
regulatory review and approval by the PSC as discussed below under "Renil Bypass", the Company believes that if the Court upholb the FERC's orders, 
the Company will be permined to recover thcx unpaid station service charges under its rate plans. 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION O F  
NUGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION 

DECEMBER 31,2005 (malinucd) 

Contribution by Niagara H u d m  Power Corpont'on on January 5,1950 oT: 
Capital stocks of certain subsidiaries 
at a~grsgate ststed values 
Other invesunenu 

Amount of cash received upon liquidation of 
Niagan Hudson Power Corporation in 
excess ofihe estimated liabilities 

Canuibvtians in aid of conrmction q u i r o d  
upon merger of Old Forge Elcclric Corporation 
credited to unsamed surplus pursuan to the 
commission's order dated March IS, 1952 - 
Carn 13343 

Unearned surplus of the h e g o  Canal Company 
acquired upon mrger as of March 31, 1952, 
less wiledown of iu utility plant by 
167.21260 

Transfer of the excess m u n u  reflected in L e  
depmlatton rescwe balances at December 3 1, 
195 1 punuMl lo L c  Comm~rs~on's order 
dslrd July 8. 1953 inCarn 14808 

Excchc ofbook ,slue over pmhare pnce of 
Capltd sock of !he Wc.nIvlllc E lamc 
L!%hl and Power Company - Case 17894 

Refund of oepoottr for rcnpl ccn!Bmler of Ntagan 
Hudson Power Carporalran wh~chcxptrd January 5, 
19jA 

~ & & r  court Order dated l a n u a ~ ~  23, 1961 m e r i n g  
sale of uncxehanged shares of Niagara Mohrwk Power 
Corporation common stock (5.173 shams) 

Exccsr at January 17, 1966 of ihe book wluc of Paul Srrdlh's 
Electric Light and Power and Railmad Company (S1,848,871) 
over41.750 shares of the Company's common sock at 
market of $26 per share ($1,085,500) given Lcrefors - 
Case 23754 by ordcr dated October 15. 1%5 

Merger purchase accounting adjusrmcnts on January 31,2005. Ningars Mohawk Holding. 
Ine.,pamnt ofNiagara Mohawk PowerCoqwration bccamc a wholly o w d  
subsidiaw ofNatianal Grid USA. 

RMm ofcapttal dl\ldrnd on EommJn sock p l d  D N8aganMohawk Holdmng. Ine (7D2) 
Equ~ty conotbul8on made be parent company. Nl.gara Mohawk Holdmgs. Inc (9103) 
To record rubstd8snrr on the Eaulo' bmn .~~ ~~~ - - ~ ~ ~ ,  ~~~~~ 

Excess book value over the cost of invesunsnu at lhc 
date of acquisition of Canadian Niagara Powcr Co., Ud. 
(163,547,284) and St  Lawrence Power Co. ($903,145) 
as previously recorded on Company's books. Ownership of 
these cornoanies was transferred to O~inac  E n e m  Camomion ~ ~ ~~ 

(formerly bp inL invesrmenu, ~imitcd)during 1982. ' 
Excess of book value over Ule cost of investment carried 
on the Company's baoks a dale of acquisition of 
Momu Manufacturing Corporation 
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~ ~ - - -  .- 
YIAGARA MORAWK POWER CORPORATION 

DECEMBERJI, 2005 (comtinued) 

Transfer In Common Capital Slock as authorized by the Cammission 
in Case 16389 by orderdated August 18.1953 

Excess of carrying value o f  lands, etc. relating to the St. Lawrence 
projact over the considerstion w i v e d  pursuant lo the 
Commission's order davd January 26,1959 - Cssc 15212 

Subsequent mrger purchase aeMuntlng sdjlouncnfs related lothe mrgcr ofNiagars Mohawk 
Holdmgs. Inc (parent) wth Nat~onal Gnd USA 

Tranrfemd to Accumulated Rov~sian for Depreclation of Elrctnc 
Plant ~n Sewce an m u n t  previously rredlted to M~sccllancous 
hd-on Capital. repmsent~ng thccxceaof the book value of 
Paul Smlth'r Elamc Light and Poser and Rstlrnad Company, 
11,848,872 over 41,750 shares of $3 per commonslock of 
Company. $1.085.500 as sulhonzcd hy PSC - Case 21754 

Exccaa of Ux c a t  of invenmnt camed on the Company's books over 
the book valve 1 date ofacqulrition of Beebn Island Corporation 
to record substdlw on the 'Fquq' h s  

Total Debits 

Balance December 3 1,2005 

-: . . 
Capital slock expew is k i n g  a m m i d  by debiting m u n t  425 - 
Miscellaneous Amortization as any seriu of stock is redeemed and =tired in  sccordanso with sinking fund pmvisions. 

. . 
-i and expenx applicable lo bonds outstanding are being amor t id  i n  equal annual 

inrtallmenfs aver the lives of the issues, by debiting a d  428 -Amortization o f  Debt Discount and Expenx. Also 
included in the debt expense being m r t i r s d  are refunding pmmiums, commission and expenses relating lo long-term deb1 
reacquired prior to maturily. 

Ong~nsl smunts of premium applrcablc to bonds outsland~ng ars bang m z c d  in e q d  annual Insallmenu ovn  the 
Il\o, ,Ithe llrer of thc tnuro, by credltlngacrount 429 - Amonlmtlon o f  Premtum MI Debt - C d t t  

Detailed income statement for the 12 months ending Decembn 31,2005 ond December 31,2004 and balance sheefs at December 31,2005 and 
December 31,2004 are attached. 
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Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 

FERC FORM NO.? (ED. 12-94) 
Page 110 
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> 
FERC FORM NO.l (REVISED 12-93) 

Page 1 I 1  

Name of Respondent 
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 

This Report is: 
( I )  [ ] An Original 
(2) 1 I A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo. Da. Yr) 

6/1/06 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET (ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS) 

Year of Report 

12/31105 

Line 

:Continued) 
Balance at 

Beg, of Year Title of Acmunt 
Balance at 
End of Year 

Ref. 
Page No. 
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Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 

1 NO.1 (ED. 12-89) 
Page 112 
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I Name of Respondent [This Report is: I Date of Re~ort I year of Re~ort I 

Title of Account I Page No. I Beg, of Year 1 End of Year I 

Please fill in the following: 

I Note: 
Please use the appropriate accounts under the heading "Other Noncunent Liabilities" for accounts that the PSC 

COMPARATIVE BAIANCE SHEET (LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS) (Continued) 
I I Ref. I Balance at I Balance at 

(1) [ j An Original 
(2) 1 I A Resubmission 

67 1 I I I 

FERC FORM NO.l (REVISED 12-93) 
Page 113 

(Mo. Da, ~ r )  
6/1/06 

68 

12/31/05 

TOTAL Liabilities and Other Credits (Enter Total of lines 14. 22. 30, 
45 and 54) $13,169.081.961 $13,135.678.436 
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1. Repod amounts for accounts 412 and 413. Revenue and 
Expenses from Utilny Plant Leased to Others, in another utility 
column (i, k, m, o) in a similar manner to a u t i l i  department. 
Spread the amount(s) over lines 02 through 24 as appropriate. 

2. Report amounts in account 414. Other Uti l ' i  Operating 5. Give Concise explanations concerning unsettled rate procaedi 
Inwme. in the same manner as accounts 412 and 413. where a contingency exists such that refunds of material amount 

need to be made to the utility's customers or which may result in 
3. Report data for lines 7. 9, and 10 for Natural Gas wmpanms material refund to the utility wiih respect to powe 
using accounts 404.1, 404.2,404.3,407.1, and 407.2. 6. Give concise explanations concerning significant amount of any 
4. Use page 122-123 for important notes regarding the statement refunds made or received during the year resuming 

Account 

FERC FORM NO.l (REV. 12-96) 
Page 114 
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for repofling addilional utility 

7. If any notes appearing in the report lo stockholders are applicable to this a footnote. 
Statement of Income, such noles may be included on page 122-123. 

FERC FORM NO.l (REVISED 12-96) 
Page 115 
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FERC FORM NO. 1 (REVISED 12-96) 
Page 116 
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FERC FORM NO.l (ED. 12-96) 
Page 117 
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FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) 
Page 118 

6. Show separately the State and Federal income tax effect of 
uld be identifkl as items shown in account 439. Adjustments lo Retained Earnings. 

(8,wO.OOO~ 
0 

670.010.613 

341 
35 
36 
37 
38 

TOTAL Dividends Declared - Common Stock (Acct. 438) (Total of lines 31 t h ~  35) 
Transfers from Acct. 216.1. Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings 
Balance - End of year (Total of lines 01. 09. 15, 16, 22. 29, 36 and 37) 
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APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS (Account 215) 
State balance and purpose of each appropriated retained earnings amount at end of year and give accountin 
ntries for any applications of appropriated retained earnings during the year. 

8.786.951 

Name of Respondent 
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation 

APPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS -AMORTIZATION RESERVE. FEDERAL 
(Account 215.1) 

State below the total amount set aside through appropriations of retained earnings, as of the 
nd of the year, in compliance with the provisions of Federally granted hydroelectric project 

nses held by the respondent. If any reductions or changes other than the normal annual 

I I 
FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) 

Page 119 

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 
Line I Item I Amount 

This Report is: 
(1) [ ]An Original 
(2) [ I A Resubmission 

Date of Report 
(Mo. Da. Yr) 

6/1/06 

Year of Report 

12/31/05 
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annual stockholders report are applicaMe to thfs statement.3. Operating Activnies - Other: Include gains and losses pertaini 
such notes should be included on pages 122-123. to operating activities only. Galns and losses pertaining to invest 
information about noncash investing and financing activitleeand financing activities shwid be reported in those activities. Sh 
should be provided on pages 122-123. Provide also on on page 122-123 the amounts of Interest paid (net of amounts 
page 122 a reconciliation between "Cash and Cash capitalized) and income taxes paid. 
Equlvaients at End of Yea? with related amounts on the 
balance sheet. 

2. Under "Other" specify significant amounts and group 

FERC FORM NO. 1 (ED. 12-96) 

Page 120 
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~ ~ 

1(2) [ 1 A ~esibmlsslon 8/1/06 1 12/31/05 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

4. Investing Activities 5. Codes used: 
Include at Mher (line 31) net cash ouMow to acquire other (a) Net proceeds or payments. 
wmpanies. Provide a rewndliatlon of assets acquired with (b) Bonds, debentures and oiher long-term debt. 
liabilities assumed on pages 122-123. (c) Include commercial paper. 

(d) Identity separately such items as investments, 
fixed assets. intanaibles. etc. 

Name of Respondent 
Niagara Mohawk Power Cciporation 

- 
DO not include on thfs statement the aollar amount of leases 
capitallzed per USOA General lnstmchon 20 nnstead 6. Enter on pages 122.123 clarHicatiom and explanat~ons I 
provide a reconciliation ofthe dollar amount of leases 
capitalized with the plant cost on pages 122-123. 

Line I Desuiption (See inslructlon No. 5 for Explanations of Codes) I Amounts 

This Report is: IDate of Report 
(1) [ 1 An Odglnal (Mo. Da. Yr) 

NO, I (a) I (b) 
461 Loans Made or Purchased 
471 Collections on Loans I 
1 ~ 1  

Year of Report 

.."I I 

491 Net (Increase) Decrease in Reosivabks I 
I 

- 

501 Net (Increase) Decrease on lnventoty 
51 1 Net ( ncreasepecrease m A lowances ~ s ~ d  tor Specdatlon 
521 kel rlcrease (Decrease, in PayaDles ana Accrued Expenses I 
531 Other: I 
541 Decrease in special deposits 20,873,681 
C C I  I 
J J  

5 4  Net CZ Pfovldea by (use0 in) Investing Adlvllles 
I 

571 (Total of lhnes 38 thru 55) I _ 
C S I  
9" I 

591cash Flows from Financing ActlviUes: 

651 I 
661 Net Increase in Short-Ten Debt (c) 12,959,620 
671 Other: Increase in Other Paid In Capital 1 0 
f .a1 

60 
61 
62 
63 
f d  

I 
781 Net Decrease in Short-Term Debt (c) 

lines 70 thru 81) 1 (547,086,156) 

Proceeds from Issuance of: 
Long-Term Debt (b) 
Preferred Stock 
Common Stock 
,,,ha,. 

0 

85 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivaknts 
.,: . - , 

86 
87 
88 
89 
90 

FERC FORM NO1 (ED. 12-96) 
Page 121 

(Total of lines 22, 57 and 83) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

,,* :. . , - 

476.635 
~. . . 

7.307.193 
, '. . , ,  - , .  , 

87,783,828 
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NIAGARA MOHAWK POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Basis of Presentation: Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (the Company) is subject to regulation 
by the New York State Public Service Commission (PSC) and the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC) with respect to its rates for service under a methodology that establishes prices 
based on the Company's cost. The Company's accounting policies conform to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in the United States of America (GAAP), including the accounting principles for 
rate-regulated entities with respect to the Company's transmission, distribution and gas operations 
(regulated business), and are in accordance with the accounting requirements and ratemaking practices of 
the regulatory authorities. 

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary ofNiagara Mohawk Holdings, Inc. (Holdings), which in hlrn 
is wholly-owned by National Grid USA (National Grid). 

The Company's consolidated financial statements include its accounts as well as those of its wholly 
owned subsidiaries. Inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated. 

2. Goodwill: The acquisition ofthe Company was accounted for by the purchase method, the 
application of which, including the recognition of goodwill, was recognized on the books of the 
Company, the most significant subsidiary of Holdings. The merger transaction resulted in approximately 
f 1.2 billion of goodwill. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 
142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", the Company reviews its goodwill annually for impairment 
and when events or circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired. The Company utilized a 
discounted cash flow approach incorporating its most recent business plan forecasts in the performance of 
the annual goodwill impairment test. The result of the annual analysis determined that no adjustment to 
the goodwill carrying value was required. 

3. Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

4. Utility Plant: The cost of additions to utility plant and replacements of retirement units of property 
are capitalized. Costs include direct material, labor, overhead and AFUDC (see below). Replacement of 
minor items of utility plant and the cost of current repairs and maintenance are charged to expense. 
Whenever utility plant is retired, its original cost, together with the cost of removal, less salvage, is 
charged to accumulated depreciation. 
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5. Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC): The Company capitalizes AFUDC as 
part of construction costs in amounts equivalent to the cost of funds devoted to plant under construction 
for its regulated business. AFUDC represents an allowance for the cost of funds used to finance 
construction. AFUDC is capitalized in "Utility plant" with offsetting non-cash credits to "Other interest" 
and "Other income (deductions)" on the Consolidated Statement of Operations. This method is in 
accordance with an established rate-making practice under which a utility is permitted a return on, and the 
recovery of, prudently incurred capital costs through their ultimate inclusion in rate base and in the 
provision for depreciation. AFUDC rates are determined in accordance with FERC and PSC regulations. 
The AFUDC rates in effect at December 3 I, 2005 and 2004 were 3.05 percent and 1.22 percent, 
respectively. AFUDC is segregated into its two components, borrowed funds and other funds, and is 
reflected in the "Other interest" and "Other income (deductions)" sections, respectively, in the 
Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations. The amounts of AFUDC credits were recorded as 
follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 
($ in 000's) 2005 2004 

Other income 
(deductions) $ - $ (75) 

Other interest 1,714 418 

6. Depreciation: For accounting and regulatory purposes, the Company's depreciation is computed on 
the straight-line basis using the average service lives. The Company perfomls depreciation studies to 
determine service lives of classes of property and adjusts the depreciation rates when necessary. 

The weighted average service life, in years, for each asset category is presented in the table below: 

Year Ended Decmeber 31, 
2005 2004 

Asset Category: 
Electric 
Gas 
Common 

7. Revenues: The Company bills its customers on a monthly cycle basis at approved tariffs based on 
energy delivered and a minimum customer service charge. Revenues are determined based on these bills 
plus an estimate for unbilled energy delivered between the cycle billing date and the end of the 
accounting period. The unbilled revenues included in accounts receivable at both December 31,2005 and 
2004 was approximately $13 1 million. 

The Company recognizes changes in accmed unbilled electric revenues in its results of operations. 
Pursuant to the Company's 2000 multi-year gas settlement (ended December 2004 with the Company 
having the right to request an increase at any time, if needed), changes in accrued unbilled gas revenues 
are deferred. At December 31,2005 and 2004, approximately $3 million and $6 million, respectively, of 
unbilled gas revenues remain unrecognized in results of operations. The Company cannot predict when 
unbilled gas revenues will be allowed to be recognized in results of operations. 
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In August 2001, the PSC approved certain rate plan changes. The changes allowed for certain 
commodity-related costs to be passed through to customers beginning September 2001. At the same time, 
a transmission revenue adjustment mechanism was implemented which reconciles actual and rate forecast 
transmission revenues for pass-back to, or recovery from customers. The commodity adjustment clause 
and the transmission revenue adjustment mechanism continue to remain in effect under the Merger Rate 
Plan which became effective upon the closing of the merger on January 3l.2002. 

The PSC approved a multi-year gas rate settlement agreement (amended through the Company's merger 
rate plan and ended in December 2004 with the Company having the right to request an increase at any 
time, if needed) in  July 2000 that includes a provision for the continuation of a full gas cost collection 
mechanism, effective August 2000. This gas cost collection mechanism was originally reinstated in an 
interim agreement that became effective November 1999. Such gas cost collection mechanism continues 
under the Merger Rate Plan. The Company's gas cost collection mechanism provides for the collection or 
pass back of increases or decreases in purchased gas costs. 

8. Federal and State Income Taxes: Regulated federal and state income taxes are recorded under the 
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) SFAS No. 109 "Accounting for Income 
Taxes". Income taxes have been computed utilizing the asset and liability approach that requires the 
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the tax consequences of temporary differences by 
applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years to differences between the financial 
statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. Deferred investment tax 
credits are amortized over the useful life of the underlying properly. 

9. Service Company Charges: National Grid USA Service Company, lnc., an affiliated service 
company operating pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Public Utility Holding Company Act 
of 1935, has furnished services to the Company at the cost of such services since the merger with 
National Grid. These costs approximated $200 million and $121 million for the years ended December 
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments, purchased with 
an original maturity of three months or less, to be cash and cash equivalents. 

I I. Restricted Cash: Restricted cash consists of margin accounts for hedging activity, health care claims 
deposits, New York State Department of Conservation securitization for certain site cleanup, and 
worker's compensation premium deposit. 

12. Derivatives: The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments under SFAS No. 133, 
"Accounting for Derivalives and Hedging Activities" (FAS 133), and SFAS No. 149, "Amendment of 
SFAS No. 133 on Derivative 1nsh.uments and Hedging Activities," as amended. Under the provisions of 
FAS 133, all derivatives except those qualifying for the normal purchaselnormal sale exception are 
recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. Fair value is determined using current quoted market 
prices. If a contract is designated as a cash flow hedge, the change in its market value is generally 
deferred as a component of other comprehensive income until the transaction it is hedging is completed. 
Conversely, the change in the market value of a derivative not designated as a cash flow hedge is deferred 
as a regulatory asset or liability as the Company has received approval from the PSC to establish a 
regulatory asset or liability for derivative instruments that did not qualify for hedge accounting and were 
the result of regulatory rulings. A cash flow hedge is a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability 
of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability. To qualify as a w h  flow 
hedge, the fair value changes in the derivative must be expected to offset 80% to 120% of the changes in 
fair value or cash flows of the hedged item. 
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13. Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in the equity of a 
company, not including those changes that result from shareholder transactions. While the primary 
component of comprehensive income (loss) is reported net income or loss, the other components of 
comprehensive income (loss) relate to additional~minimum pension liability recognition, deferred gains 
and losses associated with hedging activity, and unrealized gains and losses associated with certain 
investments held as available for sale. See Note C -Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). 

14. Additional Minimum Pension Liability: Additional minimum pension liability is recognized under 
SFAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions". Under current rate agreements with the PSC, the 
Company does not recognize its additional minimum pension liability (AML) for its qualified plan as a 
component of accumulated other comprehensive income but as a regulatory asset. The additional 
minimum pension liability for its non-qualified plan is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive 
income. 

15. Power Purchase Agreements: The Company accounts for its power purchase agreements as 
executory contracts. The Company assesses several factors in determining how to account for its power 
purchase contracts. These factors include: 

. the term of the contract compared to the economic useful life of the facility generating the 
electricity; 

. the involvement, if any, that the Company has in operating the facility; 

. the amount of any fixed payments the Company must make, even ifthe facility does not generate 
electricity; and 

. the level of control the Company has over the amount of electricity generated by the facility, and 
who bears the risk in the event the facility is unable to generate. 

16. New Accounting Standards: In March 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
issued Interpretation No. 47 (FIN 47). "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations." FIN 
47 will result in: (a) more consistentrecognition of liabilities relating to asset retirement obligations, (b) 
more information about expected future cash outflows associated with those obligations and (c) more 
information about investments in long-lived assets because additional asset retirement costs will be 
recognized as part of the carrying amounts of the assets. 

A conditional retirement obligation, which is referred to in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations," is defined in FIN 47 as a legal 
obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and (or) method of settlement are 
conditional upon a future event that may or may not be within the entity's control. The obligation to 
perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though the uncertainty exists about the timing 
and (or) method of settlement. Uncertainty about the timing and (or) method of settlement of a 
conditional asset retirement obligation should be factored into the measurement of the liability when 
sufficient information exists. FIN 47 also clarifies when an entity has sufficient information to make a 
reasonable estimate of the fair value of an asset retirement obligation. 

FIN 47 will become effective for the Company as of its March 3 I, 2006 fiscal year end. The Company is 
currently assessing the impact of the adoption of FIN 47 on its results of operations and financial position. 
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In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, a 
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3." Previously, Accounting Principles 
Board Opinion No. 20, "Accounting Changes" and SFAS No. 3. "Reporting Accounting Changes in 
Interim Financial Statements" defined the requirements for the accounting for and the reporting of a 
change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods' 
financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the 
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. When it is impracticable to determine the 
period-specific effects of an accounting change on one or more individual prior periods presented, SFAS 
No. 154 requires that the new accounting principle be applied to the balances of assets and liabilities as of 
the beginning of the earliest period for which retrospective application is practicable and that a 
corresponding adjustment be made to the opening balance of retained earnings for that period rather than 
being reported in an income statement. 

SFAS No. 154 becomes effective for fiscal years ending after December 15,2005, and the Company will 
adopt it as of its March 31,2006 fiscal year end. 

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123R. "Share-Based Payment." SFAS No. 123R addresses the 
accounting for transactions in which a company receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity 
instruments of the company or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the company's equity 
instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. SFAS No. I23R also 
eliminates the ability to account for share-based compensation transactions using Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and requires that such 
transactions be accounted for using a fair-value-based method. SFAS No. 123R was originally effective 
for public companies for interim and annual periods beginning after June 15,2005. In April 2005, 
however, the SEC delayed the effective date of SFAS No. 123R to annual, rather than interim, periods 
that begin after June 15,2005. The SEC's new rule results in a six-month deferral for the Company and 
will be effective as of April 1.2006. The Company does not anticipate that adoption of SFAS No. I23R 
will have a material impact on its results of operations or its financial position. 

17. Reclassifications: 
Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements to conform to the current year presentation. 

NOTE B - RATE AND REGULATORY ISSUES 

The Company's financial statements conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United 
States of America (GAAP), including the accounting principles for rate-regulated entities that apply to its 
regulated operations. SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation," permits 
a public utility that is regulated on a cost-of-service basis to defer certain costs it would otherwise charge 
to expense, if authorized to do so by the regulator. These deferred costs are known as regulatory assets. 
The Company's regulatory assets were $5.0 billion and $4.9 billion as of December 31,2005 and 2004, 
respectively. These regulatory assets are probable of recovery under the Company's Merger Rate Plan 
and Gas Multi-Year Rate and Restructuring Agreement. The Company believes the prices it will charge 
for electric service in the future, including Competitive Transition Charges (CTC), will be suficient to 
recover and earn a return on the Merger Rate Plan's stranded regulatory assets over their planned 
amortization periods, assuming no unforeseen reduction in load or bypass of the CTC charges. 
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The Company's ongoing electricity business continues to be rate-regulated on a cost-of-service basis 
under the Merger Rate Plan and, accordingly, the Company continues to apply SFAS No. 71 to it. In 
addition, the Company's Independent Power Producer contracts, and the Purchased Power Agreements, 
which were entered into when the Company exited the power generation business, continue to be the 
obligations of the regulated business. 

The Company is earning a return on most of its regulatory assets under its Merger Rate Plan. 

On July 29,2005, the Company filed its biannual CTC reset and deferral account recovery filing to reset 
rates charged to customers beginning January 1,2006. The Company resets its CTC every two years 
under its Merger Rate Plan. The CTC reset is intended to account for changes in forecasted electricity 
and natural gas commodity prices, and the effects those changes have on the Company's above-market 
payments under legacy power contracts that otherwise would be stranded. In addition, the Merger Rate 
Plan allows the Company to recover amounts exceeding $100 million in its deferral accounts (as 
projected through the end of each two-year CTC reset period through the end of the Merger Rate Plan). 
On December 27,2005, the Public Service Commission (PSC) approved the Company's proposal for the 
new CTC effective January 1,2006. The PSC also approved recovery of deferral account amounts of 
$1 00 million in 2006 and $200 million in 2007. For 2006, the actual deferral-related surcharge will begin 
in April 2006, with $100 million to be collected over the last nine months of the 2006 calendar year. An 
audit of the deferral amount by regulatory Staff is ongoing. The Company will continue to defer wsts 
and revenues, as applicable, through the end of the Merger Rate Plan on December 31,201 1. The 
Company's future filings for recovery of deferred amounts are subject to regulatory review and approval. 

Regulatory Tax Asset: The regulatory tax asset represents the expected future recovery from ratepayers 
of the tax consequences of temporary differences between the recorded book basis and the tax basis of 
assets and liabilities. This amount is primarily timing differences related to depreciation. These amounts 
are recovered and amortized as the related temporary differences reverse. 

Deferred Environmental Restoration Costs: This regulatory asset represents deferred wsts associated 
with the Company's share of the estimated costs to investigate and perform certain remediation activities 
at sites whichit may be associated. The Company's rate plans provide for specific rate allowances for 
these costs, with variances deferred for future-recovery o; pass-back to cust&ers. The Company 
believes future wsts, beyond the expiration of current rate plans, will continue to be rewvered through 
rates. 

Pension and Post-retirement Benefit Plans: Excess costs of the Company's pension and post- 
retirement benefits plans over amounts received in rates are deferred to a regulatory asset to be recovered 
in a future period. As a result of the closing of the merger, the Company revalued its assets and liabilities, 
which resulted in an increase to the Company's postretirement liability of approximately $440 million. 

Additional Minimum Pension Liability: The offset to any additional minimum pension liability 
associated with the Company's qualified pension plan is applied to this regulatory asset on a pre-tax basis 
instead of after-tax to other comprehensive income as determined by regulatory rulings. 

Loss on Reacquired Debt: The loss on reacquired debt regulatory asset represents the costs to redeem 
certain long-term debt securities, which were retired prior to maturity. These amounts are amortized as 
interest expense ratably over the lives of the related issues in accordance with PSC directives. 



Exhibit B 
Page 19 of 40 

Other: Included in the other regulatory asset is the accumulation of numerous miscellaneous regulatory 
deferrals, income earned on gas rate sharing mechanisms, the incentive earned on the sale of the fossil 
and hydro generation assets and certain New York Independent System Operator (NYISO) costs that were 
deferred for future recovery. 

See Notes H, D and L for a discussion of regulatory asset accounts - Pensions and postretirement benefits 
Plans, Deferred environmental restoration costs and Swap contracts regulatory asset, respectively. 

NOTE C -  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(In thousands of dollars) 

Gain (Loss) 
On 

Available- 
for-Sale 

Securities 
Balance as of December 31.2004 $ 1.843 

Investment activity, net of tax (822) 
Hedging activity, net of tax 
Change in additional minimum pension liability, net of tax 
Reclassification adiustment for eain included in net 

Total 
Additional Accumulated 
Minimum Other 
Pension Cash Flow Comprehensive 

Income (Loss) 
$ (1,557) $ (280) S 6 

- (822) 
45,910 45,910 

508 508 
- 

income, net of tax 
Balance as of December 3 I ,  2005 

Taxes on other comprehensive income for the following periods were: 

For the Twelve Months 
(In thousands of dollars) Ended December 31, 

2005 2004 
Investment activity S 548 $ (554) 
Hedeine activitv 130.607) (3.835) - - . . . .  . 
Change in additional minimum pension liability (3393 I5 
Reclassification adjustment for gain included in 
net income 24,785 5,255 

S (5,613) S 881 

NOTE D - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commodity Reconciliations: As part of the Company's ongoing reconciliation of commodity costs and 
revenues, the Company identified several adjustments for the period from October 1,2001 through April 
30, 2003, and included them in filings with the PSC. Specifically, the Company requested recovery of 
$36 million of commodity costs associated with the under-reconciliation of New York Power Authority 
(NYPA) hydropower revenues in its commodity adjustment clause, and proposed to refund $24 million 
associated with other revenues that were not included in the commodity adjustment reconciliation. 
Following the filing, the PSC Staff completed a comprehensive audit of the Company's commodity costs 
and revenues from October 1,2001 through December 3 I ,  2003, and the Staff and the Company agreed 
that a refund of $2.8 million should be provided to customers through that period. The PSC approved the 
refund on December 20,2004. 
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Long-Term Contracts for the Purchase o f  Electric Power: The Company has several types of long- 
term contracts for the purchase of electric power. The Company's commitments under these long-term 
contracts, as of December 3 1,2005 are summarized in the table below. The Company did not enter into 
any new agreements in 2005 or 2004. For a detailed discussion of the financial swap agreements that the 
Company has entered into to hedge the costs of purchased electricity (which are not included in the table 
below), see Note L - Derivatives and Hedging Activities. 

(In lhousands of dollars) 

Year Ended Estimated 
December 3 I, Payments 

2006 $ 455,224 
2007 445,078 
2008 4 18,082 
2009 373,854 
2010 261,139 

Thereafter 2,293,787 

If the Company needs any additional energy to meet its load it can purchase the electricity from other 
IPPs, other utilities, other energy merchants or through the NYlSO at market prices. Substantially all of 
these contracts require power to be delivered before the Company is obligated to make payment. 

Gas Supply, Storage and Pipeline Commitments: In connection with its regulated gas business, the 
Company has long-ten commitments with a variety of suppliers and pipelines to purchase gas 
commodity, provide gas storage capability and transport gas commodity on interstate gas pipelines. 

The table below sets forth the Company's estimated commitments at December 3 1, 2005, for the next five 
years, and thereafter. 

(In thousands 
of dollars) 

Year Ended 
December 31, Gas Supply 

2006 $ 384,482 
2007 210,385 
2008 57,582 
2009 
2010 

Thereafter 

Gas Storage1 
Pipeline 

With respect to firm gas supply commitments, the amounts are based upon volumes specified in the 
contracts giving consideration for the minimum take provisions. Commodity prices are based on New 
York Mercantile Exchange quotes and reservation charges, when applicable. Storage and pipeline 
capacity commitments' amounts are based upon volumes specified in the contracts, and represent demand 
charges priced at current filed tariffs. At December 3 1,2005, the Company's firm gas supply 
commitments have varying expiration dates, the latest of which is November 2006. The gas storage and 
transportation commitments have varying expiration dates with the latest being October 201 2. 
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Environmental Contingencies: The normal ongoing operations and historic activities of the Company 
are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. Like many other 
industrial companies, the Company's transmission and distribution business uses or generates some 
hazardous and potentially hazardous wastes and by-products. Under federal and state Superfund laws, 
potential liability for the historic contamination of property may be imposed on responsible parties jointly 
and severally, without fault, even ifthe activities were lawful when they occurred. 

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC), as 
well as private entities have alleged that the Company is a potentially responsible party under state or 
federal law for the remediation of an aggregate of approximately 100 sites, including 52 which are 
Company owned. The Company's most significant liabilities relate to manufactured gas plant (MGP) 
facilities formerly owned or operated by the Company's previous owners. The Company is currently 
investigating and remediating, as necessary, the MGP sites and certain other properties under agreements 
with the EPA and DEC. 

The Company believes that obligations imposed on the Company because of the environmental laws will 
not have a material impact on its results of operations or its financial condition. The Company's Merger 
Rate Plan provides for the continued application of deferral accounting for variations in spending from 
amounts provided in rates related to these environmental obligations. As a result, the Company has 
recorded a regulatory asset representing the investigation, remediation and monitoring obligations it 
expects to recover from ratepayers. 

The Company is pursuing claims against other potentially responsible parties to recover investigation and 
remediation costs it believes are the obligations of those parties. The Company cannot predict the success 
of such claims, however. As of December 31,2005 and December 3 I ,  2004, the Company had accrued 
liabilities related to its environmental obligations of $41 2 million and $308 million, respectively. The 
decrease in the accrued liabilities was primarily due to payments made for costs which were previously 
accrued. The high end ofthe range of potential liabilities at December 31,2005 is estimated at $539 
million. 

Nuclear Contingencies: As of December 3 1,2005 and 2004, the Company has a liability of $149 
million and $145 million, respectively, in other non-current liabilities for the disposal of nuclear fuel 
irradiated prior to 1983. In January 1983, the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (the Nuclear Waste Act) 
established a cost of $.001 per kwh of net generation for current disposal of nuclear fuel and provides for 
a determination of the Company's liability to the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) for the disposal of 
nuclear fuel irradiated prior to 1983. The Nuclear Waste Act also provides three payment options for 
liquidating such liability and the Company has elected to delay payment, with interest, until the year in 
which Constellation Energy Group Inc, who purchased the Company's nuclear assets, initially plans to 
ship irradiated fuel to an approved DOE disposal facility. Progress in developing the DOE facility has 
been slow and it is anticipated that the DOE facility will not be ready to accept deliveries until at least 
2010. 

Legal Matters: 

Station Sewice Charges: The Company previously owned three power plants (the Plants), which it sold 
to three affiliates of NRG Energy, Inc. in 1999: Huntley Power L.L.C., Dunkirk Power L.L.C. and 
Oswego Harbor, L.L.C. (collectively, the NRG Affiliates). The Company is involved in several 
proceedings with the NRG Affiliates to recover bills for station service rendered to the Plants. (Niagara 
Mohawk Power Corp. v. Huntley Power L.L.C., Dunkirk Power L.L.C. and Oswego Harbor, L.L.C.) 
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The most significant action in this matter is a proceeding before the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC) involving the Company's complaint against the NRG Affiliates for their failure to 
pay station service charges which the Company assessed under its state-approved retail tariffs. A state 
collection action and other proceedings have all been stayed pending the outcome of the FERC 
proceeding. As of December 3 I, 2005, the NRG Affiliates owed the Company $48.1 million for station 
service. On November 19,2004 and April 22,2005, the FERC issued orders denying the Company's 
complaint and found that the NRG Affiliates do not have to pay state-approved retail rates for station 
service. The Company has appealed the orders to the US Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia 
Circuit. The Court has consolidated this appeal with the two retail bypass cases discussed below. 
Although subject to regulatory review and approval by the PSC as discussed below under "Retail 
Bypass", the Company believes that if the Court upholds the FERC's orders, the Company will be 
permitted to recover these unpaid station service charges under its rate plans. 

Retail Bypass: As discussed in more detail in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal 
year ended March 31,2005, a number of generators have complained or withheld payments associated 
with the Company's delivery of station service to their generation facilities, arguing that they should be 
permitted to bypass the Company's retail charges. The FERC issued two orders on complaints filed by 
the Company's station service customers in December 2003 which allowed two generators to net their 
station service electricity with power produced and to avoid state-authorized charges for deliveries made 
over distribution facilities. These orders directly conflict with the Company's state-approved tariffs and 
the orders ofthe PSC on station service rates. The December 2003 FERC orders, if upheld, will permit 
these generators to bypass the Company's state-jurisdictional station service charges for electricity, 
including those set forth in the filing that was approved by the PSC on November 25, 2003. The 
Company tiled for rehearing of these orders, and the FERC denied these requests in January 2005. The 
Company has appealed the December 2003 and January 2005 orders to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 
District of Columbia Circuit. 

In an order dated May 10,2004, in a related proceeding concerning the New York Independent System 
Operator (NYISO), the FERC reaffirmed its reasoning of the December 2003 orders. In so ruling, the 
FERC indicated that the NYISO station service order would be limited to merchant generators self- 
supplying their own power, and it should not be interpreted to apply to self-supplying retail industrial and 
commercial customers that do not compete with incumbent utilities for customer load. The Company 
appealed the order to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit on July 9,2004. 

The Court has consolidated these appeals for hearing. Final briefs were tiled, and oral argument has been 
set for April l0.2006. 

These FERC orders have increased the risk that generators will be able to bypass local distribution 
company charges (including stranded cost recovery charges) when receiving service through the NYISO. 
The Company included recovery of lost revenues resulting from the FERC's station service rulings as part 
of its deferral recovery proposal made with the PSC on July 29,2005. The Company's deferral recovery 
is subject to ongoing audit by the PSC Staff. 
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands): 

Series Rate % Maturity 2005 2004 
First Mortgage Bonds: - - 
6 518% 6.625 July 1,2005 1 10,000 
9 314% 9.750 November 1,2005 137.98 1 
7 314% 7.750 May 15,2006 275,000 275,000 
Senior Notes: 
7 518% 7.625 October 1,2005 302.439 
8 718% 8.875 May 15,2007 200,000 200,000 
7 314% 7.750 October 1,2008 600,000 600,000 
Tax exempt: 
5.15% 5.150 November 1,2025 75,000 75,000 
2013 Variable October 1,201 3 45,600 45,600 
2015 Variable July 1,2015 100,000 100,000 
2023 Variable December 1,2023 69,800 69,800 
2025 Variable December 1,2025 75,000 75,000 
2026 Variable December 1,2026 50,000 50,000 
2027 Variable March 1,2027 25,760 25,760 
2027 Variable July 1,2027 93,200 93,200 
2029 Variable July 1,2029 1 15,705 1 15,705 
Notes Payable: 
NM Holdings Note 3.720 July 3 1.2009 350.000 350,000 
NM Holdings Note 3.830 June 30,20 10 350,000 350,000 
NM Holdings Note 5.800 November I ,  201 2 500,000 500,000 
Unamortized discounts ( 1,202) (1,613) 
Total long-tern debt 2,923,863 3,473,872 
Long-term debt due within one 

year 275,000 550,420 
Total long-term debt, excluding 

current portion $2,648,863 $2,923,452 

Substantially all of the Company's operating properties are subject to mortgage liens securing its 
mortgage debt. Several series of First Mortgage Bonds and Promissory Notes were issued to secure a like 
amount of tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by the New York State Energy Research and Development 
Authority (NYSERDA). Approximately $575 million of such securities bear interest at short-term 
adjustable interest rates (with an option to convert to other rates, including a fixed interest rate which 
would require the Company to issue First Mortgage Bonds to secure the debt) which averaged 2.39 
percent for the year ended December 3 I ,  2005, 1.29 percent for the year ended December 3 I, 2004. 
Pursuant to agreements between NYSERDA and the Company, proceeds from such issues were used for 
the purpose of financing the construction of certain pollution control facilities at the Company's 
generation facilities (which the company subsequently sold) or to refund outstanding tax-exempt bonds 
and notes (see Note F). 
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On May 1,2003, the Company completed the restructuring of $414 million of variable rate tax-exempt 
bonds. The variable rate bonds are currently in the auction rate mode and are backed by bond insurance, 
which allowed the Company to terminate $424 million of letter of credit facilities that were in place to 
provide liquidity support for principal and interest while the bonds were in a variable rate mode. The 
restructuring of the $41 4 million of tax-exempt bonds was accomplished through a non-cash transaction. 

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the five years subsequent to December 3 1, 2005, excluding 
capital leases are approximately: 

($3 in millions) 
Calendar Year Amount 

2006 $ 275 
2007 200 
2008 600 
2009 350 
2010 350 

Thereafter 1,150 
Total $ 2,925 

The current portion of capital lease obligations is reflected in the other current liabilities line item on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet and was approximately $600,000 and $1.0 million at December 3 1,2005 and 
2004, respectively. The non-current portion of capital lease obligations is reflected in the "Other" line 
item on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and was approximately $4 million and $5 million at December 
31,2005 and 2004, respectively. 

At December 31,2005, the Company's long-term debt, excluding intercompany debt, had a fair value of 
approximately $2.5 billion. The fair market value of the Company's long-term debt was estimated based 
on the debts' coupons and remaining lives along with the current interest rate conditions. 

Early Extinguishment of Debt 

During the years ended December 21,2003, and 2004, the Company defeased or redeemed approximately 
$670 million and $1 16 million, respectively, in long-term debt prior to its scheduled maturity. 

Losses resulting from the early redemption of debt are recorded as a regulatory asset. They are deferred 
and amortized as interest expense ratably over the lives of the related issues in accordance with PSC 
directives as discussed in ~ o t e  B -  atea and Regulatory Issues - Loss on Reacquired Debt, 
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NOTE F - SHORT-TERM DEBT 

The Company had short-term debt outstanding of $740 million and $705 million at December 31,2005, 
2004, respectively, from the inter-company money pool. The Company has regulatory approval from the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, to 
issue up to $I billion of short-term debt. National Grid and certain subsidiaries, including the Company, 
operate a money pool to more effectively utilize cash resources and to reduce outside short-term 
borrowings. Short-term borrowing needs are met first by available funds of the money pool participants. 
Borrowing companies pay interest at a rate designed to approximate the cost of outside short-term 
borrowings. Companies that invest in the pool share the interest earned on a basis proportionate to their 
average monthly investment in the money pool. Funds may be withdrawn from or repaid to the pool at 
any time without prior notice. The average interest rate for the money pool was 3.37 percent and 1.50 
percent for fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The Company had no short-term debt outstanding to third-parties at December 31,2005 or 2004. 

NOTE G - FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES 

Following is a summary of the components of federal and state income tax and a reconciliation between 
the amount of federal income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and the 
computed amount at the statutory tax rate: 

Year Ended December 31, 
(In thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 

Components offederal and state income taxes: 
Current tax expense (benefit): 

Federal rS (23,653) $ (21,743) 
State 2,334 9,183 

(21,319) ( 12,560) 
Deferred tax expense (benefit): 

Federal 180,913 166,440 

Total income taxes in the consolidated statements of 
operations: 
Income taxes chareed to o~erations $ 193.335 $ 168.149 
Income taxes credited to "tother income) deductions" (16;447 - 

Total $ 176,888 $ 168,149 
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Reconciliation between federal income taxes and the tax computed at prevailing U.S. statutory rate on 
income before income taxes: 

Increase (reduction) including fhose attributable to 
jlow-through of certain tax adjusmenfs: 

Prior period adjustment 
Depreciation 
Cost of removal 
Allowance for funds used during construction - (a) 
State income taxes 
Non-deductible executive compensation 
Accrual to return adjustment 

Debt premium and mortgage recording tax 2,595 351 
Real estate taxes - 
E.S.O.P. dividends (1,307) 
Dividends exclusion - federal income tax returns (155) (1 24) 
Provided at other than statutory rate - 
Voluntary Early Retirement Plan - 
Medicare Act (7,324) 
Subsidiaries 287 262 
Deferred investment tax credit reversal (3,071) (2,947) 
Other (78) 21 1 
Total 5,223 36,43 1 
Federal and State Income Taxes $ 176,888 $ 168,420 

(a) Includes Carrying Charges (Interest Expense) imposed by the PSC. 
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The deferred tax liabilities (assets) were comprised of the following: 

At December 3 1 (In thousands of dollars) 2005 2004 
Alternative minimum tax S (115,546) $ (89,466) 
Unbilled revenues (23,458) (2 1,038) 
Non-utilized NOL carryforward (13,272) (409,117) 
Liability for environmental costs (193.367) (1 24,755) 
Voluntary early retirement program 
Bad debts (54,808) 
Pension and other oost-retirement benefits (251 279) (194.653) . . ,  % . ~ ~ ~ ,  
Other (320,247) (443,904) 

Total deferred tax assets (97 1,977) (1,282,933) 

Depreciation related 
Investment tax credit related 
Deferred environmental restoration costs 
Merger rate plan stranded costs 
Merger fair value pension and OPEB adjushnent 
Bond redemption and debt discount 
Pension and other post-retirement benefits 
Other 363,429 404,716 

Total deferred tax liabilities 2,467,24 1 2,635,311 
Net accumulated deferred income tax liability $ 1,495,264 $ 1,352,378 
Current portion (net deferred tax asset) (1  79,454) (277,428) 
Net accumulated - deferred income tax liability (non-current) S 1,674,718 $ 1,629,806 

The Company has been audited and reported on by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) through January 
3 I, 2002. 

In December 1998, the Company received a ruling from the IRS which provided that the amount of cash 
and the value of common stock that was paid by the Company to the subject terminated IPP Parties was 
deductible in 1998 which resulted in the Company not paying any regular federal income taxes for 1998, 
and further generated a substantial net operating loss for federal income tax purposes. The Company 
carried back a portion of the unused net operating loss (NOL) to the years 1996 and 1997, and also for the 
years 1988 through 1990, which resulted in federal income tax refunds of $135 million that were received 
in January 1999. As a result of the merger with National Grid, the Company is now part of the 
consolidated tax return filing group of National Grid Holdings, Inc. (the parent company, through an 
intermediary entity, of National Grid). The Company anticipates that the consolidated tax filing group 
will be able to utilize the remaining NOL carryforward prior to its expiration in 201 9. The amount of the 
NOL carryforward as of December 31,2005 and 2004 was $38 million and $579 million, respectively. 
National Grid's ability to utilize the NOL carryforward generated as a result ofthe MRA and the 
utilization of alternative minimum tax credits is affected by the rules of Section 382 of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

There were no valuation allowances for deferred tax assets at December 3 1,2005 or 2004. 
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NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Summary 
The Company has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees. 
The pension plan is a cash balance pension plan design and under that design, pay-based credits are 
applied based on service time, and interest credits are applied based on an average annual 30-year 
Treasury bond yield. In addition, a large number of employees hired by the Company prior to July 1998 
are cash balance design participants who receive a larger benefit if so yielded under pre-cash balance 
conversion final average pay formula provisions. Employees hired by the Company following the August 
1998 cash balance design conversion participate under cash balance design provisions only. 

Supplemental nonqualified, non-contributory executive retirement program provides additional defined 
pension benefits for certain executives. 

The Company provides postretirement benefits other than pensions (PBOPs). PBOP benefits include 
health care and life insurance coverage to eligible retired employees. Eligibility is based on certain age 
and length of service requirements and in some cases retirees must contribute to the cost of their 
coverage. 

Funding Policy 
Funding policy is determined largely by the Company's settlement agreements with the PSC and what is 
recovered in rates. However, the contribution for any year will not be less than the minimum contribution 
required by federal law or greater than the maximum tax-deductible amount. 

Plan Assels 
The target asset allocations for the benefit plans are: 

Pension Benefits Nan-Union PBOPs Union PBOPs 
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 

U.S. equities 42 % 44% 30% 50% 49% 45% 
~lobal ' e~ui t ies  (including U.S.) 6% 7% - - 
Non-U.S. eauities 12% 11% 20% 5% 21% 15% 
Fixed income 35% 35% 50% 45% 30% 40% 
Private equity and property 5% 3% - - 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

The percentage of the fair value of total plan assets at December 3 1 : 

Pension Benefits Non-Union PBOPs Union PBOPs 
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 

U.S. equities 46% 46% 30% 50% 49% 52% 
~lobal 'e~uit ies  (including U.S.) 8% 8% - 
Non-U.S. equities 13% 13% 22% 6% 22% 16% 
Fixed income 33% 33% 48% 44% 29% 32% 
Private equity and property - - - 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% looO/o 
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The Comoanv manaees benefit olan investments to minimize the lone-term cost of oberatine the Plans. , , - - - 
with a reasonable level of risk. Risk tolerance is determined as a result of a periodic assetlliability study 
which analyzes plan liabilities and plan funded status and results in the determination of the allocation of 
assets across equity and fixed income securities. Equity investments are broadly diversified across U.S. 
and non-U.S. stocks, as well as across growth, value, and small and large capitalization stocks. Likewise, 
the fixed income portfolio is broadly diversified across the various fixed income market segments. For 
the PBOP plan, since the earnings on a portion of the assets are taxable, those investments are managed to 
maximize after tax returns consistent with the broad asset class parameters established by the asset 
allocation study. Investment risk and return is reviewed by the investment committee on a quarterly 
basis. 

The estimated rate of return for various passive asset classes is based both on analysis of historical rates 
of return and forward looking analysis of risk premiums and yields. Current market conditions, such as 
inflation and interest rates, are evaluated in connection with the setting of the long-term assumption. A 
small premium is added for active management of both equity and fixed income. The rates of return for 
each asset class are then weighted in accordance with the target asset allocation, and the resulting long- 
term return on asset rate is then applied to the market-related value of assets. 

Assumptions used for Benejfs Accounting 
The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine the pension and PBOP benefit 
obligations and net periodic costs for the calendar years ending December 31. 

Pension Benefits PBOP 
2005 2004 2005 2004 

Benefit obligations 
Discount rate 5.75% 6.25% 5.75% 5.75% 
Rate of compensation increase 3.90% 3.25% n/a nla 
Expected long-term rate of return 8.25% 8.50% 8.21% 7.88% 

Health care cost trend rate 
Initial n/a n/a 9.00% 9.00% 
Ultimate nla d a  5.00% 5.00% 
Year ultimate rate reached nla rda 2010 2009 

Net periodic benefit cost 
Discount rate 5.75% 6.25% 5.75% 6.25% 
Rate of compensation increase 3.25% 3.25% nla rda 
Expected long-term rate of return 8.50% 8.50% 8.29% 8.00% 
Health care cost trend rate 

Initial nla nla 9.00% 10.00% 
Ultimate nla n/a 5.00% 5.00% 
Year ultimate rate reached nla n/a 2009 2008 

The expected contribution to the Company's pension and PBOP plans during calendar year 2006 are 
approximately $72 million and $78 million, respectively. 
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Pension Benefits 
The Company's net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31,2005 and 2004 included the 
following components: 

Service cost $31,826 $ 29,080 
Interest cost 74,431 70,972 
Expected return on plan assets (67,398) (67,436) 
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 3,295 1,437 
Amortization of unrecognized loss 32,199 24,7 18 

Net periodic benefit costs before settlement 1 curtailments 74,353 58,771 
Settlement and curtailment loss 1,749 

Net periodic benefit costs $74,353 $ 60,520 

The following table provides a reconciliation of the plans' fair value of assets for the calendar years 2005 
and 2004. 

jln thousands) 2005 2004 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period $872,665 $ 839,067 
Actual return on plan assets 57,822 87,365 
Company contributions 74,269 84,138 
Benefits paid (102,064) ( 127,626) 
Settlements - (1 0,279) 
Fair value o f  plan assets at  end of period $902,692 $ 872,665 

The following table provides the changes in the Company's pension plans' benefit obligations, 
reconciliation of the benefit obligation, funded status and the amounts recognized in the balance sheet at 
December 3 I : 

$In thousands) 2005 2004 

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 1,242,464 $ 1,257,243 

Benefit obligation at beginning of period 
Service cost 
lnterest cost 
Actuarial loss 
Plan amendments 
Benefits paid 
settlements - (10,279) 

Benefit obligation at end of period $1,380,769 $ 1,322,096 
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lln thousands) 2005 2004 
Funded status S(478.076) U449.432) 

Unrecoznized actuarial loss ' 254.986 230.530 ., 
Unrecognized prior service cost 37,719 33,339 

Net amount recognized on the balance sheet S(185.341) $(I 85,563) 

Amounts recognized on the balance sheet consist of: 
Employee pension liability 
Intangible asset 
Reaulatorv assets - 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,741 - 

Net amount recognized $(185,341) $(I 85,563) 

The following pension benefit payments, which reflect expected future services, as appropriate, are 
expected to be paid from the Company's pension plan: 

$In thousands) I Pension Benefits 1 
2006 $1 10,428 
2007 $109,437 
2008 $1 10,415 
2009 $1 15,393 
2010 $120.370 
201 1-2015 $666,727 

Postretirement Benefit Plans Other than Pensions: The Company's total cost of PBOPs for the years 
ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004 included the following components: 

Jln thousands) 2005 2004 

Service cost $18.558 $ 10.925 
Interest cost 69;667 60[598 
Expected return on plan assets (45,672) (43,136) 
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 14,568 2,273 
Amortization of unrecognized net (gain) loss 28,692 24,254 

Net periodic benefit costs $85,813 $ 54,914 
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the Company's portion of the Companies' PBOP fair 
value of assets for the fiscal years ended December 3 I, 2005 and 2004. 

- 

lln thousands) 2005 2004 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period $591,998 $ 577,012 
Actual return-on plan assets diring year 
Com~anv contributions 
~enefitspaid from plan assets (60,616) (54,525) 

Fair value of plan assets at  end of period $585,115 $ 591,998 

The following provides the reconciliation of the benefit obligation, funded status and the assumptions 
used in  developing the obligations for the Company's PBOP plan at December 3 1 :  

{In thousands) 2005 2004 

Benefit obligation at beginning of period $1,186,215 $963,035 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial loss 
Plan amendments 
Benefits paid (64,747) (55,117) 
Medicare Act of 2003 - (7 1,475) 

Benefit obligation at  end of period $1,277,729 $1,186,215 

Jln thousands) 2005 2004 

Funded status $1692.614) $(594.2 18) . . . . 
Unrecoenized orior service cost 136.126 150.694 - ~~ ., r~~ 

Unrecognized actuarial loss 223,769 172,387 
Net amounl reco~nized S(332.719) $(271,137) 

The following PBOP benefit payments and subsidies, which reflect expected future service, as 
appropriate, arc expected to be paid: 

{In thousands) Payments Subsidies 
2006 $62,750 $3,964 
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Addition01 Minimum Pension Liabilily 
The Company has recorded an additional minimum pension liability of approximately $236 million and 
$1 86 million at December 31,2005 and 2004, respectively, for its qualified pension plans because the 
pension plans' accumulated benefit obligation was in excess of the accrued pension liability on the 
balance sheet. While the offset to this entry would normally be a charge after-tax to other comprehensive 
income, due to the nature of its rate plan, the Company has instead recorded a pre-tax regulatory asset. 

Defined coniribution plan 
The Company also has a defined contribution pension plan (employee savings fund plan) that covers 
substantially all employees. Employer matching contributions of approximately $8 million, and $7 
million were expensed for the calendar years ended December 31,2005 and 2004, respectively. 

A one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects: 

Increase I % 
Total of service cost plus interest cost 
Post-retirement benefit obligation 

Decrease 1 % 
Total of service cost plus interest cost 
Post-retirement benefit obligation 

PSC Audit 
In August 2003, the New York State PSC approved a settlement with the Company following an audit 
that identified reconciliation issues between the rate allowance and actual costs of the Company's pension 
and other post-retirement benefits. The settlement resolved all issues associated with those obligations 
for the period prior to its acquisition by National Grid and, among other things, covered the funding of the 
Company's pension and PBOP plans. As part of the settlement, the Company provided $100 million of 
tax-deductible funding during fiscal 2003 and an additional $209 million of tax-deductible funding by the 
end of fiscal 2004. Under the settlement, the Company will earn a rate of return of at least 6.60 percent 
(nominal) on the $209 million of funding through December 31,201 1 and is eligible to earn 80 percent of 
the amount by which the rate of return on the pension and post-retirement benefit funds exceeds 5.34 per 
cent (nominal) measured as of that date. 

Voluntary Early Retirement q f e r  
In fiscal 2004, National Grid made a voluntary early retirement offer (VERO) to eligible non-union 
employees. The Company expensed approximately $19 million of VERO costs in the fiscal 2004. This 
amount included approximately $9 million allocated to the Company from National Grid USA Service 
Company, an affiliate. 

Settlement Losses 
As the result of the decline in the stock market since the close of the merger with Niagara Mohawk and a 
reduction in the discount rate applied to pension obligations, the Company has an unrecognized loss in its 
pension plans. Under SFAS No. 88 "Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of 
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits" (FAS 88), the Company must recognize a 
portion of this loss immediately when payouts from the plans exceed a certain amount. The Company 
recognized approximately $22 million in fiscal 2004 relating to the remeasurement ofthe benefit plans 
from the VERO. 
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In  July 2004, the Company obtained PSC approval that would provide rate recovery for approximately 
$14 million of the $30 million pension settlement loss incurred in fiscal 2003. In addition, the agreement 
covers the funding of the entire settlement loss to benefit plan trust funds. The Company has filed a 
petition with the PSC seeking recovery of a $21 million pension settlement loss incurred in fiscal year 
2004. 

Regulatory treatment ofpensions and PBOP plans 
In addition to the regulatory assets established in connection with purchase accounting and the additional 
minimum pension liability discussed above, the regulatory asset account "Pension and poshetirement 
benefit plans" includes certain other components. First, the Company is required under the Merger Rate 
Plan to defer the difference between pension and postretirement benefit expense and the allowance in  
rates for these costs. Also, the regulatory asset account includes the unamortized portion of the merger 
early retirement program costs, a postretirement benefit phase-in deferral established in the mid- 1990's, 
and the offset to the additional minimum pension liability discussed above. The merger early retirement 
program costs are being amortized unevenly over the I0 years of the Merger Rate Plan with larger 
amounts being amortized in the earlier years. This amortization in calendar 2005 and 2004 was 
approximately $4 million and $8 million, respectively. The phase-in deferral is being amortized at a rate 
of approximately $3 million per year. 

NOTE I - PREFERRED STOCK 

The Company has certain issues of non-panicipating preferred stock, which provide for redemption at the 
option of the Company, as shown in the table below. From time to time the Company repurchases shares 
of its preferred stock when it is approached on behalf of its shareholders. On December 3 1,2004, the 
Company redeemed all outstanding Cumulative FixediAdjustable Rate Series D Preferred Stock for $25 
million. 

A summary of cumulative preferred stock at December 3 I ,  2005 and 2004 is as follows (in thousands 
except for share data): 

Shares Outstandine Amount Call Price 
2005 2004 2005 2004 

$ I00 par value- 
3.40% Series 57,536 57,536 $5.754 $5,754 $103.50 
3.60% Series 137,139 137,139 13,714 13,714 104.85 
3.90% Series 94,967 94.967 9,497 9,497 106.00 
4.10% Series 52,830 52.830 5283 5,283 102.00 
4.85% Series 35,128 35.121 3.513 3,512 102.00 
5.25% Series 34,115 34.1 12 3.41 1 3.41 1 102.00 

$25 par value- 
Adjustable Rate 

Series D 50.00 * 
Total 411,715 411,705 41,172 $41,171 

(*) Called on December 3 I, 2004. 
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NOTE J - SEGMENTS 

Segmental information is presented i n  accordance with the management responsibilities and economic 
characteristics o f  the Company's business activities. The Company i s  primarily engaged in  the business o f  
the ourchase. transmission and distribution o f  electricitv and the ourchase. distribution. sale and 
transportation o f  natural gas i n  New York State. The Company's reportable segments are electricity- 
transmission, electricity-distribution and gas-distribution. Certain information regarding the Company's 
segments is set forth in  the following tables. Corporate assets consist primarily o f  otherproperty and 
investments, cash, restricted cash, current deferred income taxes and unamortized debt expense. 

(in millions of dollars) 
Electric Distribution 

Stranded 
Cost Cis- Electric- Total 

Distribution Recoveries Tollll Distribution Transmission Segments 
Twelve Months Ended December 31,2005 
Oml i na  Revenue $ 2,449 S 592 S 3,041 S 963 S 260 S 4.264 
0 k t i n g  inwme before 

income taxes 33 1 182 513 104 1 07 724 
Depreciation and 

amonizalion 129 129 38 35 202 
Amonization ofstranded 

WSIS 268 268 268 
Twelve Months Ended December 31,2004 
Operating Revenue 5 2,468 5 450 S 2,918 S 763 S 255 5 3.936 
Operating inwme before 

inwme taxes 270 177 447 92 102 64 I 
Depreciation and 

amonizalion 
Amonization of stranded 

wsu 247 247 247 

(in millions o f  dollars) 
Elcctric-Distribution 

Stranded Cost Gas- Electric- Total 
Distribution Recoveries Total Distribution Transmission Corporate Segments 

December 31.2005 - - ~ . - - - -  
Goodwill S 697 S - S 697 S 215 $ 303 S - $ 1,215 
Total assets 5,308 3,257 8,565 2,069 1,589 402 12,625 
December 31,2004 
Goodwill $ 708 $ - S 708 $ 215 $ 303 $ - S 1,226 
Total assets 5,064 3,367 8,431 1,821 1,542 612 12,406 
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NOTE K - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION 

Prior to the merger, stock appreciation rights (SARs), tied to the price of the Holdings' share price were 
granted to officers, key employees and directors. The table below sets forth the activity under the SARs 
program for the periods December 3 1,2004 through December 3 1,2005. 

Options 
Wtd. 
Avg. 

Exercise 
SARs* Units Options Price 

Outstanding at December 31,2004 306,235 
Exercised ( 1  14,167) 
Outstandingal December 31,2005 192,068 

The Company's SARs program provided for the acceleration of vesting upon the occurrence of certain 
events relating to a change in control, merger, sale of assets or liquidation of the Company. On January 
3 1,2002, the acquisition of Holdings' by National Grid was completed and outstanding Holdings SARs 
were converted to National Grid plc (NG) American Depositary Share (ADS) SARs. The SARs are 
payable in cash based on the increase in the ADS price from a specified level. As such, for these awards, 
compensation expense is recognized based on the value of Holdings' stock price or NG's ADS price over 
the vesting period of the award. 

Included in the Company's results of operations for years ended December 3 I, 2005 and 2004, is 
approximately $231,000 and $4 million, respectively, related to the SARs program. 

Since SARs are payable in cash, the accounting under APB No. 25 and SFAS No. 123 is the same. 

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123R. "Share-Based Payment." SFAS No. 123R addresses the 
accounting for transactions in which a company receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity 
instruments of the company or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value ofthe company's equity 
instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. SFAS No. 123R also 
eliminates the ability to account for share-based compensation transactions using Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and requires that such 
transactions be accounted for using a fair-value-based method. SFAS No. 123R was originally effective 
for public companies for interim and annual periods beginning after June 15,2005. In April 2005, 
however, the SEC delayed the effective date of SFAS No. 123R to annual, rather than interim, periods 
that begin after June 15,2005. The SEC's new rule results in a six-month deferral for the Company and 
will be effective as ofApril I, 2006. The Company does not anticipate that adoption of SFAS No. 123R 
will have a material impact on its results ofoperations or its financial position. 
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NOTE L - DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES 

In the normal course of business, the Company is party to derivative financial instruments (derivatives) 
that are principally used to manage commodity prices associated with its natural gas and electric 
operations. These financial exposures are monitored and managed as an integral part of the Company's 
overall financial risk-management policy. At the core of the policy is a condition that the Company will 
engage in activities at risk only to the extent that those activities fall within commodities and financial 
markets to which it has a physical market exposure in terms and volumes consistent with its core 
business. The Company does not issue or intend to hold derivative instruments for speculative trading 
purposes. Derivatives are accounted for in accordance with SFAS 133, which requires derivatives to be 
reported at fair value as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. The change in fair value of instruments 
that qualify for hedge accounting are deferred in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income and will be 
reclassified through purchased electricity or purchased gas expense within the next twelve months. Other 
instruments are deferred in regulatory assets or liabilities according to current rate agreements and are 
reclassified through purchased electricity or gas expense in the hedge months. The Company's rate 
agreements allow for the pass-through of the commodity costs of electricity and natural gas, including the 
costs of the hedging programs. 

The Company has eight indexed swap contracts, expiring in June 2008 that resulted from the MRA. 
These derivatives are not designated as hedging instruments and are covered by regulatory rulings that 
allow the gains and losses to be recorded as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. As of December 
31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had recorded liabilities at net present value of $662 million and $578 
million, respectively, for these swap contracts and had recorded a corresponding swap contracts 
regulatory asset. The asset and liability are amortized over the remaining term of the swaps as nominal 
energy quantities are settled and are adjusted as periodic reassessments are made of energy price 
forecasts. 

At December 31,2005, the Company projects that it will make the following payments in connection 
with its swap contracts for the calendar years 2006 through 2008, subject to changes in market prices and 
indexing provisions: 

Projected 
Payment 

Year Ended (in thousands 
December 3 1, of dollars) 

2007 260:634 
2008 95,337 
Total $ 661,780 

The Company uses New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) gas futures to hedge the gas commodity 
component of its indexed swap contracts. These instruments, as used, do not qualify for hedge 
accounting status under SFAS 133. Cash flow hedges that qualify under SFAS 133 are as follows: 
NYMEX gas futures for the purchases of natural and NYMEX electric swap contracts hedging the 
purchases of electricity. 
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The following table represents the open positions at December 31,2005 and the results on operations of 
these instruments for the year ended December 3 I, 2005. 

($ 'S in 000 5) Balances as of December 31,2005 
Year Ended 

Accumulated Cain/(Loss) 
Accumulated Deferred on Reclass to 

Regulatory OCI** , Income Tax Commodity 
Derivative Instrument Asset* Deferral net of tax OC1** Costs 

Qualifedfor Hedge Accounling 
NYMEX futures - gas supply $ 12,638.9 $ - $ (16,186.4) $ - $ 36,843.8 

NYMEX electric swaps - electric supply $ - $ - $ - $ 3,260.2 $ 

Non-Quali/edfor Hedge Accounting 
NYMEX futures - IPP swapslnon-MRA 
IPP $ 21,101.6 $ - $ 3 1.068.0 $ - $ 63,969.7 

At December 3 1,2004, the Company recorded a deferred gain on the futures contracts hedging the IPP 
swaps and non-MRA IPP of $8.5 million, offset by the consolidated balance sheet item "Derivative 
1nstruments"for $7.7 million, with the resulting $0.8 million having settled through cash for the hedge 
month of January 2005. For the hvelve months ended December 3 I, 2004, settlement of NYMEX futures 
contracts resulted in a decrease to purchased power expense of $27.5 million. 

The gains and losses on the derivatives that are deferred and reported in accumulated other 
comprehensive income will be reclassified as purchased energy expense in the periods in which expense 
is impacted by the variability ofthe cash flows of the hedged item. For the twelve months ended 
December 31,2005, the realized net gain of $36.8 million from hedging instruments, as shown in the 
table above, was recorded to gas purchases offset by a corresponding increase in the cost of a comparable 
amount of gas. For the twelve months ended December 3 I, 2004, a net loss of $7.7 million was recorded 
to gas purchases offset by a corresponding decrease in the cost of a comparable amount of gas. 

The actual amounts to be recorded in purchased energy expense are dependent on future changes in the 
contract values, the majority of these deferred amounts will be reclassified to expense within the next 
twelve months. A nominal amount of the hedging instruments extend into April 2006. There were no 
gains or losses recorded during the year from the discontinuance of gas futures or electric swap cash flow 
hedges. 

The Company recorded a deferred gain on NYMEX electric swap contracts to hedge electricity purchases 
of $3.3 million and $0.3 million at December 31,2005 and 2004, respectively. 
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NOTE M - RESTRICTION ON COMMON DIVIDENDS 

The indenture securing the Company's mortgage debt provides that retained earnings shall be reserved 
and held unavailable for the payment of dividends on common stock to the extent that expenditures for 
maintenance and repairs plus provisions for depreciation do not exceed 2.25 percent of depreciable 
property as defined therein. These provisions have never resulted in a restriction of the Company's 
retained earnings. 

The Company is limited by the Merger Rate Plan and under FERC and SEC orders with respect to the 
amount of dividends it can make to Holdings. The Company is allowed to make dividends in an amount 
up to the pre-merger retained earnings balance plus any earnings subsequent to the merger, together with 
other adjustments that are authorized under the Merger Rate Plan and other regulatory orders. 

NOTE N - ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 

The following table details the changes in the equity account, "Additional paid-in capital" 

($ in 000's) 
December 31,2004 $ 2,929,501 
Equity contribution from Holdings 
~ e t  loss on preferred stock tender offers 
December 31,2005 S 2,929,501 

NOTE 0 -COST O F  REMOVAL 

In 2001, FASB issued FAS 143. FAS 143 provides accounting requirements for retirement obligations 
associated with tangible long-lived assets. The Company was required to adopt FAS 143 as of April 1, 
2003. Retirement obligations associated with long-lived assets included within the scope of FAS 143 are 
those for which there is a legal obligation under existing or enacted law, statute, written or oral contract, 
or by legal construction under the doctrine of promissory estoppel. 

The Company does not have any material asset retirement obligations arising from legal obligations as 
defined under PAS 143. However, under the Company's current and prior rate plans it has collected 
through rates an implied cost of removal for its plant assets. This cost of removal collected from 
customers differs 'om the FAS 143 definition of an asset retirement obligation in that these collections 
are for costs to remove an asset when it is no longer deemed usable (i.e. broken or obsolete) and not 
necessarily from a legal obligation. For a vast majority of its electric and gas transmission and 
distribution assets the Company would use these funds to remove the asset so a new one could be 
installed in its place. 



Exhibit B 
Page 40 of 40 

The cost of removal collections from customers has historically been embedded within accumulated 
depreciation (as these costs have been charged over time through depreciation expense). With the 
adoption of FAS 143 the Company has reclassified these cost of removal collections to a regulatory 
liability account to more properly reflect the future usage of these collections. The Company estimates it 
has collected over time approximately $334 million and $3 18 million for cost of removal through 
December 3 I, 2005 and December 3 1,2004, respectively. 

In March 2005, the FASB issued FIN 47 that clarifies that the term 'conditional asset retirement 
obligation' used in SFAS No. 143, 'Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligation' (SFAS 143) refers to a 
legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing andlor method of settlement 
are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the Group. This statement 
will be effective for the fiscal year ended March 3 I ,  2006 for the Company. The adoption of FIN 47 is 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's results of operations or its financial position. 

NOTE P - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

Operating revenues, operating income, and net income (loss) by quarter from January 1,2004 through 
December 3 1,2005 are shown in the following table. The Company believes it has included all 
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations for the quarters. Due to the 
seasonal nature of the regulated utility business, the annual amounts are not generated evenly by quarter 
during the year. The Company's quarterly results of operations reflect the seasonal nature of its business, 
with peak electric loads in  summer and winter periods. Gas sales peak in the winter. 

In thousands of dollars 
Quarter Ended Operating Revenues Operating Income Net Income 
December 3 1, 2005 $1,109,285 $1 19,502 $63,304 

2004 
September 30, 2005 

2004 
June 30, 2005 

2004 
March 31, 2005 

2004 

NOTE Q - DIFFERENCE BETWEEN UNIFORM SYSTEM O F  ACCOUNTS AND GAAP 

In accordance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) Form 1 instructions, these notes 
are included in the Company's published annual reports which may include reclassifications not made for 
FERC reporting purposes. These financial statements a n  prepared in accordance with the accounting 
requirements of the FERC as set forth in its applicable Uniform System of Accounts and published 
accounting releases. This is a comprehensive basis of accounting consistent with GAAP, except for: 

- the presentation of statements of cash flows, income statement and retained earnings for only 
one period instead of the two periods required by GAAP 

- lack ofdisclosure of the current potion of long-term debt on the balance sheet 

- the balance sheet classification of cost of removal collections from customers 


